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S ERNSTA YOUNG Phone: (632) 891 0307

Fax: (632) 8190872
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BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001,
December 28 2012, valid until December 31. 2015
SEC Accreditation No 0012-FR-3 {Group A),
November 15, 2012, valid untit November 16, 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company
Metrobank Plaza, Sen. Gil J. Puyat

Makati City

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company and
Subsidiaries (the Group) and of Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company (the Parent Company), which
comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the statements of
income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Group’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Philippines for banks for
the Group in 2012 and 2011 and Philippine Financial Reporting Standards for the Parent Company in
2012 and 2011 and for the Group and the Parent Company in 2010 as described in Note 2 to the
financial statements and for such internal control as Group’s management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibiliry

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

A rremper firm of Ernst & Young Global tmiled
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Group as at December 31, 2012 and 201 | and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the Philippines for
banks as described in Note 2 to the financial statements and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year ended December 31, 2010 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards.

in our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Parent Company as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 and its financial performance and its cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012 in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 19-2011
and 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 19-2011 and
15-2010 in Note 38 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of
Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of the management of the Parent Company. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Ml Madai

Aris C., Malantic

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 90190

SEC Accreditation No. 0326-AR-2 (Group A),
March 15, 2012, valid until March 14, 2015

Tax Identification No. 152-884-691

BiR Accreditation No. 08-001998-54-2012,
April 11, 2012, valid until April 10, 2015

PTR No. 3669696, January 2, 2013, Makati City

February 27, 2013
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METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
{In Millions)

Consolidated Parent Company
As of December 31
2012 20110 2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash and Other Cash ltems (Note 16) P24.382 £20,954 P21,540 B16,985
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (Note 16) 131,278 156,537 111,515 146.636
Due from Other Banks (Note 16} 22,557 32,095 7.873 13.310
Interbank Loans Receivable and Securities Purchased
Uinder Resale Agreements {Notes 7 and 33} 23,392 24,367 15,046 3222
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
{Notes 8 and 29) 66,721 6,188 §7.635 4,597
Available-Tor-Sale Investments (Notes 8, 16 and 29) 122,958 143,057 102,574 115976
eld-to-Maturity Investments (Note 8) 51,451 47.457 21,491 17464
Loans and Receivables (Noic 9) 525,703 437422 398,563 352,042
Investments in Subsidiaries (Nate 11) - - 24,922 25.399
Investments in Associates and a Joint Venture
{Note 1) 16,7115 17.6414 378 1.263
Property and Equipment {Note 10} 15,345 13937 10,321 9.408
Investment Properties {Note 12) 15422 15,471 11,898 11044
Non-Current Asset Held For Sale {Note 13) 1,102 - 336 -
Deferred Tax Assets (Note 28) 7.876 7.597 6,333 6,065
Goodwill (Note 1 1) 6,409 6,413 1,203 $.203
Other Assets (Note 14) 9.279 9,248 6,285 7.198
21,040,580 £058.384 B798.,i13 £731,812
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposit Liabilitics (Notes 16 and 31)
Demand P106,229 B77.389 PY4,516 B71.667
Savings 305,034 283.011 203,934 272331
Time 327,431 320,393 245,969 237.638
738,694 6801993 634,419 381.636
Bills Payable and Securities Sold Under Repurchase
Agreements (Notes 17 and 31} 497,108 99.657 16,223 13.600
Derivative Liabilities (Notes § and 31) 6,692 2819 6,425 2,689
Manager's Checks and Demand Drafts Outstanding 3,489 2610 2,732 1,955
Income Taxes Payable 1,326 397 212 322
Accerued Interest and Other Expenses (Note |8) 8,342 7.200 5,907 4,547
Bonds Payahle (Note 19) 11,834 4.875 - -
Subordinated Debt (Note 20} 14,243 10,735 9977 18,442
Dcferred Tax Liabilities {Note 28) 244 157 - -
Other Liabilities (Note 21) 31.588 23237 22,318 16.878
913.560 341.880 698,913 640,069
EQUITY
Equity Attributable to Equity Halders of the
Parent Company
Common stock {Note 23) 42,228 42228 42,228 42228
Hybrid capital securities {(Note 23) 6,351 6,351 6,351 6,351
Capital paid in excess of par value 19,312 19,312 19,312 19312
Surplus reserves (Nate 24) 1,108 1.002 1,108 1.002
Surplus {Notes 23 and 24) 48,692 35.986 29,882 21,427
Net unrcalized gain on available-for-sale investments
(Note 8) 2,438 4458 1,613 2.377
Equity in net unrealized gain on available-for-sale
investments of assaciates (Note 11) 758 435 - -
Translatian adjustment and others (869) 26 (1,294) (954
120,018 109,798 99,200 §1.743
Non-contralling Interest 7,002 6.706 - -
127,020 116,504 99,200 91.743
21,040,580 £058.384 P798,113 £731.812

See accompanying Noles to Financial Statements.
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METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In Millions, Except Earnings Per Share)

Consolidated Parent Company
Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
INTEREST INCOME ON
I.oans and receivables (Notes 9 and 31) P32,704 829022 827216 P17,652 B15,656 B15.679
I'rading and investment s¢curities {Note 8) 10.458 9.883 9,533 7,118 5.146 5588
Interbank loans receivable and sceurities
purchased under resale agreements
(Note 31) 551 458 938 269 35l 729
Deposits with banks and cthers 1,266 5074 3.757 499 4 408 3031
44,979 45037 41,464 25,538 25,611 25,027
INTEREST AND FINANCE CHARGES
Deposit Habitities (Notes 16 and 31) 8,756 10.234 9,713 5,679 7.010 7.070
Bills payable and securities sold under
repurchase agreements, bonds payable.
subordinated debt and others (Notes 17,
19, 20and 31) 5417 5.396 5,361 1,389 1,460 1.868
14.173 15,630 15,074 7.068 8.470 8.938
NET INTEREST INCOME 30.806 29,407 26,390 18,470 17141 16,089
Service charges. fees and commissions
(Note 31y 8,228 7711 6,853 3,527 3338 3.608
Trading and securities gain - net (Notes 8
and 31} 5,485 6,118 6,122 1,706 3.710 2.546
Foreign exchange gain - net (Note 31} 3.630 1.623 2. 855 3.380 1539 2.588
Gain on sale of non-current asset held tor
sale (Notes 13 and 31) 3,403 - - 4,164 - -
Leasing (Notes 12,27 and 31) 1,380 1.0V7 824 207 196 217
Protit from asscts soid (Note [2) L119 897 1172 118 826 1.091
Income from trust operations (Notes 24
and 29) 853 6035 480 841 687 473
Dividends (Note 11) 88 96 18 1,773 2,777 2,142
Miscellaneous (Note 25) 370 1.416 1.668 373 420 281
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 35.868 48,980 46.482 35.5589 30,854 29,035
Compensation and fringe benetits
(Notes 26 and 31) 14,405 13310 11,452 10,385 9308 7.618
Taxes and ficenses 5,260 4.601 4.391] 3.162 2,609 2,634
Provision for cred:t and impairment losses
{Note L5) 4,478 3.823 7.285 777 1.186 4485
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 10, 12
and 14) 2,188 2104 2,061 1.028 1.080 1.258
Oceupancy and equipment-related cost
{Note 27) 2,107 1.959 1.758 1215 1.139 1.083
Amortization of software costs {Note 14) 236 230 199 120 120 89
Miscetlancous (Note 25) 9,154 8.476 7.957 5,964 3,382 5.157
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 37828 34,503 35,103 22,651 20.824 22,324
INCOME BEFORE SHARE IN NET
INCOME OF ASSOCIATES AND
A JOINT VENTURE 18.040 14,477 11,379 12,908 10,030 6.711
SHARE IN NET INCOME OGF
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT
VENTURE (Note 1) 2,833 1.437 1.618 — — —
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 20,873 15914 12,997 12.908 10,030 6711
PROYISION FOR INCOME TAX
{Note 28) 3.826 3.524 3.731 1,760 2119 1,927
NET INCOME 217,047 B12.390 £0.266 PIL 148 P79 P4.784
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
{Note 32) P15.399 P11.031 P8.366
Nan-controlling [nterest 1,648 1.359 900
£17.047 P12.390 £9.266
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share
Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Parent Company (Note 32) £7.07 B3.02 B4 11*

*Restated to show the effects of stock rights granted in 2010 (Note 23).

See accompanving Notes to Financial Statements.
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METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(1In Millions)

Consolidated

Parent Company

Years Ended Pecember 31

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Net Income £17,047 £12.390 B9.266 BIL1I48 R7.911 B4.784
Other Comprehensive Income for the
Year, Net of Tax
Change in net unrealized gain on available-
for-sale investments (Note §) (2,517) 3.730 896 (764) 1,553 849
Change in equity in net unrealized gain on
available-for-sale investments of
associates (Note 11) 330 154 183 - - -
Translation adjustment and othets
{Notes 8and 11 {1.230) 463 {707) (340) (10) {200)
(3.417) 4.347 372 (1.104) 1.545 649
Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year P13,630 B16.737 £9.638 B10,044 B9 456 £5.433
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Patent Company B12,807 B14.931 B9.079
Non-coatrolling [nteeest 823 1.806 559
P13.630 R16,737 BG.638

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In Millions)

Consolidated Parent Company
Years nded December 31
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
In¢ome before income tax B20,873 2153914 B2 097 B12,908 £10.030 B, 711
Adjustments for:
Provision for credit and impairment losses
(Note 15) 4,478 3823 7.285 77 1.186 4,485
Trading and securities gain on
availabic-for-sale investments (Note 8) (7.067) (5.787) (5,982) (4.004) (3,671 (2.82%)
Depreciation and amortization
(Notes 10, 12 and 14) 2,188 2.104 2.061 1,028 1.080 1258
Share in nel income of associates and a
Joint venture (Note 11} (2.833) (1.437) (1,618} - - -
Profit from assets sold (Note 12) (1,119) (897) (1,172} (1.118) {826 (1,093
Gain on inttial recognition of investment
properties and chattel propertics
acquired in foreclosure {Note 25) (139) {238) (446) (122) (135) (221
Amortization of software costs (Nate 14) 236 230 199 120 126G 89
Amortization of discount on subordinated
debt and bonds payable 42 62 39 35 36 34
Unrealized market valuation loss on
financial assets and liabilitics at FVPL
(Nole 8) 3,747 944 633 3,721 968 673
Dividends (Note 11) (88) (906) (118 (1,773) (2,777 (2.142)
Gain on sale of non-current asset held for
sale (Notes 13 and 3 1) (3.403) - - (4,10d) - —
Net loss (gain) on sale of investments in
subsidiarics (Note 11) - (370 (8) 14 - (6)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (ingrease) in;
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (60511 5449 3.813 (53.016) 3.518 4931
Loans and receivables (73.932) (69.225) (32,733) (48,037) (60.620) (11.739)
Other assets (2,233) (1,267) 2,591 {1,257) (1,166) 844
Increase {decrease) in:
Deposil tiabilitics 57,701 29 731 35.562 52,783 17,828 22,945
Manager’s checks and demand drafts
outstanding 879 367 88 77 361 {643
Accrucd mterest and other expenses 1,142 2026 332 [,360 1.773 (91}
Other Liabilities 8.837 2.795 (2,098) 5,612 (1.278) (3.052)
Net cash generated from (used in) operations (51,202) (15.672) 21,445 (34.356) (33.365) 20,739
Dividends received 2,914 1.414 627 1,773 2,741 2.142
Income taxes paid (3.676) (3,377) (3.121) (1.437) (1.569) (1,541
Net cash provided by {used in) operating
activities (51,964) {17.635) 18,951 (34,020) {32,193) 21.340
CASH FLLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:
Available-for-sale investments (481.008) {483.687) (621 .489) (408,144) (360,608) (310.321)
Held-to-maturity investments (21577 (30.811) {(9.481) {19,303) (18.953) -
Property and equipment (Note [0) (3.841) (2,783) (1.57h) (2,208) (1.228) (680)
Investiments in subsidiaries, associates and
a joint venture (Note 11) (1,238) (1.7060) {1.939) 1) - (10.177)
Proceeds from sale of:
Available-for-salc investments 504,428 477.328 657,950 424,436 345574 534 820
Property and equipment 585 313 1G7 430 206 95

(Forward})

LT




.
Consolidated Parent Company
Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
[nvestments in subsidiarics and associates
{Note 11) P336 8175 B3.226 P71 P— 6,023
[nvestment properties (Note 12} 4,090 4424 4,335 3.287 4,084 4,035
Non-current asset held for sale
{Notes 13 and 31) 4,500 - - 4,500 - -
Decrease (ingrease) ininterbank loans
receivable and securities purchased under
resale agreements (Note 33) (3,380) 1.768 {542) (3.380) 1,768 (542)
Proceeds from maturity of held-to-maturity
investments 17,583 16.017 439 15,277 15,434 438
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities 20,478 (18.956) 33.255 14,925 (13,123 23.491
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Settlements of bills payable (983,041} (1.001,574) (801.265) (467,160) (249.712) (261.,064)
Availments of bills pavabie and securities sold
under repurchase agreement 980,491 1.015.718 790,910 469,783 252607 244,785
Proceeds from issuance of shares of stack
{Note 23) - 9,828 4.929 - 9,828 4,929
Repayments of subordinated debt (Note 20) (8,500) (2.000) - (8,500} - -
Proceeds from issuance of’
Bonds pavable (Note 19) 6,958 - - - - -
Subordinated debt (Note 20) 2,968 - - - - -
Cash dividends paid (Note 23) (2.638) (2.594) (1.353) 2.1 (2.11H (1.084)
Coupon payment of hybrid capital securities
{Note 23} (476) (484) (515) (476) (484) (515)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities (4,238) 18,894 (7.294) (8.464) 10.428 (12.949)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (35,724) (17.697) 44912 (27,559) (34,888) 31.882
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR
Cash and other cash items 20,954 20.201 19.727 16,985 16.996 17.049
Duc from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 156,537 168.402 71,981 146,636 162.391 63.578
Due from other banks 32,095 38.308 36.702 13,310 19416 29815
Interbank loans receivable and securitics
purchased under resale agreements
{Note 33) 23403 23.775 77.364 2,258 15,274 71.753
232,989 250 686 205.774 179,189 284,077 182,195
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR
Cash and other eash itemns 24,382 20,954 20,201 21.540 16,985 16.996
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 131.278 156,537 168,402 111,515 146,636 162,391
Due from other banks 22,557 32,095 38,308 7,873 13310 19,416
[nterbank loans receivable and securities
purchased under resale agreements
(Note 33) 19,048 23.403 23,775 10,702 2758 15,274
197,265 #232 089 2250686 P151,630 2179189 8214077
OPERATIONAL CASH FLOWS FROM INTEREST
Consolidated Parent Company
Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010 2012 201} 2010
Interest paid P14,381 Bi5.43} B15.443 P7.316 PR 255 BO 378
Interest received 44,674 44,167 45215 25,133 250359 27.036

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company (the Parent Company) ts a universal bank incorporated in
the Philippines on April 6, 1962. The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the
renewal of its Certification of Incorporation until April 6, 2057 on November 19, 2007.

In November 1980, the SEC approved and certified the listing of its shares and on

February 26, 1981, the listing and trading took effect in Makati Stock Exchange, Inc. and Manila
Stock Exchange which unified and now, The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE). The
universal banking license was granted by the Philippine Central Bank, now Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas (BSP) on August 21, 1981.

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) are engaged in all aspects of banking,
financing, leasing, real estate and stock brokering through a network of over 1,000 local and
international branches, offices and agencies. As a bank, the Parent Company provides services
such as deposit products, loans and trade finance, domestic and foreign fund transfers, treasury,
foreign exchange, trading and remittances, and trust services. Its principal place of business is at
Metrobank Plaza, Sen. Gil J. Puyat Avenue, Makati City.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for
financial assets and financiat liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) and available-
for-sale (AFS) investments that have been measured at fair value.

The financial statements of the Parent Company and Philippine Savings Bank (PSBank) include
the accounts maintained in the Regular Banking Unit (RBU) and Foreign Currency Deposit Unit
(FCDU). The functional currency of RBU and FCDU is Philippine peso and United States Dollar
{USD), respectively. For financial reporting purposes, FCDU accounts and foreign currency-
denominated accounts in the RBU are translated into their equivalents in Philippine peso (see
accounting policy on Foreign Currency Translation). The financial statements of these units are
combined after eliminating inter-unit accounts.

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The respective
functional currencies of the subsidiaries are presented under Basis of Consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (PHP), and all values are
rounded to the nearest million pesos (B000,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in the Philippines for banks or Philippine GAAP for banks in 2012
and 2011 and Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) in2010. As discussed in Note §,
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in 2011, First Metro Investment Corporation (FMIC), a majority-owned subsidiary of the Parent
Company, participated in a bond exchange transaction under the liability management exercise of
the Philippine Government. The SEC granted an exemptive relief from the existing tainting rule
on held-to-maturity (HTM) investments under Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 39,
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, while the BSP also provided the same
exemption for prudential reporting to the participants. Following this exemption, the basis of
preparation of the financial statements of the availing entities shall not be PFRS but should be the
prescribed financial reporting framework for entities which are given relief from certain
requirements of the full PFRS. Except for the aforementioned exemption which is applied starting
2011, the financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with the PFRS.

The financial statements of the Parent Company have been prepared in compliance with the PFRS.

Presentation of Financial Statements

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously. Income and expense are not offset in the statement of income uniess required or
permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the
accounting policies of the Group.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statemenits include the financial statements of the Parent Company and
of its subsidiaries and are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent Company using
consistent accounting policies. The following are the wholly and majority-owned foreign and
domestic subsidiaries of the Parent Company (Note 11):

Effective
Percentage Country of

Subsidiary of Ownership Incorporation  Functional Currency
Financial Markets:
Domestic

FMIC and Subsidiaries (98.06% in 201 1) 99.21 Philippincs PHP

PSBank 75.98 Philippines PHP

Mectrobank Card Corporation { A Finance Company} (MCC) 60.00 Philippines PHP

ORIX Metro Leasing and Finance Corporation (ORIX

Metro) and Subsidiarics (539.61% in 2011) 59.84 Philippines PHP
Foreign
Chinese Yuan

Metropolitan Bank (China) Ltd. (MBCL) 100.00 China (CNY)

Mectropolitan Bank (Bahamas) Limited (Metrobank Bahamas) 100.00 The Bahamas UsD

First Metro International Investment Company llong Kong Dollar

Limited (FMIIC) and Subsidiary (99.61% in 201 1) 99.84 Hong Kong (HKID)

Remittances

Metro Remittance (Hongkong) Limited (MRHL) 100.00 Hong Kong HKD

Metro Remittance (Singapore) Pte. 1td. (MRSPL) 100.00 Singapore Singapore Dollar

United States of
Metro Remittance (USA). Inc. (MR USA) 100.00 America (USAY  USD
Metro Remittance Center, Inc. (MRCD) 100.00 USA UsD
Great Britain

Metro Remittance (LK) Limited (MR UK) 100.00 United Kingdom  Pound

Metro Remittance {Italia), S.p.A. (MR ltalia) 100.00 Italy EUR

Metro Remittance (Spain). 5.A. (MR Spain} 100.00 Spain EUR

MBTC Services Gmbl (MBTC Vienna) 100.00 Austria EUR

(Forward)
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Effcetive
Percentage Country of Functional
Subsidiary of Ownership Incorporation Currency
Others:
Philbancor Venture Capital Corporation (PVCC) 60.00 Philippines PHP
Real Estatc
Circa 2000 [omes. Inc. {Circa) 100.00 Philippincs PIP
Computer Services
MBTC Technology. Inc. (MThH 100.00 Philippines PHP
Data Serv, Inc. (DS 60.00 Philippines PHP

PVCC, Circa, and MTI are in the process of dissolution. Also, on Apnil 23, 2012, the SEC
approved the dissolution of DSI and the liquidation process has been completed in June 2012,
Further, as a result of foreign network rationalization and consistent with the new business model
for Europe, the Parent Company advised the BSP of the voluntary closure of its remittance
offices - MBTC Vienna and MR Spain on May 14 and October 31, 2012, respectively. In August
2012, MBTC Vienna was subsequently sold.

Under Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) No. 12, Consolidation of Special Purpose Entity
(SPE), control over an entity may exist even tn cases where an enterprise owns little or none of
SPE’s equity, such as when an enterprise retains majority of the residual risks related to the SPE
or its assets in order to obtain benefits from its activities. In accordance with this Interpretation,
the consolidated financial statements prior to 2010 include the accounts of Cameron Granville 3
Asset Management, Inc. (CG3AMI) and LNC 3 Asset Management, Inc, (LNC3AMU), both are
special purpose vehicles (SPVs) in which the Group does not have equity interest (Note 14).
Starting 2010, the Group did not include the accounts of said SPVs as the related accounts are not
considered material to the consolidated financial statements.

All significant intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in the consolidation (Note 31).
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
Control is achieved where the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Consolidation of subsidiaries ceases when
control is transferred out of the Group or the Parent Company. The results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of income from
the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.

Changes in the Parent Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for within equity. Any difference between the amount by which the
noncontrolling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognized directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Parent Company.

When a change in ownership interest in a subsidiary occurs which results in a loss of control over
the subsidiary, the Parent Company:
s derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
e derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;
e derecognizes the related other comprehensive income recorded in equity and recycles the
same to statement of income or retained earnings;
recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;
recognizes the fair value of any investment retained; and
recognizes any surplus or deficit in statement of income.
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Non-controlling Interest

Non-controlling interest represents the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held by the
Group and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of income, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position, separately from equity attributable to the Parent Company. Any losses applicable to the
non-controlling interests in excess of the non-controlling interests are allocated against the
interests of the non-controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling interest having a
deficit balance. Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as equity transactions.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for
the following amended PFRS, which were adopted as of January 1, 2012.

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments. Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets (Amendments)

The amendments require additional disclosures about financial assets that have been transferred
but not derecognized to enhance the understanding of the relationship between those assets that
have not been derecognized and their associated liabilities. In addition, the amendments require
disclosures about continuing involvement in derecognized assets to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the Group’s continuing
involvement in those derecognized assets. The amendments atfect disclosures and have no impact
on the Group’s financial position or performance (Note 7).

PAS 12, Income Taxes - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amendments)
This amendment to PAS 12 clarifies the determination of deferred tax on investment property
measured at fair value, which is not applicable to the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions and balances

For financial reporting purposes, the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and {iabilities
in the RBU are translated in Philippine peso based on the Philippine Dealing System (PDS)
closing rate prevailing at the statement of financial position date and foreign currency-
denominated income and expenses, at the prevailing exchange rates as at the date of transaction.
Foreign exchange differences arising from revaluation and translation of foreign-currency
denominated assets and liabilities are credited to or charged against operations in the year in which
the rates change.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

FCDU, foreign branches and subsidiaries

As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of foreign branches and subsidiaries and FCDU
of the Parent Company and PSBank are translated into the Parent Company's presentation
currency (the Philippine peso} at PDS closing rate prevailing at the statement of financial position
date, and their income and expenses are translated at PDS weighted average rate (PDSWAR) for
the year. Exchange differences arising on translation are taken to statement of comprehensive

AR



- 5-

income. Upon disposal of a foreign entity or when the Parent Company ceascs to have control
over the subsidiaries or upon actual remittance of FCDU profits to RBU, the deferred cumulative
amount recognized in the statement of comprehensive income is recognized in the statement of
income.

Financial Instruments - lnitial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

Date of recognition

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the settlement date.
Derivatives are recognized on trade date basis. Deposits, amounts due to banks and customers and
loans are recognized when cash is received by the Group or advanced to the borrowers.

Initial recognition of financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. Except for financial assets and
financial liabilities valued at FVPL. the initial measurement of financial instruments includes
transaction costs. The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial
assets at FVPL, HTM investments, AFS investments, and loans and receivables while financial
liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at FVPL and financial liabilities carried at amortized
cost. The classification depends on the purpose for which the nvestments were acquired and
whether they are quoted in an active market. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such
designation at every reporting date.

Determination of fair value

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the statement of financial
position date is based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations (bid price for long
positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. When
current bid and ask prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction is used since it
provides evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in
economic circumstances since the time of the transaction.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value
techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, options
pricing models, and other relevant valuation models.

‘Day 1" difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different with the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technigue
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a *Day 1’ difference) in the statement of income. In
cases where the transaction price used is made of data which is not observable, the difference
between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the statement of income when
the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the
Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the *Day 17 difference amount.

Derivatives recorded at FVPL

The Parent Company and some of its subsidiaries are counterparties to derivative contracts, such
as currency forwards, currency swaps, interest rate swaps, call options, non-deliverable forwards
and other interest rate derivatives. These derivatives are entered into as a service to customers and
as a means of reducing or managing their respective foreign exchange and interest rate exposures,
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as well as for trading purposes. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recorded at fair
value on the date at which the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair values of derivatives (except those
accounted for as accounting hedges) are taken directly to the statement of income and are included
in ‘Trading and securities gain - net’. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Hedge accounting

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified primarily as either: (a) a hedge of the
fair value of an asset, liability or a firm commitment (fair value hedge); or (b) a hedge of the
exposure to variability in cash flows attributable to an asset or liability or a forecasted transaction
(cash flow hedge); or (c) a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment
hedge). Hedge accounting is applied to derivatives designated as hedging instruments ina fair
value, cash flow, or net investment hedge provided certain criteria are met.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes identification of the
hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how
the Group will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in
offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in
fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have
been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized directly as
“Translation adjustment and others’ in the statement of comprehensive income. Any gain or loss
in fair value relating to an ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the statement of
income,

Amounts recognized as other comprehensive income are transferred to the statement of income
when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or
financial expense is recognized or when a forecast sale occurs. Where the hedged item is the cost
of a nonfinancial asset or liability, the amounts taken to other comprehensive income are
transferred to the initial carrying amount of the nonfinancial asset or liability.

I the forecast transaction or firm commitment is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognized in the statement of comprehensive income are transferred to the
statement of income. |f the hedging instrument expires or is sold. terminated or exercised without
replacement or rotlover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, any cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income remains in other comprehensive income
until the forecast transaction or firm commitment affects profit or loss. If the related transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the amount is recognized in the statement of income.

Hedge effectiveness testing

To qualify for hedge accounting, the Group requires that at the inception of the hedge and
throughout its life, each hedge must be expected to be highly effective (prospective effectiveness),
and demonstrate actual effectiveness (retrospective effectiveness) on an ongoing basis. The
documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how the effectiveness of the hedge is
assessed. The method that the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend onits
risk management strategy.
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For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument must be expected to be highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during the period for
which the hedge is designated. The Group applies the dollar-offset method using hypothetical
derivatives in performing hedge effectiveness testing. For actual effectiveness to be achieved, the
changes in fair value or cash flows must offset each other in the range of 80.0% to 125.0%. Any
hedge ineffectiveness is recognized in the statement of income.

Embedded derivatives

The Group has certain derivatives that are embedded in host financial (such as structured notes
and debt instruments) and nonfinancial (such as lease and service agreements) contracts. These
embedded derivatives include interest rate derivatives in debt instruments which include structured
notes and foreign currency derivatives in debt instruments and lease agreements.

Embedded derivatives are bifurcated from their host contracts and carried at fair value with fair
value changes being reported through profit or loss, when the entire hybrid contracts {composed of
both the host contract and the embedded derivative) are not accounted for as financial assets or
liabilities at FVPL, when their economic risks and characteristics are not clearly and closely
related to those of their respective host contracts, and when a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivatives would meet the definition of a derivative. The Group assesses
whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from the host contracts when the
Group first becomes a party to the contract. Reassessment of embedded derivatives is only done
when there are changes in the contract that significantly modifies the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading are recorded in the statement of financial
position at fair value. Changes in fair value relating to the held for trading positions are
recognized in Trading and securities gain - net’. Interest earned or incurred is recorded in
‘Interest income’ or “Interest expense’ respectively, while dividend income is recorded in
‘Dividends’ when the right to receive payment has been established. Included in this classification
are debt and equity securities which have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term.

AFS investments

AFS investments include debt and equity instruments. Equity investments classified under AFS
investments are those which are neither classified as held-for-trading nor designated at FVPL.
Debt securities are those that do not qualify to be classified as HTM investments or loans and
receivables, are purchased and held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity
requirements or changes in market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS investments are subsequently measured at fair value. The
effective yield component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restatement on foreign
currency-denominated AFS debt securities, is reported in the statement of income. The unrealized
gains and losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS investments are excluded, net of tax, from
reported earnings and are included in the statement of comprehensive income as *Net unrealized
gain on AFS investments’.

When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the

statement of comprehensive income is recognized as “Trading and securities gain - net’ in the
statement of income. Gains and losses on disposal are determined using the average cost method.
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Interest earned on holding AFS investments are reported as *Interest income” using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Dividends earned on holding AFS investments are recognized in the
statement of income as *Dividends’ when the right of the payment has been established. The
losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized as ‘Provision for credit and
impairment losses’ in the statement of income.

HTM investments

HTM investments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities for which the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity. Where the Group sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM investments,
the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as AFS investments.

After initial measurement, these investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the EIR method, less impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. The
amortization is included in ‘Interest income’ in the statement of income. Gains and losses are
recognized in statement of income when the HTM investments are derecognized or impaired, as
well as through the amortization process. The losses arising from impairment of such investments
are recognized in the statement of income under ‘Provision for credit and impairment losses”. The
effects of revaluation on foreign currency-denominated HTM investments are recognized in the
statement of income.

The Group follows Philippine GAAP for banks in accounting for its HTM investments in the
consolidated financial statements. Under Philippine GAAP for banks, the gain on exchange on
FMIC’s participation in the domestic bond exchange was deferred and amortized over the term of
new bonds (see Statement of Compliance discussion).

Loans and receivables

This accounting policy relates to the statement of financial position captions ‘Due from BSP”,
‘Due from other banks’, ‘Interbank loans receivable and securities purchased under resale
agreements (SPURA)" and ‘Loans and receivables’. These are financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active market. They are not
entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified as *other
financial assets held for trading’. designated as AFS investments or ‘financial assets designated at
FVPL".

Loans and receivables include purchases made by MCC’s cardholders which are collected on
installments and are recorded at the cost of the items purchased plus interest covering the
installment period which is initially credited to unearned discount, shown as a deduction from
‘Loans and receivables’.

Loans and receivables also include ORIX Metro’s lease contracts receivable and notes receivable
financed which are stated at the outstanding balance, reduced by unearned lease income and
unearned finance income, respectively.

After initial measurement, *Due from BSP’, ‘Due from other banks’, ‘Interbank loans receivable
and SPURA’ and "Loans and receivables’, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
EIR method, less allowance for credit losses. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The amortization is included in ‘Interest income’ in the statement of income. The losses arising
from impairment are recognized in ‘Provision for credit and impairment losses’ in the statement of
income.
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Other financial liabilities

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at FVPL, are classified
as liabilities under *Deposit liabilities’, *Bills payable or other appropriate financial liability
accounts, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Group having an
obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation
other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number
of own equity shares. The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability
and equity elements are accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the
residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined
as the fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.

After initial measurement, bills payable and similar financial liabilities not qualified as and not
designated at FVPL, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees
that are an integral part of the EIR.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial
assets) is derecognized when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred the control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent ofthe
Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. The extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the transferred asset is the extent to which it is expesed to changes in the value of the
transferred asset. When the Group’s continuing involvement takes the form of guaranteeing the
transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is the lower of (i) the amount
of the asset and (ii) the maximum amount of the consideration received that the Group could be
required to repay (‘the guarantee amount’). When the Group’s continuing involvement takes the
form of a written or purchased option (or both) on the transferred asset the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase.
However, in case of a written put option to an asset that is measured at fair value, the extent of the
Group’s continuing invotvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset
and the option exercise price. When the Group’s continuing involvement takes the form of a cash-
settled option or similar provision on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is measured in the same way as that which results from non-cash settled options.
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Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of income.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future date (‘repos’) are not
derecognized from the statement of financial position. The corresponding cash received, including
accrued interest, is recognized in the statement of financial position as securities sold under
repurchase agreements (SSURA) included in ‘Bills Payable and SSURA’ and is considered as a
loan to the Group, reflecting the economic substance of such transaction.

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified future date (‘reverse
repos’) are not recognized in the statement of financial position. The corresponding cash paid
including accrued interest, is recognized in the statement of financial position as SPURA, and is
considered a loan to the counterparty. The difference between the purchase price and resale price
is treated as interest income and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the EIR method.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred *loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and
where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost such as loans and receivables, due from other banks,
and HTM investments, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. For individually assessed financial assets, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current EIR, adjusted for the original credit risk premium. The calculation of the present value of
the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that may
result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral.
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Financial assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment for impairment. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account and the amount of
loss is charged to the statement of income. Interest income continues to be recognized based on
the original EIR of the asset. Financial assets, together with the associated allowance accounts,
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realized. 1f, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reduced by adjusting the allowance account. Ifa future write-off is later
recovered, any amounts formerly charged are credited to the “Provision for credit and impairment
losses™ in the statement of income.

If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment. Those characteristics
are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of
the debtors® ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being
evaluated.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of credit risk characteristics such as industry, collateral type, past-due status and term. Future cash
flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in
the Group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to refiect
the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss
experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist
currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent with
changes in related observable data from period to period (such as changes in property prices,
payment status, or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the Group and their
magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are
reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

The Group also uses the Net Flow Rate method to determine the credit loss rate of a particular
delinquency age bucket based on historical data of flow-through and flow-back of loans across
specific delinquency age buckets. The allowance for credit losses is determined based on the
results of the net flow to write-off methodology. Net flow tables are derived from monitoring of
monthly peso movements between different stage buckets, from 1-day past due to 180-day past
due. The net flow to write-off methodology relies on the last 12 months of net flow tables to
establish a percentage (‘net flow rate”) of accounts receivable that are current or in any stale of
delinquency (i.e., 30, 60, 90, 120, 150 and 180 day past due) as of reporting date that will
eventually result in write-off. The gross provision is then computed based on the outstanding
balances of the receivables as of statement of financial position date and the net flow rates
determined for the current and each delinquency bucket. This gross provision is reduced by the
estimated recoveries, which are also based on historical data, to arrive at the required allowance
for credit Tosses.

[f, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.
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AFS investments

In case of quoted equity investments classified as ‘AFS investments’, this would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment toss on that financial asset previously
recognized in the statement of income - is removed from the statement of comprehensive income
and recognized in the statement of income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not
reversed through the statement of income. Increases in fair value after impairment are recognized
directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

In case of unquoted equity investments classified as ‘AFS investments®, the amount of the
impairment is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses shall not be reversed.

In case of debt instruments classified as *AFS investments’, impairment is assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. Future interest income is based on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued based on the rate of interest used to discount future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss. Such accrual is recorded as part of ‘Interest
income’ in the statement of income. If subsequently, the fair value of a debt instrument increased
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized in the statement of income, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of
income.

Restructured loans

Where possible, the Group seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral,
This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions.
Once the terms have been renegotiated, the loan is no longer considered past due. Management
continuously reviews restructured loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future paymenls
are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment
assessiment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR. The difference between the recorded value
of the original loan and the present value of the restructured cash flows, discounted at the original
EIR, is recognized in ‘Provision for credit and impairment losses’ in the statement of income.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements,
and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statement of financial position.

Terminal Value of Leased Assets and Deposits on Finance Leases

The terminal value of leased assets, which approximates the amount of guaranty deposit paid by
the lessee at the inception of the lease, is the estimated proceeds from the sale of the leased asset at
the end of the lease term. At the end of the lease term, the terminal value of the leased asset is
generally applied against the guaranty deposit of the lessee when the lessee decides to buy the
leased asset.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must
also be met before revenue is recognized:

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial instruments
classified as AFS investments, interest income is recorded at the EIR, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. The
calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options), including any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses. The adjusted carrying
amount is calculated based on the original EIR. The change in carrying amount is recorded as
‘Interest income’.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or group of similar financial assets carried at
amortized cost has been reduced due to an impairment loss, interest income continues to be
recognized using the original EIR applied to the new carrying amount.

Purchases by credit cardholders, collectible on an installment basis, are recorded at the cost of the
items purchased plus a certain percentage of cost. The excess over cost is credited to *Unearned
discount’ and is shown as a deduction from ‘Loans and receivables’ in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The unearned discount is taken up to interest income over the installment
terms and is computed using the EIR method.

Fee and commission income
The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its
customers. Fee income can be divided into the following two categories:

a. Fee income earned from services that are provided aver a certain period of time
Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period.
These fees include investment fund fees, custodian fees, fiduciary fees, commission income,
credit related fees, asset management fees, portfolio and other management fees, and advisory
fees. Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together
with any incremental costs) and recognized as an adjustment to the EIR on the loan.

b.  Fee income from providing transaction services
Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third
party - such as underwriting fees, corporate finance fees and brokerage fees for the
arrangement of the acquisition of shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of
businesses - are recognized on completion of the underlying transaction. Fees or components
of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognized after fulfilling the
corresponding criteria. Loan syndication fees are recognized in the statement of income when
the syndication has been completed and the Group retains no part of the loans for itself or

retains part at the same EIR as for the other participants.
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Leasing income - Finance lease

The excess of aggregate lease rentals plus the estimated residual value over the cost of the leased
equipment constitutes the unearned lease income. Residual values represent estimated proceeds
from the disposal of equipment at the time lease is estimated. The unearned lease income is
amortized over the term of the lease, commencing on the month the lease is executed using the
EIR method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive payment is established.

Trading and securities gain - net

Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair value for
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL and gains and losses from disposal of financial
assets held for trading, AFS and HTM investments.

Rental income
Rental income arising on leased properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms on ongoing leases and is recorded in the statement of income under ‘Leasing’.

Discounts earned and awards revenue on credit cards

Discounts are taken up as income upon receipt from member establishments of charges arising
from credit availments by the Group’s cardholders and other credit companies’ cardholders when
Group is acting as an acquirer. These discounts are computed based on certain agreed rates and
are deducted from amounts remitted to the member establishments. This account also includes
interchange income from transactions processed by other acquirers through VISA Inec. (Visa) and
MasterCard Incorporated (MasterCard) and service fee from cash advance transactions of
cardholders.

MCC operates a loyalty points program which allows customers to accumulate points when they
purchase from member establishments using the issued card of MCC. The points can then be
redeemed for free products subject to a minimum number of points being obtained. Consideration
received is allocated between the discounts earned, interchange fee and the points earned, with the
consideration allocated to the points equal to its fair value. The fair value is determined by
applying statistical analysis. The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognized as
revenue when the points are redeemed.

Income on direct financing leases and receivables financed

Income on loans and receivables financed with short-term maturities is recognized using the EIR
method. Interest and finance fees on finance leases and loans and receivables financed with long-
term maturities and the excess of the aggregate lease rentals plus the estimated terminal value of
the leased equipment over its cost are credited to unearned discount and amortized over the term
of the note or lease using the EIR method.

Underwriting fees, commissions, and sale of shaves of stock
Underwriting fees and commissions are accrued when earned. Income derived from sales of

shares of stock is recognized upon sale.
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Other income

Income from sale of services is recognized upon rendition of the service. Income from sale of
properties is recognized upon completion of the earning process and the collectibility of the sales
price is reasonably assured. Revenue on sale of residential and commercial units is recognized
only upon completion of the project. Payments received before completions are included under
‘Miscetlaneous liabilities’.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and other cash items,
amounts due from BSP and other banks. and interbank loans receivable and SPURA with original
maturities of three months or less from dates of placements and that are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Property and Equipment

Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value and depreciable properties including buildings,
furniture, fixtures and equipment and leasehold improvements are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortization, and any impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of the property and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria
are met but excludes repairs and maintenance costs.

Building under construction (BUC) is stated at cost and includes cost of construction and other
direct costs. BUC is not depreciated until such time that the relevant asset is completed and put
into operational use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the
depreciable assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the terms of the

covering leases and the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

The range of estimated useful lives of property and equipment follows:

Buildings 25 to 50 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2 to 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 to 20 years

The depreciation and amortization method and useful life are reviewed periodically to ensure that
the method and period of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from items of property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture (JV)

Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries pertain to alt entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one-half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity

(see accounting policy on Basis of Consolidation).
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Investment in associates

Associates pertain to all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20.00% and 50.00% of the voting rights. In
the consalidated financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for under the equity
method of accounting.

Investment ina JV

Investment in a JV represents the Group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity, whereby the
venturers have a contractual arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic activities
of an entity and accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The Group’s investment in
a JV represents the 40.00% interest of PSBank in Sumisho Motor Finance Corporation (SMFC).

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a JV is carried in the statement of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associate or JV. Goodwill relating to an associate and a JV is included in the carrying value of the
investment and is not amortized. When the Group increases its ownership interest in an associate
or a JV that continues to be accounted for under the equity method, the cost for the additional
interest is added to the existing carrying amount of the associate or JV and the existing interest in
the associate or JV is not remeasured. The Group’s share in an associate or a JV’s post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognized in the statement of income while its share of post-
acquisition movements in the associate or JV's equity reserves is recognized directly in the
statement of comprehensive income, When the Group’s share of losses in an associate or a JV
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or JV, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or JV. Profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and an associate or JV are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate or JV.

In the Parent Company financial statements, investments in subsidiaries, associates and a JV are
carried at cost less allowance for impairment losses.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. An investment
property acquired through an exchange transaction is measured at fair value of the asset acquired
unless the fair value of such an asset cannot be measured in which case the investment property
acquired is measured at the carrying amount of asset given up. Foreclosed properties are classified
under *Investment properties’ upon: a.) entry of judgment in case of judicial foreclosure; b.)
execution of the Shertff’s Certificate of Sale in case of extra-judicial foreclosure; or ¢.)
notarization of the Deed of Dacion in case of dation in payment (dacion en pago). Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation (for
depreciable investment properties) and impairment in value.

Investment properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognized in the statement of income in ‘Profit from assets sold” in the year of retirement or

disposal.
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Expenditures incurred after the investment properties have been put into operations, such as
repairs and maintenance costs, are normally charged to operations in the year in which the costs
are incurred. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis using the remaining useful lives
from the time of acquisition of the investment properties but not to exceed:

Buildings 50 years
Condominium units 40 years

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use
evidenced by ending of owner occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party
or ending of construction or development. Transfers are made from investment properties when,
and only when, there is a change in use evidenced by commencement of owner occupation or
commencement of development with a view to sale.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate
sale in its present condition, management has committed to the sale, and the sale is expected to
have been completed within one year from the date of classification (Note 13).

Interest in Jointly Controlled Operations

The Group is a party to jointly controlled operations whereby it contributed parcels of tand for
development into residential and commercial units. In respect of the Group’s interest in the jointly
controlled operations, the Group recognizes the following: (a) the assets that it controls and the
liabilities that it incurs; and (b) the expenses that it incurs and its share of the income that it earns
from the sale of goods or services by the JV, The assets contributed to the JV are measured at the
lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale (Note 14).

Chattel Mortgage Properties

Chattel mortgage properties comprise of repossessed vehicles. Chattel morigage properties are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value. Depreciation is calculated
on a straight-line basis using the remaining useful lives from the time of acquisition of the
vehicles. The useful lives of chattel mortgage properties are estimated to be 5 years.

Subordinated Notes

Subordinated notes issued by SPVs (presented as ‘Investments in SPVs’ under ‘Other assets’ in
the Parent Company financial statements) are stated at amortized cost reduced by an allowance for
credit losses. The allowance for credit losses is determined based on the difference between the
outstanding principal amount and the recoverable amount which is the present value of the future
cash flow expected to be received as payment for the subordinated notes.

Intangible assets
[ntangible assets include software costs and exchange trading right (included under

‘Miscellaneous assets’) presented under ‘Other assets’.
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Software costs

Software costs are capitalized on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortized over three to five years on a straight-line basis.
Costs associated with maintaining the computer software programs are recognized as expense
when incurred.

FExchange Trading Right

Exchange trading right is a result of the PSE conversion plan to preserve access of FMIC’s
subsidiary to the trading facilities and continue transacting business in the PSE. The exchange
trading right has an indefinite useful life as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which
this asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. It is carried at the amount allocated from the
original cost to the exchange membership seat (after a corresponding allocation was made to the
value of the PSE shares) less any allowance for impairment losses. FMIC’s subsidiary does not
intend to sell the exchange trading right in the near future.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. With respect to investments in associates
and a JV, goodwill is included in the carrying amounts of the investments. Following initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost net of impairment losses (see accounting policy on
[mpairment of Nonfinancial Assets).

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

Property and equipment, investments in subsidiaries, associates and a JV, investment properties,
and chattel mortgage properties

At each statement of financial position date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication
that its nonfinancial assets may be impaired. When an indicator of impairment exists or when an
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes a formal estimate of
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use (VIU) and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is assessed as part of the cash generating unit to which it
belongs. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing VIU, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to operations in the year in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each statement of financial position date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. [f such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. 1f that is
the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in
the statement of income. After such a reversal, the depreciation expense is adjusted in future years
to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over
its remaining life.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at statement of
financial position date either individually or at the cash generating unit level, as appropriate.
Intangible assets with finite lives are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired.

Goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annuaily or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for
goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) (or group of
CGUs) to which the goodwill relates, Where the recoverable amount of the CGU (or group of
CGUs) is less than the carrying amount of the CGU (or group of CGUSs) to which goodwill has
been allocated, an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of income.
Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed for subsequent increases in its
recoverable amount in future periods. The Group performs its impairment test of goodwill
annually every September 30.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of

the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfiliment of the arrangement is

dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the

asset. A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a) there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

(b) a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;

(c) there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;
or

(d} there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gives rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (¢) or (d) above, and at
the date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Group as lessee

Finance leases, which transter to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the
ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the miniinum lease payments and included in
‘Property and equipment’ with the corresponding liability to the lessor included in *Other
liabilities’. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the
lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are recorded directly to Interest expense’.

Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets
or the respective lease terms, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the assets are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the
statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rental payable are
recognized as expense in the year in which they are incurred.
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Group as lessor

Finance leases, where the Group transfers substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the
ownership of the leased item to the lessee, are included in the statement of financial position under
‘Loans and receivables’. A lease receivable is recognized at an amount equivalent to the net
investment (asset cost) in the lease. All income resulting from the receivable is included in
‘Interest income’ in the statement of income.

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the assets are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating
Jeases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on
the same basis as the rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the year in
which they are earned.

Retirement Cost

The Group has a noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan except for FMIIC and its
subsidiary which follow the defined contribution retirement benefit plan and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (MPFS). The retirement cost of the Parent Company and most of its
subsidiaries is determined using the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the current
service cosl is the present value of retirement benefits payable in the future with respect to services
rendered in the current year.

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the statement of financial position
date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or
losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rate on government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
retirement liability. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are credited to or charged against income when the net cumulative
unrecognized actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous period exceeded 10.00% of the
higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at that date. These excess
gains or losses are recognized over the expected average remaining working lives of the
employees participating in the plan.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in statement of income, unless the changes to the
pension plan are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of time
(the vesting period). [n this case, the past service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period.

The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation
less past service costs not yet recognized and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the
obligations are (o be settled directly. The value of any asset is restricted to the sum of any
cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future
contributions to the plan.

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the MPFS are recognized as
expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the
statement of income, net of any reimbursement. 1f the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as ‘Interest expense’.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets
are not recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Income Taxes

Current taxes

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxing authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of
financial position date.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a. Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

b. Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of

unused tax credits from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT)} over the regular

income tax, and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCQO), to the extent that it is probable
that taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
carryforward of unused tax credits from MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized except:

a. Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss,

b. Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax
assels are reassessed at each statement of financial position date and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in equity are recognized in other
comprehensive income and not in the statement of income.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation autherity.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year after giving retroactive effect to stock dividends declared and stock
rights exercised during the year. The Group does not have dilutive potential common shares.

Dividends on Common Shares

Cash dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from the equity when
approved by the Board of Directors (BOD) of the Parent Company and the BSP while stock
dividends are deducted from equity when approved by BOD, sharcholders of the Parent Company
and the BSP. Dividends declared during the year but are approved by the BSP after the statement
of financial position date are dealt with as a subsequent event.

Coupon Payment on Hybrid Capital Securities

Coupon payment on hybrid capital securities (HT1 Capital) is treated as dividend for financial
reporting purposes, rather than interest expense and deducted from equity when due, after the
approval by the BOD of the Parent Company and the BSP.

Debt Issue Costs

Issuance, underwriting and other related costs incurred in connection with the issuance of debt
instruments are deferred and amortized over the terms of the instruments using the EIR method.
Unamortized debt issuance costs are included in the related carrying amount of the debt instrument
in the statement of financial position.

Capital Securities Issuance Costs
Issuance, underwriting and other related costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the
capital securities are treated as a reduction of equity.

Events after the Statement of Financial Positicn Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the
statement of financial position date (adjusting event) are reflected in the financial statements. Post
year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material to the financial
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Segment Reporting

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature
of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit
that offers different products and serves different markets. Financial information on business
segments is presented in Note 6.

Fiduciary Activities

Assets and income arising from fiduciary activities together with related undertakings to return
such assets to customers are excluded from the financial statements where the Parent Company,
PSBank and FMIC act in a fiduciary capacity such as nominee, trustee or agent.

Standards Issued but not yet Effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to date of issuance of the Group’s financial statements
are listed below. The listing consists of standards and interpretations issued, which the Group
reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date. The Group intends to adopt these standards
when they become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Group does not expect the
adoption of these new and amended PFRS and Philippine Interpretations to have significant
impact on its financial statements.

PAS |, Financial Statement Presentation - Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income
(OCT) (Amendments)

The amendments to PAS | change the grouping of items presented in OCl. Items that could be
reclassified (or “recycled”) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, upon
derecognition or settlement) would be presented separately from items that will never be
reclassified. The amendment affects presentation only and has therefore no impact on the Group’s
financial position or performance. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2012,

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013

PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Amendment)

Amendments to PAS 19 range from fundamental changes such as removing the corridor
mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets to simple clarifications and re-
wording. lmpact on the Group’s financial statements is discussed in Note 26.

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)

As a consequence of the new PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entfities, what remains of PAS 27 is limited to accounting for
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate financial statements.

PAS 28, Invesiments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011)

As a consequence of the new PFRS 11, Joinr Arrangements and PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities, PAS 28 has been renamed PAS 28, fnvestments in Associates and Joint
Ventures, and describes the application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in
additton to associates.

PFRS 1, First Time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards - Government Loans
The amendments add an exception to the retrospective application of PFRS. A first-time adopter
may apply the requirements of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, and PAS 20, Accounting for
Government and Disclosure of Government Assistance, to government loans retrospectively if it

has obtained the necessary information to do so.
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PERS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

PFRS 10 replaces the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues raised in
SIC-12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. PFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The changes introduced by PFRS 10 will
require management to exercise significant judgment to determine which entities are controlled,
and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that
were in PAS 27.

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

PFRS 11 replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures, and SIC-13, Jointly-controlled Eniities -
Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers. PFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly
controlled entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs that mect the
definition of a joint venture must be accounted for using the equity method.

PERS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

PFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in PAS 27 related to consolidated
financial statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in PAS 31 and
PAS 28, Investments in Associares. These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also
required.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

PFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under PFRS for all fair value measurements.
PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides
guidance on how to measure fair value under PFRS when fair value is required or permitted.
The Group is currently assessing the impact that this standard will have on the financial position
and performance.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
This interpretation applies to waste removal costs that are incurred in surface mining activity
during the production phase of the mine (“production stripping costs”) and provides guidance
on the recognition of production stripping costs as an asset and measurement of the stripping
activity asset.

Retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting of Fi inancial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amendments)

These amendments to PAS 32 clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to
set-off” and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems
(such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. While the amendment is expected not to have any impact on the net assets of the
Group, any changes in offsetting is expected to impact leverage ratios and regulatory capital
requirements. The Group is currently assessing impact of the amendments to PAS 32,

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amendments)

These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and related
arrangements (such as collateral agreements). The new disclosures are required for all recognized
financial instruments that are set off in accordance with PAS 32. These disclosures also apply to
recognized financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or
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‘similar agreement’, irrespective of whether they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32. The
amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular format unless another format is more
appropriate, the following minimum quantitative information. This is presented separately for
financial assets and financial liabilities recognized at the end of the reporting period:
a) The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities;
b) The amounts that are set off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining the
net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
¢) The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
d) The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that
are not otherwise included in (b) above, including:
i.  Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of the
offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
ii. Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and
e) The net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.

The amendment affects disclosures and has no impact on the Group’s financial position or
performance.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015

PERS 7, Financial nstrumenis: Disclosures - Mandatory Effective date of PFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures

PFRS 7 was amended to require additional disclosures on transition from PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, to PFRS 9,

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

PFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, and applies to classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities as defined in PAS 39. In subsequent phases, hedge accounting and
impairment of financial assets will be addressed with the completion of this project.

The Group conducted an evaluation of the financial impact of the adoption of PFRS 9 based on the
audited financial statements as of December 31, 2011 and decided not to early adopt PFRS 9 in its
2012 financial reporting. The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will primarily have an effect
on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The interpretation
requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion, except
when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is recognized
based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the construction
materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous
basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The SEC and the Financial
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the
final Revenue standard is issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and an
evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine

real estate industry is completed.
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Annual Improvements to PFRSs

The annual improvements to the following PFRSs 2009 - 2011 cycle deal primarily with a view to
remove inconsistencies and clarify wordings. These standards will become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with carlier application permitted:

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS - Borrowing Costs

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Clarification of the requirements for
comparalive information

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of servicing equipment

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Tax effect of distribution to holders of equity
instruments

PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Interim financial reporting and segment information
for total assets and liabilities

The Group will assess impact of these amendments on its financial position or performance when
they become etfective.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Group to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses and the disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. Future events may
occur which can cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of
any change in estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably
determinable. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The following are the critical judgments and key assumptions
that have a significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year:

Judgments
a. Leases

Operating lease

Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment properties portfolio
and over various items of furniture, fixtures and equipment. The Group has determined based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements (i.e.. the lease does not
transfer ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term, the lessee has no
option to purchase the asset at a price that is expected to be sufficiently lower than the fair
value at the date the option is exercisable and the lease term is not for the major part of the
asset’s economic life), that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Group us lessee

The Group has entered into lease on premises it uses for its operations. The Group has
determined, based on the evaluation of the terms and conditions of the lease agreement
(i.c., the lease does not transfer ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease
term and lease term is not for the major part of the asset’s economic life), that the lessor
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties.
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Finance lease

The Group has determined based on an evaluation of terms and conditions of the lease
arrangements (i.e., present value of minimum lease payments amounts to at least substantially
all of the fair value of leased asset, lease term is for the major part of the economic useful life
of the asset, and lessor’s losses associated with the cancellation are borne by the lessee) that it
has transferred all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties it leases out on
finance leases.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of
financial position cannot be derived from active markets, these are determined using internal
valuation techniques using generally accepted market valuation models. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. These judgments may include
considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as correlation and volatility for longer dated
derivatives (Note 5).

HTM investments

The classification under HTM investments requires significant judgment. In making this
judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity.
If the Grroup fails to keep these investments to maturity other than in certain specific
circumstances - for example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity - it will be
required to reclassify the entire portfolio as AFS investments. The investments would
therefore be measured at fair value and not at amortized cost. In2012 and 2011, the Group
follows Philippine GAAP for banks in accounting for HTM investments in the consolidated
financial statements {(Notes 2 and 8).

Financial assets not quoted in an active market

The Group classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted
or not in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in
an active market is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly
available, and whether those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Embedded derivatives

Where a hybrid instrument is not classified as financial assets or liabilities at FVPL, the Group
evaluates whether the embedded derivative should be bifurcated and accounted for separately.
This includes assessing whether the embedded derivative has a close economic relationship to
the host contract.

Existence of significant influence over an associate with less than 20.0% ownership

As discussed in Note 11, there are instances that an investor exercises significant influence
even if its ownership is less than 20.0%. The Group applies significant judgment in assessing
whether it holds significant influence over an investee and considers the following: (a)
representation on the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the investee; (b)
participation in policy-making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends
or other distributions; (¢) material transactions between the investor and the investee; (d)
interchange of managerial personnel; or () provision of essential technical information.

AT A



2.

Contingencies

The Group is currently involved in legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable cost for
the resolution of claims has been developed in consultation with the aid of the outside legal
counsel handling the Group’s defense in this matter and is based upon an analysis of potential
results. Itis probable, however, that future resuits of operations could be materially affected
by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to this proceeding
(Note 30).

Functional currency

PAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, requires management to use its
Jjudgment to determine the entity’s functional currency such that it most faithfully represents
the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions that are relevant (o
the entity. In making this judgment, the Group considers the following: (a) the currency that
mainly influences sales prices for financial instruments and services (this will often be the
currency in which sales prices for its financial instruments and services are denominated and
settled); (b) the currency in which funds from financing activities are generated; and (¢) the
currency in which receipts from operating activities are usually retained.

Estimates

a.

Credit losses of loans and receivables

The Group reviews its loan portfolios and receivables to assess impairment on a semi-annual
basis with updating provisions made during the intervals as necessary based on the continuing
analysis and monitoring of individuat accounts by credit officers. In determining whether
credit losses should be recorded in the statement of income, the Group makes judgments as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a portfolic of loans before the decrease can be identified with
an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. Management
uses estimates in the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of
allowance required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and
actual results may differ, resulting in future changes in the allowance.

[n addition to specific allowance against individually significant loans and receivables, the
Group also makes a collective impairment allowance against exposures which, although not
specifically identified as requiring a specific allowance, have a greater risk of default than
when originally granted. This collective allowance is based on any deterioration in the
internal rating of the loan or investment since it was granted or acquired. These internal
ratings take into consideration factors such as any deterioration in country risk, industry, and
technological obsolescence, as well as identified structural weaknesses or deterioration in cash
flows.

The carrying values of loans and receivables and the related allowance for credit losses of the
Group and the Parent Company are disclosed in Note 9.

Fair values of structured debt instruments and derivatives

The fair values of structured debt instruments and derivatives that are not quoted in active
markets are determined using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis and
standard option pricing models. Where valuation techniques are used to determine fair values,
they are reviewed by qualified personnel independent of the area that created them. All
models are reviewed before they are used and to the extent practicable, models use only
observable data. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect reported fair value
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of financial instruments. Refer to Note 5 for the information on the fair values of these
investments and Note 8 for information on the carrying values of these instruments.

Valuation of ungquoted equity securities

The Group’s investments in equity securities that do not have quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less impairment
losses.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the carrying value of unquoted AFS equity securities
amounted to £279.4 million and #255.4 million, respectively, for the Group and
£60.8 million, for the Parent Company (Note 8).

Impairment of AFS equity securities

The Group determines that AFS equity securities are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is
significant or prolonged requires judgment. The Group treats “significant’ generally as
20.00% or more of the original cost of investment, and ‘prolonged’, greater than 12 months.

In making this judgment, the Group evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in
share price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of
deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes
in technology, and operational and financing cash flows.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, allowance for impairment losses on AFS equity

securities amounted to £572.8 million and £560.7 million, respectively, for the Group and
P176.2 million, for the Parent Company. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the carrying
value of AFS equity securities (included under AFS investments) amounted to 2.6 billion and
£2.0 billion, respectively, for the Group and £455.8 million and £338.2 million, respectively,
for the Parent Company (Notes 8 and 15).

Recognition of deferred income laxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The estimates of future taxable income indicate that certain
temporary differences will be realized in the future. The recognized net deferred tax assets
and unrecognized deferred tax assets for the Group and the Parent Company are disclosed in
Note 28.

Present value of retirement liability

The cost of defined retirement pension plan and other post employment benefits is determined
using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about
discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and
future pension increases. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are
subject to significant uncertainty. The assumed discount rates were determined using the
market yields on Philippine government bonds with terms consistent with the expected
employee benefit payout as of the statement of financial position date. The expected rates of
return on assets were based on expected long-term rates of return on the retirement fund
investments, net of operating expenses. The present values of the retirement liability of the

Group and the Parent Company are disclosed in Note 26.
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g Impairment of nonfinancial assets
Property and equipment, investments in subsidiaries, associates and a JV, investment
properties, software costs and chattel morigage properties
The Group assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors that the
Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:
a) significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
results; b) significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for
overall business; and ¢) significant negative industry or economic trends. The Group uses fair
value less costs to sell in determining recoverable amount. The carrying values of the
property and equipment. investments in subsidiaries and associates and a JV, investment
properties, software costs and chattel mortgage properties of the Group and the
Parent Company are disclosed in Notes 10, 11, 12 and 14, respectively.

Goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for
goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU (or group of CGUSs) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU (or group of CGUs) is less than
the carrying amount of the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated, an
impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of income. The Group estimated
the discount rate used for the computation of the net present value by reference to industry
cost of capital. Future cash flows from the business are estimated based on the theoretical
annual income of the cash generating units. Average growth rate was derived from the
average increase in annual income during the last 5 years. The recoverable amount of the
CGU has been determined based on a VIU calculation using cash flow projections from
financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year period. 1n 2012 and
2011, the pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 14.92% and 14.84%,
respectively. Key assumptions in VIU calculation of CGUs are most sensitive to discount
rates and growth rates used to project cash flows.

Goodwill amounted to 6.4 billion as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 for the Group of which
B1.2 billion, pertains to the Parent Company (Note 1 1),

4. Financial Risk and Capital Management

Introduction
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: (a) credit; (b)
liquidity; and (¢) market risks.

Risk management framework

The BOD has overall responsibility for the oversight of the Parent Company’s risk management
process. On the other hand, the risk management processes of the subsidiaries are the separate
responsibilities of their respective BOD. Supporting the BOD in this function are certain Board-
level committees such as Risk Management Committee (RMC), Audit Committee (AC) and senior
management committees through the Executive Committee, Asset and Liability Committee

(ALCO) and Policy Committee.
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The AC is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Parent Company’s risk management
policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of risk management practices in relation
to the risks faced by the Parent Company. The AC is assisted in these functions by the Internal
Audit Group (IAG). TAG undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the AC.

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries manage their respective financial risks separately. The
subsidiaries have their own risk management processes but are structured similar to that of the
Parent Company. To a certain extent, the respective risk management programs and objectives are
the same across the Group. Risk management policies adopted by the subsidiaries and affiliates
are aligned with the Parent Company’s risk policies. To further promote compliance with PFRS
and Basel 11, the Parent Company created a Risk Management Coordinating Council (RMCC)
composed of the risk officers of the Parent Company and its financial institution subsidiaries.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations. The Group manages and controls credit risk by setting limits
on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties, related groups of
borrowers, for market segmentation, and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in
relation to such limits. For risk management purposes, credit risk emanating {rom treasury
activities is managed independently, but reported as a component of market risk exposure. Each
business unit is responsible for the quality of its credit portfolio and for monitoring and controlling
all credit risks in its portfolio. Regular reviews and audits of business units and credit processes
are undertaken by IAG and Risk Management Group (RSK).

Management of credit risk

The Parent Company faces potential credit risks every time it extends funds to borrowers, commits

funds to counterparties, guarantees the paying performance of its clients, invests funds to issuers

(e.g., Investment securities issued by either sovereign or corporate entities) or enter into either

market-iraded or over-the-counter derivatives, either through implied or actual contractual

agreements (i.e., on- or off-balance sheet exposures). The Parent Company manages its credit risk
at various levels (i.e., strategic level, portfolio level down to individual obligor or transaction) by
adopting a credit risk management environment that has the following components:

» Formulating credit policies in consultation with business units, covering collateral
requirements, credit/financial assessment, risk grading and reporting and compliance with
regulatory requirements;

e Establishment of authorization limits for the approval and renewal of credit facilities;

» Limiting concentrations of exposure to counterparties and industries (for loans), and by issuer
{for investment securities);

e Utilizing the Internal Credit Risk Rating System (ICRRS) in order to categorize exposures
according to the risk profile. The risk grading system is used for determining impairment
provisions against specific credit exposures. The current risk grading framework consists of
ten grades reflecting varying degrees of risk of default and the availability of collateral or
other credit risk mitigation; and

e Monitoring compliance with approved exposure limits,
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The ICRRS contains the following:

a.

Borrower Risk Rating (BRR) - an assessment of the credit worthiness of the borrower (or
guarantor) without considering the type or amount of the facility and security arrangements. It
is an indicator of the probability that a borrower cannot meet its credit obligations when it falls
due. The assessment is described below:

Credit Factor
Component Description Weight
Financial Condition Refers to the financial condition of the 40.00%
borrower based on audited financial statements
as indicated by certain financial ratios. The
Financial Factor Evaluation is conducted
manually.
Industry Analysis Refers to the prospects of the industry as well 30.00%
as the company’s performance and position in
the industry.
Management Quality  Refers to the management’s ability to run the 30.00%
company successfully.

Facility Risk Factor (FRF) - determined for each individual facility considering the term of the
facility, security arrangement and quality of documentation. This factor can downgrade or
upgrade the BRR based on the elements relating to cover {collateral including pledged cash
deposits and guarantee), quality of documentation and structure of transactions.

Adjusted Borrower Risk Rating (ABRR) - combination of BRR and FRF.

Maximum exposure to credit risk after collateral held or other credit enhancements
An analysis of the maximum credit risk exposure relating to on balance sheet assets is shown

below:
Consolidated
2012 2011

Financial Financial

Effect of Effect of
Collateral Maximum Collateral Maximum
Carrying Fair Value or Credit  Exposure to Carrying Fair Value or Credit  Exposure 10
Amount__of Collateral Enhancement  Credit Risk Amount _ of Collateral _Enhancement Credit Risk

[rerbank loans receivable
and SPUR A £4,750 £4,746 4,746 24 R14.490 B14475 R14,475 B15

Loans and receivables - net
Receivables from

customers

Commercial loans 177,377 152,649 81,031 96,346 120,396 134,126 68,010 52,386
Residential mortgage

Joans 51,974 79,255 51,602 372 44, 5%) 69,577 44,249 341
Auto loans 45,690 62,679 45,231 459 37,845 42,952 37.185 660
Trade 21,476 - - 21.476 26,017 2 2 26015
Clthers 3,778 7,555 3,589 186 6,513 6.099 6,051 462
300,292 302,138 181,453 118,839 235,361 252,756 155,497 79,864
Accrued interest receivable 1,433 712 712 721 1388 484 484 504
Sales contract receivable 579 1,276 527 52 704 1421 688 16
302,304 304,126 182,692 119,612 237,453 254,661 156,669 80,784
Total £307,054 #£308,872 187,438 £119,616 £251,943 £269,136 Bi71,144 £380,799
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Parent Company

2012 2011
Financial Financial
Effect of Effect of
Collateral Maximum Coliateral Maximum
Carrying Fair Valuc orCredit  Exposure to Carrying Fair Value orCredit  Exposure to
Amount__of Collateral Enhancement  Credit Risk Amount __of Collateral _Enhancement  Credit Risk
Interbank {oans receivable
and SPURA #6,182 £7,770 #£6,182 £- P1.687 B2.153 P1.O8T B
Loans and receivables - net
Receivables from
customers
Commercial loans 161,071 131,208 66,676 94,395 193,321 112,535 60,302 43,019
Residential mortgage
loans 29,590 29,298 29217 373 25725 25,506 25,384 341
Auto loans 14,587 15,659 14,158 399 12678 4,108 12,326 352
Trade 21,476 - - 21,476 26,017 2 2 260013
COthers 127 - — 127 383 — 383
226,821 176,162 110,051 116,770 168,124 142,151 98014 70.110
Accrued intercst réceivable 772 515 518 257 543 406 406 137
Sales contract receivable 213 436 166 47 683 1,148 673 10
227,806 177,113 110,732 117,074 169.350 143,705 99 093 70.257
Toual #£233,988 #184,883 F116,914 B117,074 P171.037 2145858 R1G0,780 £70.257

Excessive risk concentration
Credit risk concentrations can arise whenever a significant number of borrowers have similar
characteristics and are affected similarly by changes in economic or other conditions. The Parent
Company analyzes the credit risk concentration to an individual borrower, related group of
accounts, industry, internal rating buckets, and security. For risk concentration monitoring
purposes, the financial assets ar¢ broadly categorized into (1) loans and receivables and (2) trading
and financial investment securities. To mitigate risk concentration, the Parent Company
constantly checks for breaches in regulatory and internal limits.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
An analysis of concentrations of credit risk at the reporting date based on carrying amount is

shown below:

Consolidated
Loans and
Loans and Advances to Investment
Receivables Banks* Securities** Others*** Taotal
2012
Concentration by Industry
Financial intermediaries P47,456 R177,229 £29949 #10,516 $265,150
Manufacturing { various industries) 99,704 - 659 8,779 109,142
Wholesale and retail trade 93,057 - 210 8.812 102,079
Real estate, renting and business activities 87,974 - 1,397 2,557 91,928
Private households 69277 - - 40 69,317
Transportanion, sterage and communication 39,683 - 2,648 4,307 46,638
Electricity, gas and water 40,555 - 2,475 533 43,563
Other community, social and personal
activities 18,183 - 1 39 18,223
Construction 9,772 - - 5,804 15,576
Hotel and restaurants Et,454 - - 2 11,456
Agricultural, hunting and forestry 5,636 - - 13 5,649
Public administration and defense,
compulsory social sceutity 2930 - - - 2,930
Mining and quarrying 824 - 411 237 1,472
Others**** 13,202 - 203,953 57,429 274,584
539,707 177,229 241,703 99,068 1,057,707
Less allowance for gredit losses 15,726 2 573 9,583 25,884
£523,981 R177,227 $241,130 £89,485 £1,031,823

(Forward)
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Consolidated

Loans and
Loans and Advances to investment
Receivables Banks* Securities** Qthers*** Total
Concentration by Location
Philippines 529,519 £145,380 £211,139 £96,841 #982,879
Asia 9,300 25,794 17,459 1,697 54,250
usa 644 4,649 4,519 530 10,342
Europe 229 1,295 4,147 - 5,671
Others 15 111 4,439 — 4,565
539,707 177,229 241,703 99,068 1,057,707
Less allowance for ¢redit losses 15,726 2 573 9,583 25,584
$523,981 ®177227 #241,130 £89.485 £1,031,823
2011
Concentration by Industry
Financial intermediaries Bd6 446 B212.999 B18 699 210,123 R28R 267
Manufacturing ( various industries) 85.468 - 886 8,163 94,517
Whoiesalc and retail trade 62.651 - 129 7622 70,402
Real estate. renting and business activities 78,103 - 1.059 683 79,845
Private households 68,839 - 206 37 69,082
Transportation, storage and communication 35.606 - 2816 3.043 41465
Electricity, gas and water 39,646 - 1.754 743 42.143
Other community, social and personal
activities 13912 - 1 73 13986
Construction 9385 - - 2983 {2368
Hotel and restaurants 7.943 - 2 14 7981
Agricultural, hunting and forestry 7.388 - 45 46 7479
Public administration and defense,
compulsory social security 3,041 - - - 3,041
Mining and quarrying 679 - 387 203 1.269
Otherg**** 11.477 — 171.257 52.339 235,073
470,584 212,999 197263 86,072 966918
1.ess allowance for credit losses 14 884 - 361 9.553 24.998
455 700 P£212.999 £196.702 B76.519 £941.920
Concentration by Location
Philippines 8463,525 B184 857 P162927 P83.693 P895002
Asia 6.154 16,667 12,853 1807 37481
USA 824 8,446 13.041 572 24,883
Europe 68 2,935 2684 —- 5,707
Others 13 74 3,758 — 3.845
470,584 212999 197,263 86.072 966918
Less allowance for credit losses 14,884 - 561 9,553 24.998
8455700 £212,999 P96 702 R76.519 £941,920
Parent Company
Loans and
Loans and Advances to Investment
Receivables Banks* Securities** Others*** Total
2012
Concentration by Industry
Manufacturing (various industries) PU5,433 - $494 £8,780 #104,707
Financial intermediaries 34,179 134,434 27,683 9,974 206,270
Wholesale and retail trade 71,517 - 91 8,810 80,418
Real estale. renting and business activitics 61,509 - 3 947 62,459
Private households 45,335 - — 40 45,375
Electricity, gas and water 35,228 - 2073 831 37,832
Transportation, storage and communication 30,815 - 2,404 4,306 37,525
Construction 6,386 - - 5,749 12,135
Hotel and restaurants 10,358 - - 3 10,361
Agricultural, hunting and forestry 4,324 = - 13 4,337
Mining and quarrying 517 - 53 237 807

(Forward)
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Parent Caompany

Loans and
Loans and Advances to Investment
Reccivables Banks* Securities** Others*** Total
Other community, social and personal
activities B770 - B— f o 770
Public administration and defense,
compulsory social security 142 - - - 142
Others®* ** 8,561 — 149,075 1,272 158,908
405,074 134,434 181,876 40,662 762,046
Less allowance for credit losses 8,233 — 176 9,583 17,992
F396,841 $#134,434 R181,700 £31,079 B744,054
Concentraticn by Location
Philippines R402,313 B119,731 P152,268 P38,486 £712,798
Asld 1,694 8,958 16,749 1,646 29,047
USA 788 4,442 4,273 530 10,033
Eurape 265 1,192 4,147 - 5,604
Others 14 [0 4,439 — 4,564
405,074 134,434 181,876 40,662 762,046
Less allowance for credit losses 8,233 - 176 9,583 17,992
£396,841 R134,434 £181,700 £31,079 £744,054
2011
Concentration by Industry
Manufacturing (various imdustries) £81.252 P B817 B8 163 B90.232
Financial intermediaries 38817 163,168 17,023 91377 228,385
Wholesale and retail trade 53622 - 57 7.582 61,261
Real estate, renting and business activities 57.893 - 21 683 58,597
Private households 41,060 - 206 37 41,303
Electricity. gas and water 33.747 - 1.634 743 36,124
Transportation, storage and communication 24888 - 2408 3.043 30,339
Construction 7.114 - - 2938 10,052
Hotel and restaurants 6623 - - 14 6,637
Agricultural, hunting and forestry 4826 - - 42 4,868
Mining and quarrying 466 - 51 203 720
Other community. social and personal
activities 3,161 - - 73 3,234
Fublic administration and defense,
compulsory social security 148 - - - 148
Othgrgtkxs 5.369 - 115,996 2317 123,682
3158980 163,168 138,213 35215 695,582
Less allowance for credit losses 8.666 - 176 G553 18,395
£350,320 P163.168 138,037 P25 662 8677187
Concentration by Location
Philippines #356.362 £i149.177 B104.707 B33 832 8644078
Asia 1.529 2911 12,328 811 17.579
USA 51 8291 14,736 572 24,550
Europe 132 2716 2,684 - 5,332
Others 12 73 3,758 — 3,843
358.986 163,168 138.213 35,215 695,582
Less allowance for credit losses 8.666 — 176 9,553 18,395
£350,320 £163,168 £138,037 825,662 P677,i87

* Comprised of Due from BSP, Due from other banks and Interbank loans receivable and SPURA.

**  Comprised of Financial asscts at FVPL, AFS investments and HI'M investments.

***  Comprised of applicable accounts under Other assets. financial guarantees and loan commitinents and other
credit related liabidities.

**** [neludes government-issued debt securitics.

Credit quality per class of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets is assessed and managed using external and internal ratings.

Loans and receivables

The credit quality is generally monitored using the 10-grade ICRR system which is integrated in
the credit process particularly in provision for credit losses. The model on risk ratings is assessed
and updated regularly. Validation of the individual borrower’s risk rating is performed by the
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Credit Group to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across the credit portfolio. The
credit quality with the corresponding ICRRS Grade and description of commercial loans follows:

High Grade
| - Excellent

An excellent rating is given to a borrower with a very low probability of going into default and
with high degree of stability, substance and diversity. Borrower has access to raise substantial

amounts of funds through public market at any time; very strong debt service capacity and has

conservative balance sheet ratios. Track record in profit terms is very good. Borrower exhibits
highest quality under virtually all economic conditions.

2 - Strong,

This rating is given to borrowers with low probability of going into default in the coming year.
Normally has a comfortable degree of stability, substance and diversity. Under normal market
conditions, borrower has good access to public markets to raise funds. Have a strong market and
financial position with a history of successful performance. Overall debt service capacity is
deemed very strong; critical balance sheet ratios are conservative. Concerned multinationals or
local corporations are well capitalized.

Standard Grade

3 - Good

This rating is given to smaller corporations with limited access to public capital markets or to
alternative financial markets. Access is however limited to favorable economic and/or market
conditions. While probability of default is quite low, it bears characteristics of some degree of
stability and substance. However, susceptibility to cyclical changes and more concentration of
business risk, by product or market, may be present. Typical is the combination of comfortable
asset protection and an acceptable balance sheet structure. Debt service capacity is strong.

4 - Satisfactory

A *satisfactory’ rating is given to a borrower where clear risk elements exist and probability of
default is somewhat greater. Volatility of earnings and overall performance: normally has limited
access to public markets. Borrower should be able to withstand normal business cycles, but any
prolonged unfavorable economic period would create deterioration beyond acceptable levels.
Combination of reasonable sound asset and cash flow protection: debt service capacity is
adequate. Reported profits in the past year and is expected to report a profit in the current year.

5 - Acceptable

An “acceptable’ rating is given to a borrower whose risk elements are sufficiently pronounced
although borrower should still be able to withstand normal business cycles. Any prolonged
unfavorable economic and/or market period would create an immediate deterioration beyond
acceptable levels. Risk is still acceptable as there is sufficient cash flow either historically or
expected for the future; new business or projected finance transaction; an existing borrower where
the nature of the exposure represents a higher risk because of extraordinary developments but for
which a decreasing risk within an acceptable period can be expected.

Substandard Grade

6 - Watchlist

This rating is given to a borrower that belongs to an unfavorable industry or has company-specific
risk factors which represent a concern. Operating performance and financial strength may be
marginal and it is uncertain if borrower can attract alternative course of finance. Borrower finds it
hard to cope with any significant economic downturn and a default in such a case is more than a
possibility. Borrower which incurs net losses and has salient financial weaknesses, reflected on
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statements specifically in profitability. Credit exposure is not at risk of loss at the moment but
performance of the borrower has weakened and unless present trends are reversed. could lead to
losses.

7 - Especially Mentioned

This rating is given to a borrower that exhibits potential weaknesses that deserve management’s
close attention. These potential weaknesses, if left uncorrected, may affect the repayment of the
loan and thus, increase credit risk to the Bank.

Impaired
8 - Substandard

These are loans or portions, thereof which appear to involve a substantial and unreasonable degree
of risk to the Bank because of unfavorable record or unsatisfactory characteristics. There exists
the possibility of future losses to the Bank unless given closer supervision. Borrower has well-
defined weaknesses or weaknesses that jeopardize loan liquidation. Such well-defined weaknesses
may include adverse trends or development of financial, managerial, economic or political nature,
or a significant weakness in collateral.

9 - Doubtful

This rating is given to a nonperforming borrower whose loans or portions thereof have the
weaknesses inherent in those classified as Substandard, with the added characteristics that existing
facts, conditions, and values make collection or liquidation in fully highly improbable and in
which substantial loss is probable.

10 - Loss

This rating is given to a borrower whose loans or portions thereof are considered uncollectible or
worthless and of such little value that their continuance as bankable assets is not warranted
although the loans may have some recovery or salvage value, The amount of loss is difficult to
measure and it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off these basically worthless assets
even though partial recovery may be obtained in the future.

The description of credit quality of consumer loans follows:

High Grade
Good credit rating

This rating is given to a good repeat client with very satisfactory track record of its loan repayment
(paid at least 50.00%) and whose account did not turn past due during the entire term of the loan.

Standard Grade
Good
A good rating is given to accounts which did not turn past due for 90 days and over.

L.imited
This rating is given to borrowers who have average track record on loan repayment (paid less than
50.00%) and whose account did not turn past due for 90 days and over.

Substandard Grade

Poor

A poor rating is given to accounts who reached 90 days past due regardless of the number of times
and the number of months past due.
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Poor litigation
This rating is given to accounts that were past due for 180 days and over and are currently being
handled by lawyers.

Impaired
Poor repossessed

This rating is given to accounts whose collaterals were repossessed,

Poor written-off
This rating is given to accounts that were recommended for write-off.

Trading and investrment securities

In ensuring quality investment portfolio, the Parent Company uses the credit risk rating from the
published data providers like Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s (S&P) or other reputable rating
agencies. Presented here is Moody’s rating - equivalent S&P rating and other rating agencies
applies:

Credit Quality External Rating
High grade Aaa Aal Aa2 Al A2 A3 Baal Baa2 Baa3
Standard grade Bal Ba2 Ba3 Bl B2
Substandard gradc B3 Caal Caa2  Caal Ca C
[mpaired D

The following table shows the credit quality of financial assets:

Consolidated

Loans and
Loans and Advances to Investment

Receivables Banks* Securities** Others*** Total
2012
Neither past due nor impaired P512.859 £177,229 £240,034 £89,132 #1,019,254
Past due but not impaired 11,965 - - - 11,965
Impaired 14,883 — 1,669 9,936 26,488
Ciross 539,707 177,229 241,703 99,068 1,057,707
Less allowance for credit losses 15,726 2 573 9,583 25,884
Net $£523,981 P177,227 $£241,130 PBY, 485 #1.031,823
2011
Neither past due ner impaired B448.753 B212.999 P195.813 876,519 B934.084
Past due but not impaired 4,966 - - - 4,966
Impaired 16,865 - 1.450 9,553 27868
Gross 470,584 212999 197,263 86,072 966,918
Less allowance for credit losses 14 884 - 561 9553 24,998
Net B455,700 8212999 B196.702 B76.519 #0941 920

Parent Company
Loans and

Loans and Advances to Investment

Receivables Banks* Securities** Others*** Total
2012
Neither past due nor impared P393.358 134,434 £181,530 #30,726 £740,048
Past due but not impaired 289 - - - 289
Impaired 11,427 — 346 9,936 21,709
Gross 405,074 134,434 181,876 40,662 762,046
Less allowance for credit losses 5,233 — 176 9,583 17,992

Net $396,841 R134,434 £181,700 £31,079 P 744,054
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Parent Company
Loans and
l.oans and Advances to Investment
Receivables Banks* Securities** Others*** Total
2011
Neither past due nor impaired R343974 Bl63,168 R137.530 B25.662 B670,734
Past due but not impasred 676 - - - 676
Impaired 14,336 - 283 9,553 24,172
Gross 358986 163,168 138,213 35215 695 582
Less allowance for credit losses 8,666 — 176 9.553 18.395
Net #350,320 £163,168 £138.037 B25,662 £677,187
*  Comprised of Due from BSP, Due from other banks and Interbank loans receivable and SPURA.
*+  Comprised of Financial assets at FVPL, AFS investments and HTM investments.
ek Compnised of applicable accounts under Other assets, financial guarantees and loan commitments and cther
credit related liabilities.
The table below shows credit quality per class of financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired {gross of allowance for credit losses):
Consclidated
Standard Substandard
1ligh Grade Grade Grade Lnrated Total
2012
Loans and advances to banks
Due from BSP £- £131,278 f o | F131,278
Due from other banks 11,164 10,873 400 120 22,557
Interbank loans receivable and
SPURA 8,462 7,369 - 7,563 23,394
19,626 149,520 400 7,683 177,229
Financial assets at FVPL
Debt securities
Government 1,037 60,611 - - 61,648
Private 368 111 - 322 801
Fquity secunities - quoted 508 1,135 290 - 1,933
Dernvative assets 1,404 730 - 205 2,339
3,317 62,587 290 527 66,721
AFS investments
Debt securities
Government 7.222 86,205 27 10,299 103,753
Private 15,557 - - 1,055 16,612
Subtotal 22779 86,205 27 11,354 120,365
Equity securities
Quoted 297 623 - 299 1,219
Unquoted 17 - 51 210 278
Subtotal 314 623 51 509 1,497
23,093 86,828 78 11,863 121,862
HTM investments
Government bonds 4,200 29,795 - 3,486 37,481
Private honds 4,335 - - - 4,335
Treasury notes 42 9,593 - - 9,635
8,577 39,388 - 3,486 51,451
Loans and receivables
Receivables from custemers
Commercial loans 100,887 178,643 49,896 - 329,426
Residential mortgage loans 18,843 30,389 428 - 49,660
Auto loans 28,626 13,304 19 - 41,949
Trade 3,228 14,416 3.893 - 21,537
Others 20,612 7,188 150 26,593 54,543
172,196 243,940 54,386 26,593 497,115

(Forward}
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Consolidated
Standard Substandard
High Grade Grade Grade Unrated Total
Unquoted debt sceurities £4,806 £1,390 - P £6,196
Accrued interest receivable 1,391 334 218 167 5,117
Accounts receivable 105 50 - 2,244 2,399
Sales contract receivable 301 - - 240 541
Other receivables 4 1,279 - 203 1,491
178,808 250,000 54,604 29,447 512,859
Others - 2,010 15 37,107 39,132
£2133.421 £590,.333 B55,387 £140,113 £1,019,254
2011
Loans and advances to banks
Duge from BSP B637 P155,850 P P B136,537
Due from other banks 17,589 10,233 2,442 1.831 32085
Interbank Ivans receivable and
SPURA 9.041 13,113 ~ 2213 24,367
27317 179,196 2.442 4,044 212969
I'mancial assets at FVPL
Debt securitics
Governmeant 110 2.440 - - 2,550
Private 121 28 - 103 254
BSP - 3 — - 3
Equity securities - quoted 21 695 134 1 1.041
Derivative assets 1.7G7 196 — 437 2,340
2.149 3362 134 543 6,188
AFS investments
Debt securities
Government 16,298 160,602 27 10,028 126955
Private 13,103 — — 989 14,692
Subtotal 29,401 100,602 27 11,017 141,047
Equity securities
Quoted 239 426 - 202 867
Unguoted 17 - 29 208 254
Subtotal 256 426 29 410 1,121
29,657 101,028 56 11,427 142,168
HTM investments
Government bends - 32.010 - 3,486 35496
Private bonds 3.895 - - - 3,895
Treasury noles 44 8022 - — 8.0656
3,939 40,032 — 3,486 47,457
Leans and receivables
Recervables from customers
Commercial loans 92223 154,539 29.447 3,155 279364
Residential mortgage loans 18,037 23673 320 - 44030
Auto loans 24526 12,553 27 39 37.165
Trade 6.959 14,334 4,454 - 25,747
Others 15421 511 147 26,947 43.026
157.166 207.610 34,395 30,061 429 332
Unquoted debt securities 6.143 3216 — 1.325 10,684
Accrued interest receivable 2.049 2,761 163 95 5,068
Accounts receivable 72 136 408 2,129 2.745
Salcs contract receivable 312 - 30 200 632
Other receivables - 184 33 75 292
165,742 213807 35029 34.G75 448,753
Others - - - 76,519 76,519
£223. 804 B537,525 37661 £130,094 8934 084
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Parent Company

Standard Substandard
High Grade Grade Grade Unrated Total
2012
Loans and advances to banks
Due trom BSP - R111,515 f B #111,515
Duc from other banks 7.668 102 - 103 7,873
Interbank loans receivable and
SPURA 6,458 1,026 — 7,562 15,046
14,126 112,643 — 7,665 134,434
Financial assets at FVPL
Held-for-trading debt securities
Government 970 53,615 - — 54,585
Private 368 111 - 322 801
Derivative assets 1,404 640 - 208 2,249
2,742 54,366 — 517 57,635
AFS investments
Debt securitics
Government 6,777 69,073 27 10,299 86,176
Private 14,887 — - 1,055 15,942
Subtotal 21,664 69,073 27 11,354 102,118
Equity securities
Quoted 12 - - 213 225
Unquoted - — - 61 61
Subtotal 12 — - 274 286
21.676 69,073 27 11,628 102,404
HTM mnvestments
Government bonds 4,200 9,471 - 3,486 17,157
Private bonds 4,334 — - — 4.334
8,534 9,471 — 3,486 21,491
Loans and recaivables
Reccivables from customers
Commercial loans 86,766 168,215 49,711 - 304,692
Residential mortgage loans 803 29,322 400 - 30,525
Auto loans 1,405 13,252 18 - 14,675
Trade 3,165 14,416 3,893 — 21,474
Others 15,174 394 39 — 15,607
107.313 225,599 54,061 — 386,973
Unguoted debt securities 123 - - - 123
Accrued interest receivable 337 2,954 217 166 3,874
Accounts receivable - - - 1,994 1,994
Sales contract receivable - - - 227 227
Other receivables — - — 167 167
107,973 228,553 54,278 2,554 393,358
Others - — — 30,726 30,726
£155.051 #474,106 $54,305 £56,.586 #740,048
2011
Loans and advances to banks
Due from BSP B £146.636 B B £146.636
Due from other banks 11572 31 - 1,707 13,310
Interbank loans receivable and
SPURA 1.009 - - 2,213 3222
12.581 146 667 — 3,920 163,168
Financial assets at FVPL
Held-for-trading debt securities
Government 110 1,991 - - 2,101
Private 121 28 - 105 254
BSP - 3 - - 3
Derivative assets 1,707 95 — 437 2.239
1,938 2,117 — 542 4,597

(Forward)
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Parent Company

Standard Substandard
lligh Grade Grade Grade Unrated Total
AFS investments
Debt securities
Government R15.897 876,250 R27 B10,028 RIO2 202
Private 12,446 - — 989 13,435
Subtotal 28.343 76,250 27 11,017 115,637
Equity securities
Quoted 14 - - 157 171
Unquoted - — - 61 61
Subtotal 14 — - 218 232
28,357 76,250 27 11.235 115,869
HTM investments
Government bonds - 10.083 - 3,486 13,569
Private bonds 3895 - — - 3,895
3.895 10,083 - 3,480 17.464
Loans and receivablcs
Receivables from customers
Commercial loans 79.592 154,181 27.538 - 261 301
Residential mortgage loans 866 24280 302 - 25,448
Auto loans 1310 11445 26 - -12,781
Trade 6,659 14,334 4454 - 25,747
Others 10,768 416 32 — 11,216
99 495 204.656 32352 - 336,503
Unquoted debt securities — - — 1,325 1.325
Accounts receivable - - - 2,498 2,498
Accrued interast receivable 480 2620 115 98 3313
Sales contract receivable - - - 275 275
Other receivables — - - 60 60
90 973 207,276 32 467 4,256 343974
Others — — - 25662 25662
#146,746 £442363 #32.494 £49.101 R670,734
Breakdown of restructured receivables from customers by class are shown below:
Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Commercial loans 5,982 P7.289 £5,282 B6559
Residential mortgage loans 174 203 7 100
Auto loans 1 - - -
Others 16 46 4 —
6,173 R7.538 5,357 #6659
Aging analysis of past due but not impaired loans and receivables is shown below:
Consolidated
Within Over
30days  31-6tdays  61-90davs 91-180 days 180 days Taotal
2012
Receivables from customers
Commercial loans P66Y P54 P30 24 E ] PR75
Residential mortgage loans 2,140 652 199 37 143 3,171
Auto loans 2,479 955 389 298 619 4,740
Trade - - - 1 il 12
Others 239 S18 390 92 1.465 2,701
Receivables from customers - nct of
unearned discounts and capitalized
mterest 5,527 2,176 1,008 452 2,336 11,499
Accrued interest receivable 39 15 8 6 38 106
Accounts receivable 17 2 [ 2 278 300
Sales contract receivable 30 10 5 4 11 60
#5613 £2,203 #1,022 Pd64 2,663 #11,965
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Consolidaled

Within Over
30 days 31-60 davs 61-90 days  91-180 davs 180 days Total
2011
Receivables from customers
Commercial loans B171 B25 #24 B23 B405 PRG35
Residential martgage loans 33 9 12 25 152 23
Auto loans i0 14 44 289 650 1,607
Trade 2 - - - 2 4
Others 487 319 22 75 1.733 25636
Receivables from customers - net of
unearned discounts and capitalized
imerest 703 368 102 417 2943 4,533
Accounts receivable 2 1 1 2 279 285
Acerued interest receivable i - 1 3 44 49
Sales contract receivabie 58 g 3 | 29 99
R764 8377 BI107 £423 £1205 P4.966

Parent Company

Within Over
30 days 31-60 davs 61-90 davs  91-180 davs 180 days Total
2012
Reccivables from customers
Commercial loans £5 B12 P25 Bi2 P64 $118
Residential mortgage loans 6 - - - 114 120
Auto loans - - - - 46 46
Trade - - - 2 - 2
Others - - — —~ — —
Receivables from customers - net of
unearned discounts and capitalized
interest 11 12 25 14 224 286
Accrued intergst receivable — - - — 3 3
Bl B12 #I15 P14 $227 £289
2011
Receivables from customers
Commercial loans £21 B25 £19 B26 R406 B497
Residential mortgage loans 6 - - - 124 130
Auto Joans - - - - 34 34
Trade 2 - - - i 3
Others 6 — — — 2 3
Receivabies from customers - net of
unearned discounts and
capitaltzed interest 35 25 19 26 367 672
Accrued interest receivable - - — — 4 4
B35 B25 B9 B26 B371 BO76

The Group holds collateral against loans and receivables in the form of real estate and chattel
mortgages, guarantees, and other registered securities over assets. Estimates of fair value are
based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing and are regularly updated
according to internal lending policies and regulatory guidelines. Generally, collateral is not held
over loans and advances to banks except for reverse repurchase agreements. Collateral usually is
not held against investment securities, and no such collateral was held as of December 31, 2012
and 2011.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising from the
Group's inability to meet its obligations when they become due.

The Group manages its liquidity risk through analyzing net funding requirements under alternative
scenarios, diversification of funding sources and contingency planning. Specifically for the Parent
Company, it utilizes a diverse range of sources of funds, although short-term deposits made with
its network of domestic branches comprise the majority of such funding. To ensure that funding
requirements are met, the Parent Company manages its liquidity risk by holding sufficient liquid
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assets of appropriate quality. 1t also maintains a balanced loan portfolio that is repriced on a
regular basis. Deposits with banks are made on a short-term basis.

In the Parent Company, the Treasury Group uses liquidity forecast models to estimate its cash
flow needs based on its actual contractual obligations under normal and extraordinary
circumstances. RSK prepares monthly Maximum Cumulative Outflow (MCO) reports, which
measure the liquidity mismatch risk. In addition, the Parent Company performs liquidity stress
testing on a regular basis. The Group’s financial institution subsidiaries (excluding insurance
companies) similarly prepare their respective MCO reports. These are reported to the Parent
Company’s ALCO and RMC on a monthly basis.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of financial instruments and gross-settled
derivatives based on contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Financial assets
Analysis of equity securities at FVPL into maturity groupings is based on the expected date on

which these assets will be realized. For other financial assets, the analysis into maturity grouping
is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity

date or if earlier the expected date the assets will be realized.

Financial liabilities

The maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. When counterparty has a choice of when the amount is paid, the
liability is allocated to the earliest period in which the Group can be required to pay.
Consolidated
Lpto 1to 3to 6 to Beyond
On demand 1 month 3 Months 6 menths 12 menths 1 Year Total
2012
Financial Assets
Cash and other cash items £24,382 - P £ [ P-- P24.382
Due from BSI® 115,278 16,605 - - — — 131,283
Due from other banks 20,721 1,478 251 68 10 - 22,558
Inerbank loans receivable
and SPURA 2,548 12,943 3,905 3,436 616 - 23,448
Financial assets at FVPL
Held-for-trading 57 8,871 56,364 67 — — 65,359
Derivative assets*
Trading:
Receive - 45,525 27,930 4817 2,627 1,447 82,346
Pay - 45,052 27,271 4,537 2,421 1,125 80,406
— 473 659 280 206 322 1,940
AFS investments _ 3,445 2,203 5,155 14,511 131,432 156,416
HTM investments — 840 1,434 3,103 5,182 87,278 97,837
Loans and receivables:
Receivables from customers 4,863 113,106 67,941 34,819 35,435 331,557 587,721
Unquoted debt sccurities - 16 42 101 1,472 8,240 3871
Accounts reeeivable 3,766 76 9 1 6 246 4,044
Accrued interest receivable 6,442 331 288 45 135 115 7,356
Sales contract recetvable 37 7 53 26 53 504 950
Other recervables 40 394 1,058 - - - 1,492
Other assets
Returned checks and other cash
items 18 - 62 - - - 80
Residual value of leased assets ] 27 21 32 33 440 609
Pledged certificate of time
deposit - - - - - 452 452
Miscellaneous — 7 4 5 14 492 522
P£178,098 $157,689 £134,324 $47,138 R57,723 B561,378 1,136,350

(Forward)
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Consotidated
Upto I to Jto 6 to Beyond
On demand 1 month 3 Months 6 months 12 months 1 Year Total
Financial Liabilities
Non-derivative tiahilities
Deposit liahilities
Demand #106,229 | o E o f - £106,229
Savings 305,034 — — — - - 305,034
Time — 228,853 56,046 12,872 17,094 17,734 332,599
411,263 228,853 56,046 12,872 17,094 17,734 743,862
Bills payable and SSURA - 51,223 22,326 5,284 3,846 15,023 97,702
Manager's checks and demand
drafts outstanding 3,489 - - - - - 3,489
Accrued interest payable - 879 249 232 87 364 1,811
Accrued other expenses 4,100 117 - 595 2 17 4,831
Bonds payable - - - - 602 14,590 15,192
Subordinated debt — 106 156 263 6,027 10,450 17,002
Other liabilities
Bills purchased - contra 15217 - — - — - 15,217
Accounts payable 23 3,996 ~ 1,569 548 - 6,136
Outstanding acceptances - 395 346 111 107 9 368
Marginal deposits - - 152 - - 1,694 1.846
Deposits on lease contracts - 8 27 42 167 588 832
Dividends pavabie 26 40 - - - - 66
Notes payable - -~ - - - 517 517
Deposits for keys 1 - - - - - 1
Miscellaneous 2 53 — - - - 55
434,121 285,670 79,302 20,968 28,480 60,986 909,527
Derivative liabilities*
Trading:
Pay - 24,933 13,554 3115 6,584 5,237 53,423
Receive - 24,239 13,081 2,809 5,933 3,932 49,994
- 694 473 306 651 1,305 3,429
Lean commitments and
financial guarantees 56,930 4,589 8,277 5,579 6,278 5,301 86,954
£491,051 $290,953 £88,052 #26,853 B35,409 R67,592 £999.910
2011
Financial Assets
Cash and other cash items 20,934 P B B P f 220,934
Dug from BSP 43,620 111.274 1,810 - - — 156,704
Due from other banks 24,542 5874 106 1.594 4 — 32,120
Interbank loans receivable and
SPURA 18,797 5132 439 - - — 24368
Fimancial assets at FVPL
Held-for-trading - 1.490 — 2,386 - — 3.876
Derivative assets*
Trading:
Receive 55 21,429 12,805 6.138 3,597 711l 44,735
Pay — 21,138 12,458 5.952 3,162 308 43018
55 291 347 186 435 403 1.717
AFS investments - 221 978§ 16,706 2,643 152949 173,497
HTM investments - 347 1,987 3,220 4,273 59,435 109,262
Laans and reeetvables:
Receivables from customers 3,540 81,586 62,847 38,992 33,824 291,521 514,310
Unquoted debt securities - - - 1,299 40 21,577 22916
Accounts receivable 3,499 462 1 1 k) 259 4,227
Accrued interest receivable 6,152 275 250 102 19 253 7,051
Sales contract reecivable 46 18 34 51 103 750 1,002
Other recervables 69 3} - - 42 177 294
Other assets
Returned checks and other
cash iterns - - 67 - - - 67
Residual value of leased assets - 13 15 22 60 367 417
Miscellancous ~ — — — — 917 917
2123274 #206.589 P6R.88 I Pod, 559 B41.448 P568.548 B1.073.699

(Forward)
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Consolidated
Upto lo 3w 6to Beyond
On demand 1 month 3 Months 6 months 12 months ! Year Total
Financial Liabilities
Non-derivative liabilities
Depesit habilities
Demand £77,589 B P B B B 877,589
Savings 283,011 - - - - - 283.011
Time — 230,556 54,232 12,415 8,905 14,778 320.886
360,600 230.556 54,232 12.415 8,905 14,778 681,486
Bills payable and SSURA - 51.186 30,358 5865 4,808 5917 102,134
Manager's checks and demand
drafis outstanding 2610 - - - - - 2610
Accrued interest payable 355 342 446 1 27 839 2020
Accrued other expenses 4,295 16 38 - 70 43 4,582
Bonds payable - - 33 36 112 5.869 6,070
Subordinated debt - 255 84 340 9,179 12,226 22.084
Other liabilities
Bills purchased - contra 10,695 - - - - - 10,695
Accounts payabie 892 3710 754 - 259 339 5954
Outstanding acceptances - 303 620 86 55 - 1,064
Marginal deposits 276 - 98 - - - 374
[eposits on lease contracts - 6 18 34 101 438 597
Dividends pavable - 3 - - - - 31
Miscellancous — — -~ — — 488 488
379723 286,505 86,701 18.807 23516 44,937 840,189
Derivative liabilities*
Trading:
Pay - 23511 21.009 11,874 5,713 6,939 69,046
Recelve - 23,124 20,643 11.716 5,504 5,729 66.716
- 387 366 158 209 1.210 2330
Lean commitments and
financial guarantees 51.541 2429 7.299 31,995 6,290 2,422 73,977
B431,264 B289.321 Po4.366 £22.06] £30015 B48 569 Po16,496
Parent Company
Up to It 3to 6to Beyond
On demand 1 month 3 months 6 months 12 months 1 Year Taotal
2012
Financial Assets
Cash and other cash items $21,540 - P B - - £21,540
Dug from BSP 96,014 15,504 - - - - 518
Due from other banks 7,873 - - - - - 7.873
Interbank loans receivable and
SPURA - 9,887 821 2,728 1,661 - 15,097
Financial assets at 'VPI.
Held-for-trading — - 56,364 — - — 56,364
Derivative assers*
Trading:
Receive - 45,525 27,930 4,817 2,627 1,447 82,346
Pay — 45,052 27,271 4,537 2,421 1,125 80,406
- 473 659 280 206 322 1,940
AFS investments - 2,718 2,036 4,544 13,864 97,165 120,327
HTM investments - 822 1,371 2,298 4,111 24,890 33,492
Loans and receivables
Receivables from customers 2,643 93291 65,137 28,940 26,569 236,595 453,175
Unquoted debt securities - - - - 357 LI73 1,530
Accounts reccivable 3,070 - - - - - 3,070
Accrued interest receivable 5,646 - - - - - 5,646
Sales contract receivable 34 7 18 24 50 141 274
Other receivables 168 - - - - - 168
Other assets
Returned checks and other cash
items - - 63 - - - 63
Pledge certificate of time
deposit - - - - - 452 452
Miscellaneous - - - - - 426 426
£136,988 R122,702 £126,469 $£38.814 P46,818 ®i61,164 £832,955
{Forward)
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Parent Company
Upto 1to 3to 6 to Beyond
On demand 1 month 3 months 6 months 12 months 1 Year Total
Financial Liabilities
Non-derivative liabilities
Deposit Lzabilitics
Demand Fo4,516 [ o o P [ o P $94,516
Savings 293,934 - - - - - 293,934
Time — 177,043 80,727 11,443 6,374 897 246,484
388,450 177,043 50,727 11,443 6,374 897 634,934
Biiis pavable and SSURA - 16,228 - -~ - - 16,228
Manager's checks and demand
drafts eutstanding 2,732 - - - - - 2,732
Accrued interest payabie - 597 112 23 13 214 959
Accrued other expenses 3,338 - - - - - 3,338
Subordimated debt - 107 84 191 5,882 4,669 10,933
Gither habiiities
Bills purchased - contra 15,156 - - - - - 15,156
Accounts pavable 3.6 - - - - 3.691
Qutstanding acceptances - 395 346 111 107 9 968
Marginai deposits - - 152 - - - 152
409,676 198,061 51,421 11,768 12,376 5,789 689,091
Derivative liahilities*
Trading:
Pay - 24,933 13,524 2,648 6,523 2,805 50,433
Receive — 24,239 13,073 2,388 5,908 1,664 47,272
— 694 451 260 615 1,141 3,161
Loan commitments and financial
guarantees 1,682 3373 8,269 5,564 5,788 4860 29,536
£411,358 #202,128 £60,141 £17,592 18,779 £11,790 #721,788
2011
Financial Assets
Cash and other cash items £16983 £ B P- B P £16,985
Due from BSP 39316 107 487 — - - - 146,803
Due from other banks 13,310 - — - — — 13.310
Interbank loans receivable and
SPURA - 2.259 659 133 179 - 3,230
Financial assets at FVPL
Held-for-trading -~ - - 2.386 — — 2,386
Derivative assets*
Trading:
Receive - 21429 12,805 6138 3.551 711 44634
Pay ~ 21,138 12,458 5,952 3,162 308 43,018
- 291 347 186 389 403 1,616
AFS investments - 123 783 1,034 2.643 139,655 144,238
HTM investments - - 1.295 877 2.196 27.273 31.641
Loans and receivables
Receivables from custemers 2,707 63719 50422 32,878 25,963 219465 404,136
Unguoted debt securitics - - - - 32 4.719 4,751
Accounts receivabie 3455 - - - - 3455
Accrued interest receivable 5,241 — — — - - 5,241
Sales contract receivabic 673 9 17 25 53 173 950
Other receivables 62 - - - - - 62
Cther assets
Returned checks and other
cash items - - 47 - - - 47
Misceliancous — — — — — 917 917
£81.749 £173.888 862,570 £37.519 B31.457 #392,605 2779,788

(Forward)
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Parent Company
Upto | to 3to 6 to Beyond
On demand 1 month 3 months 6 months 12 months 1 Year Total
Financial Liabilities
Non-derivative liabilities
Deposit liabilities
Demand 271,667 B B B P B 871,667
Savings 272,331 - - - - - 272.331
Time - 174,759 45618 10,680 6,323 751 238,131
343,998 174,759 45618 10,680 6,323 751 582,129
Bills payable and SSURA - 13,244 353 1 1 3 13,602
Manager's checks and demand
drafts outstanding 1.955 - - - - - 1,955
Accrued interest payable - 4 360 3 2 838 1,207
Accrued other expenses 2742 - - - - - 2,742
Subordinated debt - 255 R4 340 9179 10,933 20,791
Other lialities
Bills purchased - contra 10,630 - - - - - 10,630
Accounts payable - 3,693 - - - - 3,693
Qutstanding acceptances - 303 621 R6 54 - 1,064
Marginal deposits — — 97 - - - 97
359,325 192.258 47,133 11,110 15559 12525 637,910
Derivative liabilities*
Trading;
Pay -~ 23311 20,994 11.849 8812 4.570 69,536
Receive — 22,927 20,638 11,708 8617 3497 67,388
- 384 356 140 195 1,073 2,148
Loan commitments and financial
guarantees 1.569 2429 7.299 3,996 6 2690 2,012 23,595
£360,894 B195.071 P54,788 P£15,246 #22.044 #5610 B663,653

*Dogs not include derivatives embedded in financial and nonfinancial contracts

Market Risk

Market risk is the possibility of loss to future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may
result from changes in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may
change as a result of changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and
other market factors. The Parent Company’s market risk originates from its holdings in foreign
currencies, debt securities and derivatives transactions. The Parent Company manages market risk
by segregating its balance sheet into a trading book and a banking book. ALCO, chaired by the
Parent Company’s Chairman is the senior review and decision-making body for the management
of all related market risks. The Parent Company enforces a set of risk limits to properly monitor
and manage the market risks. The risk limits are approved by the BOD. The RSK serves under
the RMC and performs daily market risk analyses to ensure compliance with the Parent
Company’s policies. The Treasury Group manages asset/liability risks arising from both banking
book and trading operations in financial markets.

Market Risk - Trading Book

In measuring the potential loss in its trading portfolio, the Parent Company uses Value-at-Risk
(VaR) as a primary tool. The VaR method is a procedure for estimating portfolio losses exceeding
some specified proportion based on a statistical analysis of historical market price trends,
correlations and volatilities. VaR estimates the potential decline in the value of a portfolio, under
normal market conditions, for a given “confidence level” over a specified holding period,
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VaR methodology assumptions and parameters

The Parent Company is using Historical Simulation Method to compute the VaR. This method
assumes that asset returns in the future will have the same movement that occurred within the
specified historical data set. However, this assumption may or may not cover all possible range of
future outcomes, especially those of an exceptional nature that would occur in stressed market
conditions, In calculating VaR, the Parent Company uses a 99.00% confidence level. This means
that, statistically, losses on trading operations will exceed VaR on 1 out of 100 trading days. The
validity of the VaR model is verified through a monthly back testing, which examines how
frequently both actual and hypothetical daily losses exceed daily VaR. The Parent Company
measures and monitors the VaR and profit and loss on a daily basis. The results of the monthly
backtesting are reported to the ALCO and RMC. The financial institution subsidiaries with
trading portfolios adopted the Parent Company methodology in 2011.

A summary of the VaR position of the trading portfolio of the Parent Company, PSBank and
FMIC is as follows:

Parent Company

Jan - May 22, May 23 - December 31,
Rates Fixed FX Rates Fixed FX
and FX income Options and FX Income Options
As of December 31, 2012

December 28 P189.12 P260.93 P7.71
Average P176.59 £161.33 P1.63 191.81 149.81 3.94
Highest 234.62 292,02 6.15 273.07 384.04 14.42
Lowest 143.40 32.67 0.00 135.79 60.79 0.02

[ Correlared Rates and FX VaR and FX Options VaR; Uncorrelated Fived Income VaR
2Fully correlated VaR across alf trading products

Rates and Foreign Exchange (FX) VaR is the correlated VaR of the following products: FX Spot,
Outright Forward, NDF, FX Swaps, IRS and CCS. Prior to May 23, 2012, the Fixed Income VaR
is derived by summing up the VaR of these products: peso and foreign currency bonds, bond
forwards and credit default swaps. However, with the implementation of a system which allows
correlation across all products in the portfolio, correlated VaRs for the Fixed Income book have
been used. A correlated VaR can give a better measure of the probable portfolio losses as it takes
inte account the natural hedging existing within the portfolio.

FMIC PSBank
FXTNs HET
EQUITIES PHP USD PHP USD FX
As of December 31, 2012
December 28 B37.40 P23.34 USD 117 o B £1.03
Average 36.31 34.55 0.23 3.65 2.51 1.04
Highest 49.50 216.58 1.21 13.14 10.39 1.95
Lowest 18.40 1.62 0.00 0.01 0.22 0.02

FMIC uses an off-the-shelf tool to compute for its Fixed Income VaR while the equity VaR is
computed using Bloomberg,

PSBank computes for the Fixed [ncome VaR by currency. The total fixed income VaR of PSBank
is an aggregation of the peso and USD fixed income portfolio VaR without considering
correlation. VaR was calculated for settled transactions until October 15, 2012, when PSBank
implemented trade date monitoring. On the other hand, correlated VaR is computed for the FX
position which is comprised primarily of USD and a small amount of EURO.
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Parent Company

April 1 -July 11, July 12 - December 31, PSBank FMIC
Rates and Rates and Rates and
Foreign Fixed Foreign Fixed Foreign Fixed Fixed
Exchange [ncome Exchange Income Exchange Income Income
As of December 31,2011
December 29 R2158 2311 204 B 207
Average B304 1 B58.5 2895 75.0 06 73 26.4
Highest 775.5 1128 414.5 1599 1.8 758 1854
Lowest 3123 26.4 173.9 15.8 0.0 0.0 0.1

istart of Market Risk Limits Package
2/historical interest rate movemenis changed fram relative ta absolute change to reflect market convention

The limitations of the VaR methodology are recognized by supplementing VaR limits with other
position and sensitivity limit structures and by doing stress testing analysis. These processes
address potential product concentration risks, monitor portfolio vulnerability and give the
management an early advice if an actual loss goes beyond what is deemed to be tolerable to the
bank, even before the VaR limit is hit.

The Parent Company and PSBank perform stress testing on a quarterly basis while FMIC
performs stress testing on a daily basis to complement the VaR methodology. The stress testing
results of the Parent Company are reported to the ALCO and subsequently to the RMC and the
BOD.

Market Risk - Banking Book
The Group follows a prudent policy on managing its assets and liabilities to ensure that exposure
to fluctuations in interest rates are kept within acceptable limits.

The Parent Company measures its interest rate risk exposures through repricing/maturity schedule
that distributes rate-sensitive assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet positions into predefined time
bands according to their maturity or time remaining to their repricing. The sum of rate-sensitive
assets per time band is referred to as rate-sensitive assets (RSA). While the sum of all rate-
sensitive liabilities per time band is called rate-sensitive liabilities (RSL).

Gap analysis provides an approximation of the magnitude of balance sheet exposed to changes in
interest rates. To evaluate the earnings exposure, the RSL in each time band are subtracted from
corresponding RSA to produce a repricing gap for that time band.

Earnings-at-risk is an interest rate risk measure of the earnings decline as a result of a change in
the level of interest rates. It is a tool used to evaluate the sensitivity of the accrual portfolio to a
change in interest rates over next 12 months.

The table below shows the earnings-at-risk profile of the Parent Company and certain subsidiaries
as of December 3!, 2012 and 2011:

Parent
Company FMIC PSBank MCC  ORIX Meiro Total
2012 (£1,106.96) (#169.02) (#32.03) (®#27.86) (®0.17) (R1,386.06)

2011 B2572.93 (P472.00) (B322.44) (240.00) (P0.40) £1,738.09
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For purposes of PFRS 7, the disclosed interest rate sensitivity analysis measures the impact on
profit or loss (for rate-sensitive assets and labilities, including items recorded at fair value through
profit or loss) and on equity (for AFS investments) that would arise from possible change in
interest rates at the statement of financial position date.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the probability of loss to earnings or capital arising from changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the current
foreign currency exchange rates on its financial performance and cash flows. Foreign currency
liabilities generally consist of foreign currency deposits in the Group’s FCDU account. Foreign
currency deposits are generally used to fund the Group’s foreign currency-denominated loan and
investment portfolio in the FCDU. Banks are required by the BSP to match the foreign currency
liabilities with the foreign currency assets held in FCDUs. [n addition, the BSP requires a 30.00%
liquidity reserve on all foreign currency liabilities held in the FCDU. Outside the FCDU, the
Group has additional foreign currency assets and liabilities in its foreign branch network.

The Group’s policy is to maintain foreign currency exposure within acceptable limits and within
existing regulatory guidelines.

The following table sets forth, for the year indicated, the impact of reasonably possible changes in
the USD exchange rate and other currencies per Philippine peso on pre-tax income and equity:

Consolidated

Parent Company

2012 011 2012 2011
Effect on Eflect on Effect on Etfect on
Change in profit Change i profit Change in profit Effect Change in profit
curreney hefore  Effect on CurteTicy before Effecton  eurrency before on currency before  Effect on
Curreney ratein % tax equity  ratein"a tax cquily  rate in o tax cquity rate in %o tax Sty
LsD L0 (B76.13) 101 SLOBE (BS54T) (#).46} -1.00%  (R78.14) 0,94 SLO0%% (P8T.3T) (P0LAS)
ELR 1A 18.02 S 1LO0%% (561} =1.00% 18.02 - =1.00%, 1560
Py BREH 12.87 S 100% 144 PO 12.87 - =1.00% 144
GBP =1.00%, 2.2 - 1.00% 21 1100, 2.02 - CLO0% 021
Others C1L00%% 89.06 1 00% 4532 [RRUIEN 49.00 - -1.00% 4532 -
LiST -1.00% 76.13 (1.0n -1.00% 3547 046 -1.00% 78.14 {0.94) -1.00% 73T .43
ELR -1.00% (18.02) SO0 501 -1.00%, (18.02) - -L00% el
IPY -1.00% (i2.87) -0 Y] -LO0%s (12.87) - -1.00% (144 -
GBP -1.00% (2.02) =00y .20 -100%, (2.02) - -1 .00% 10.21)
Others -1.00%, (89.006) -0 4332y -LO00%  {R9.06) - -1 (453

Information relating to Parent Company’s currency derivatives is included in Note 8. As of
December 31, 2012 and 201 1. the Parent Company has outstanding foreign currency spot
transactions {in equivalent peso amounts) of 9.2 billion and P8.3 billion. respectively (sold). and
£8.6 billion and £7.5 billion, respectively (bought).

The impact on the Parent Company’s equity already excludes the impact on transactions affecting

the profit and loss.

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to ensure that it complies with
externally imposed capital requirements. and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and to maximize shareholders” value.
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The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. [n order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment to sharcholders. return
capital structure, or issue capital securities. No changes werc made in the objectives, policies and
processes from the previous year.

Regutatory Qualifying Capital

Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Parent Company’s compliance with
regulatory requirements and ratios is based on the amount of the Parent Company’s “unimpaired
capital” (regulatory net worth) as reported to the BSP, which is determined on the basis of
regulatory accounting policies that differ from PFRS in some respects.

In addition. the risk-based capital ratio of a bank, expressed as a percentage of qualifying capital to
risk-weighted assets, should not be less than 10.00% for both stand-alone basis (head office and
branches) and consolidated basis (the Parent Company and subsidiaries engaged in financial allied
undertakings but excluding insurance companies). Qualifying capital and risk-weighted assets are
computed based on BSP regutations. Risk-weighted assets consist of total assets less cash on
hand, due from BSP, loans covered by hold-out on or assignment of deposits. loans or acceptances
under letters of credit to the extent covered by margin deposits and other non-risk items
determined by the Monetary Board {MB) of the BSP.

The BSP issued Circular No. 538 which revised risk based capital adequacy framework for the
Philippine Banking system to conform with BASEL 1] recommendation and took effect on
July 1, 2007. The details of CAR as of December 31. as reported to the BSP, follow:

Consolidated Parent Company

22 1 2012 2011
Tier 1 caphial #100,056 B87.429 296,180 B84.329
Less: Required deductions 1.187 1.143 20,725 18,880
Sub-total 98,869 86.286 75,455 65,649
Excess from Tier 2 deducted o Tier | Captal* - {7.061) -
Net Tier | Capital 98,369 56.286 68,394 65.64
Tier 2 capital 19,588 23924 13,664 21,5337
Less: Reguired deductions 1,187 1.143 20,725 18,880
Sub-total 18,401 22781 (7,061} 2457
Cacess of Tier 2 deducted te Tier 1 Capital® - : 7,061
Net Tier 2 Capital 18,401 22,781 - 2457
Tonal Qualhifyimp Capital P117,270 2109067 68,304 #68. 106
e o Faor 2 Cupitcd wre capped cr s total gross antowns afd ey excesy sdall be dediected from Tier { Capited
Credil Risk-Weighted Assets B571.063 B487.794 8424347 B35t 060
Market Risk-Weighted Assets 62,586 34,244 48,903 52,406
Operational Risk-Weighted Assers 86,227 86 401 53,184 56,953
Risk Weighted Assels 719,876 628,439 526434 460428
her 1 capital ranio 13.73% 13.73% 12.99%, 14.26%
Total capital ratio 16.29% 17.30% 12.99%, 14 79%

The regulatory gualifying capital of the Parent Company consists of Tier ! (core) capital, which

comprises paid-up common stock, HT 1 Capital, surplus including current year profit, surplus
reserves and non-controlling interest less required deductions such as unsecured credit
accommodations to DOSRI, deferred income tax, and goodwill. Certain adjustments are made to
PFRS-based results and reserves, as prescribed by the BSP. The other component of regulatory
capital is Tier 2 (supplementary) capital, which includes unsecured subordinated debz, general loan
loss provision, and net unrealized gains on AFS equity securities.
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The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with all externally imposed
capital requirements throughout the year.

The issuance of BSP Circular No. 639 covering the Internal Capital Adcquacy Assessment
Process (ICAAPY in 2009 supplements the BSP's risk-based capital adequacy framework under
Circular No. 338. In compliance with this new circular, the Group has adopted and developed its
ICAAP framework to ensure that appropriate level and quality of capital are maintained by the
Group. Under this framework, the assessment of risks extends beyond the Pillar 1 set of credit,
market and operational risks and onto other risks deemed material by the Group. The level and
structure of capital are assessed and determined in light of the Group’s business environment,
plans, performance, risks and budget; as well as regulatory edicts. BSP requires submission of an
ICAAP document every January 31. The Group has complied with this requirement.

Fair Value Measurement

The methods and assumptions used by the Group in estimating the fair value of financial
Instruments are:

Cash and other cash items, due from BSP and other banks and interbank loans receivable and
SPURA - Carrying amounts approximate fair values in view of the relatively short-term maturities
of these instruments.

Trading and investment securities - Fair values of debt securities {financial assets at FVPL, AFS
and HTM investments) and equity investments are generally based on quoted market prices.
Where the debt securities are not quoted or the market prices are not readily available. the Group
obtained valuations from independent parties offering pricing services, used adjusted quoted
market prices of comparable investments, or applied discounted cash flow methodelogies. For
equity investments that are not quoted. the investments are carried at cost less allowance for
impairment losses due to the unpredictable nature of future cash flows and the lack of suitable
methods of arriving at a reliable fair vajue.

Derivative instruments - Fair values are estimated based on quoted market prices, prices provided
by independent parties, or prices derived using acceptable valuation models.

Loans and receivablcs - Fair values of the Group’s loans and receivables are estimated using the
discounted cash flow methodology, using current incremental lending rates for similar types of
loans. Where the instrument reprices on a quarterly basis or has a relatively short maturity. the
carrying amounts approximate fair values.

Liabilities - Fair values are estimated using the discounted cash flow methodology using the
Group’s current incremental borrowing rates tor similar borrowings with maturities consistent
with those remaining for the liability being valued, if any. The carrying amount of demand and
savings deposit liabilities approximates fair value considering that these are due and demandable.
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The following tables summarize the carrying amounts and fair values of the financial assets and

liabilities:

2012

Consolidated

Parent Company

Carrying Value Fair Value  Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial Assets
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 8)
Held-for-trading
[ebt securities
Government P61.,648 261,648 P54,385 P54.585
Private 501 801 301 8(H
Equity securities - quoted 1,933 1.933 — -
Derivative assets 2,339 2,339 2,249 2,249
66,721 66,721 57,035 37,635
AFS investments (Nate 8)
Debt sequrities
Government 143,753 103,753 86,176 86,176
Privaic 16,612 16,612 15,942 15942
Equity securities
CQuated 2314 2,314 395 395
Unquoted 279 279 61 61
122,958 122,958 102,574 102.574
HTM investments {Note R)
Government 37.481 45,795 17,1587 21,498
Treasury notes 9.635 12,162 - -
Private 4,335 4.333 4,334 4,333
51451 62,290 21,491 25,831
l.aans and receivables
Cash and sther cash items 24,382 24,382 21,540 21,540
ue from BSP 131,278 131,278 111,515 111,515
Due frnm other banks 22,5587 22,557 7.873 7.873
Interbank loans receivable and
SPURA (Nawe 7)
interbank loans receivable 18,399 18,399 15,046 15,0146
SPURA 4,993 4,993 — -
23,392 23,392 15,046 15,046
Loans and receivables - net (Nate 9)
Receivables from customers
Commercial loans 331,937 335,639 307,057 309,454
Residential mortgage loans 53.137 53.423 30,753 31,030
Auto loans 45,837 46,849 14,705 14,705
Trade 21,377 21,377 21,346 21,346
Others 54.871 56,458 15,615 15,615
507,159 513,746 389.476 392,150
Ungquoted debt securitics 6,820 7.490 831 831
Accounts recetvable 2,588 2,588 2,169 2,169
Accrugd interest regeivable 5,321 8321 3963 3963
Sales contract receivable 602 597 236 236
Other receivables 1,491 1.491 166 166
523,981 531,233 396,841 399,515
Other assets (Note 14)
Interoffice float iems 928 928 665 665
Residual value of leased assets 609 559 - -
Returned checks and other cash items 30 80 63 63
(Hher investments 13 13 10 10
Investment in SPVs - - - -
Pledged certificate of time deposit 452 452 452 452
Miscellaneous 449 424 353 353
2,531 2,456 1,543 1,543
Total financial assets £969.251 PYR7.267 B736,058 P743.072

(Forward)
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2012

Consolidated

Parent Company

Carrying Value

Fair Value

Carrying Value

Fair Value

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at IFVP].

Derivative liabilities 6,692 P6.692 P6,425 P6.425
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Deposit liabilities
Demand 106,229 106,229 94,516 94,516
Savings 305.034 305,034 293,934 293,934
Time 327,431 330,682 245,969 245,969
738,694 741,945 634,419 634,419
Bills payable and SSURA 97,108 97,463 16,223 16,223
Managers checks and demand drafts
outstanding 3,489 3,489 2,732 2732
Accrued interest and other expenses
{Note 18) 6042 6,042 4,297 4.297
Bonds payable (Note 19) 11,834 12,473 - -
Subordinated debt (Nute 20) 14243 14,686 9977 9.866
Other Liabilities (Note 21
Rills purchased - contra 15,217 15,217 15,156 15,156
Accounts payable 6,136 6,136 3.691 3.691
Marginal deposits 1.846 1.846 152 152
Cutstanding aceeptances 968 968 968 968
Deposits on lease contracts 832 768 - -
[Dividends payablc 66 66 - -
Miscellaneous 544 544 - -
25,609 25,545 19,967 14,967
Total financial Labilities BOO4.311 P38 935 P694.040 £093,929
2011
Financial Assels
Financial assets at FVPL. (Note 8)
Held-for-trading
Debt sccuritics
Government #2330 B2.3350) 22 101 B2.101
Private 254 254 254 234
BSP 3 3 3 3
Equity securities - quoted 1.041] 1.041 - -
Derivative assets 2.340 2.340 2.239 2239
6 188 6.188 4.5397 4.397
AFS investments (Note 8)
Debt securities
Javernment 126955 126955 102,202 102.202
Private 14,093 14.093 13,435 13,435
Equity sceuritics -
Quated 1754 1.754 278 278
Unguoted 258 255 61 6i
143,057 143.057 115,976 115976
HTM investiments (Note 83
Government 35,496 41.394 13.56Y 16.588
Treasury notes 8.066 9.787 - -
Private 5.895 3.909 3.895 3.909
47,457 55.290 17 464 20,497
1.oans and recetvables
Cash and other cash ilems 20,954 200,954 10,985 16,985
Due from BSP 156,337 156,537 146.636 146.636
Due fram other banks 32.093 32.093 13310 13,310

(Forward)
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2011

Consolidated

Parent Company

Carrving Value

Fair Value

Carrving Valuc

Fair Value

[nterbank loans receivable and
SPURA {(Note 7)

Interbank ioans receivable #0327 P9.327 p3222 B3 222
SPURA 15.040 13,040 -
24367 24.367 3,222 3.222
Loans and receivables - net (Note 6)
Receivables from customers
Commercial loans 283128 285,089 265756 268.650
Residential mortgage loans 438135 45114 25.7%0 26,018
Auto loans 37.961 40.560 12,793 12.793
Trade 25991 23.99] 230991 25.991
Others 44,736 47.084 11.236 11.236
435.651 444,438 341,566 344 688
Unquoted debt securities 11333 11,335 2.038 2.038
Accrued interest receivable 4922 4.922 3.431 3431
Aceounts receivabie 27372 2772 2.519 2.519
Sales contract receivable 728 728 707 707
Other receivables 262 292 59 59
435,700 464,487 350,320 353,442
Other assets (Note 14}
Interoffice float items 1.127 1.127 1.093 1.093
Residual value of leased assets 417 417 - -
Returned checks and other cash items 67 67 47 47
Other investments 14 E} 10 0
[nvestment in SPVs - - - _
Misecllancous G917 917 9i7 917
2.542 2.542 2.067 2.067
Total financial assets BE88 8G7 #905.517 R670.577 B676.732
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities al FVPL
Derivative Liabilities #2819 p2819 P2 689 22,689
Financial Habilitics at amortized cost
Deposit Habilities
1}emand 77380 77.586 71.607 71.667
Savings 283.011 283.0N 272331 272331
Time 320.393 322232 237.638 237.638
680,993 682.832 381,636 381.636
Bilis payable and SSURA 96,637 90679 13.600 13.600
Managers checks and demand drafis
cutstanding 2610 2610 1.955 ].9353
Accrued interest and other expenses
(Note 18) 6.602 6.002 3.949 3949
Bonds pavable {Note 19) 4.875 4875 - -
Subordinated debt (Note 20) 19,735 19507 18.442 18.027
Other habitities (Note 21)
Bitls purchased - contra 10.695 10.695 10,630 10.630
Accounts pavable 3.954 3954 3.693 3.693
Marginal deposits 374 374 97 97
Outstanding acceptances 1.064 1.064 1064 1.064
Deposits on lease contracts 397 487 - -
Dividends payable 31 31 -
Miscellangous 188 488 — -
19.203 19.093 15,484 15484
T'otal financial liabiiities £836.494 £838.017 P637.755 £637.340

The following table shows financial instruments recognized at fair value. analyzed among those

whose fair value is based on;

e Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

e Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (L.evel 2); and
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o Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

Consolidated
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2012
Financial Assets
Financial asscts at FVPL
Held-[or-trading
Deht securitics
Government £61.648 P P Po1,648
Private 801 - - 801
Equity sceuritics 1,933 - - 1,933
Derivative asscts — 2,339 — 2,339
Total financial assets at FVIPL $64,382 £2.339 f 266,721
AFS investments
Debt securities
Government B102,602 £1,151 | B103,753
Private 15,449 1,163 - 16,612
Equity scauritics - quoted 2,314 - - 2,314
Total AFS investments P120.365 £2.314 P £122,679
Financial Liabilities
Firancial liabilitics at FVPL
Derivative liabilities P 26,692 | £6,692
2011
Financial Assets
Firancial asscts at FVPLL
Held-for-trading
Debt securities
Government #2530 P P 72,550
Private 254 - - 254
BSP 3 - - 3
[quity sceurities 1.041 - — 1.041
Derivative assets - 2,340 - 2.340
Tortal financial assets at FVPL P3.848 £2.340 - 24,188
AFS investments
Dbt sccuritivcs
Government P125.838 BLI17 P £126.935
Private 13.206 BY7 — 14.093
Equity securitics - quoted 1.734 — - 1.754
Total AFS invesiments 2140.798 22004 P £142.802
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilitics at FVPI.
Derivative liabilitics fa P2.R19 B #2819
Parent Company
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
2012
Finaneial Assets
Financial assets at FVIPL
Held-for-trading
Dbt securities
Government £54,585 | B34.585
Private 801 - - 801
Derivative assets - 2,249 — 2,249
Total linancial assets at FVPL £55,386 R2.249 o B57.635
{Forward)
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Parent Company

Level T Level 2 Level 3 Total
AFS investments
Debt sceurities
Government £86,062 Pl14 P P86,176
Private 15,110 832 - 15,942
Equity securitics - quoted 395 — - 395
l'otal AFS investments P1OL567 PY46 P P102,513
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at F VL
Derivative liabilities P £6,425 | 6,425
2011
Financial Assets
Financial assets at FVPLL
ltcld-for-trading
Debi securities
Government 22101 B £- £2.101
Private 254 - - 254
RSP 3 - 3
Derivative assets — 2.239 — 2,239
Total financial assets at FVPLL £2.358 £2.239 £ £4.597
AFS investments
[ebt sceurities
Government £101.083 P1117 b £102.202
Private 12,349 886 - 13.435
Equity seeuritics - quoted 278 - - 278
Total AFS investments £113912 82,003 P 2115915
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVPL
Derivative liabilitics 2 £2.689 P £2.689

When fair values of listed equity and debt securities, as well as publicly traded derivatives at the
reporting date are based on quoted market prices or binding dealer price quotations, without any
deduction for transaction costs, the instruments arc included within Level 1 of the hierarchy.

For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation technigues. Valuation
technigues include net present value techniques. comparison to similar instruments for which
market observable prices exist and other revaluation models.

Instruments included in Level 3 include those for which there is currently no active market. In
2011, the Parent Company sold the level 3 instruments carried under AFS investments amounting
to £278.9 million with derivative liability of the same amount for a gain of 2261.4 million,
included under *Trading and securities gain - net’ in the statement of income.

Segment Information

The Group’s operating businesses are recognized and managed separately according to the nature
of services provided and the differcnt markets served with segment representing a strategic
business unit. The Group’s business segments follow:

e Consumer Banking - principally providing consumer type loans and support for effective
sourcing and generation of consumer business;

s Corporate Banking - principally handling loans and other credit facilities and deposit and
current accounts for corporate and institutional customers;

e Investment Banking - principally arranging structured financing, and providing services
relating 1o privatizations, initial public offcrings, mergers and acquisitions;
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e Treasury - principally providing money market. trading and treasury services, as well as the
management of the Group’s funding operations by use of treasury bills, government securities
and placements and acceptances with other banks. through treasury and corporate banking;

» Branch Banking - principally handling branch deposits and providing loans and other loan
related businesses for domestic middle market clients: and

e Others - principally handling other services including but not limited o remittances. leasing,
account financing, and other support services. Other operations of the Group comprise the
operations and financial control groups.

Segment assets are those operating assets that are employed by a segment in its operating activities

and that either are directly attributable to the segment or can be allocated to the segment on a

reasonable basis. Sepment liabilities are those operating liabilities that result from the operating
activities of a segment and that either are directly attributable to the segment or can be allocated to
the segment on a reasonable basis. Interest income is reported net. as management primarily relies
on the net interest income as performance measure, not the gross income and expense. The Group
has no significant customers which contributes 10.00% or more of the consolidated revenue net of
interest expense. Transactions between segments are conducted at estimated market rates on an
arm’s length basis. Interest is charged/credited to business segments based on a pool rate which
approximates the cost of funds. The following table presents revenue and income information of
operating segments presented in accordance with PFRS and segment assets and liabtlities:

Consumer Corporate Investment Branch
Banking Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others Total

2012
Results of Operatinns
Net interest income (expense)

Third party £6,785 £8.860 (#66) £6.713 P7,392 elL22 #£30,806

Interscgment (217) (5.672) — (3,837) 16,979 (1.253) —
Net interest income (expense} after

intersegmant iransaction 6,568 3.188 (66) 2,876 18,371 (131 30,806
Non-nterest mconie 3,435 234 740 8,193 3106 9,354 25,062
Revenue - net ot interest expense 10,003 3422 674 11,069 21477 9,223 55,868
Non-interest expense 7,007 [.J342 106 1,220 13,918 14,235 37,828
[ncome (loss) before share in net income of

associales and a IV 2.996 2,080 568 9,849 7559 (5,012) 18,040
Share in nel income ol'assoctales and a IV - 1 - - - 23832 2,833
Provision [orincome tax (796) (155) {29 {1,841 (232) (770} {3.,826)
Non-controlling interest in net income of

consolidaied subsidiaries - — — - — (1,648} (1.648)
Net income (loss) #2,200 #1926 #5349 £8.005 #7.327 (F4.598) #15399
Statement of Financial Positinn
Toral assers £64.105 P208.115 £2.210 R306,664 £264,932 £194,494 21,040,580
Total liabilities £I3888 P205,179 #2.302 P278,713 £295,190 #98.288 #913,560
Other Segment [nformation
Capital expenditures Rid6 #2581 [ R75 #2129 £3.472 #4,503
Depreciation and amottization B311 81 P- £15 $£§79 FI1.138 P2.424
Provision for credit and impatnment losscs £3,05] £83 P— £ £572 #£772 #4478
2011
Results of Operahions
NeLinteresl income (expense}

Third party B 809 43 1#39) PROTA 83943 #2098 #293.407

Interscpinent {761 (2.327) (2.722) 3697 {572) -
Ner interest income {expense} after

Intersenent transaction 5,733 6,316 {39} 6.251 3,640 1.526 29407
Non-antergsl 1ncoine 2919 213 -16() 6.696 3138 6 146 19,573
Revenue - net of intere st expense 8652 6,530 R 12.947 12778 7672 48.980
Non-interg st expense 5946 1447 b3 1,932 13,105 11.960 34,503
Income [ loss) befure share in net income of

assoclates and a JV 2708 5083 288 11018 {327) (4.288) 14.477
Sharc in net income of assoviates and a.JV - 8 - 1429 1.437
Provision forincoine tax (7500 {154y (3 {1.490) {113 (986} (352
Non-controfling interest in net income of

consolidaled sobsidiaries - - - (1,339 (1.359)
Netincome (loss) £1.956 p1,937 B257 P9323 (P44 (B5.204) 211,031

{Forward)
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Consumer Corporate tvestiment Branch
Ranking Bankins Banking Treasury [3anking, Others Tatal

Statement of Financial Pesition
Total assets BI5.060 R197 713 BI.13I £344.532 PI28.718 P131.240 PS8 384
Total habehties P47.330 P188.735 PI1.125 P33 810 P229 976 P40 484 P841 880
Other Segment Informatico
Capital ¢xpenditures P304 PI0OR B B39 R100 $2.148 P2.999
Deprecration and amortization P31 P67 P- Pi99 £654 £1.163 PI334
Provision lor eredit and nnpanmnent losses P1.979 p272 P 7 #430 R1135 B3.823
2010
Resutts of Operations
Netinterest ingame {expense)

Third pany R3S 231 BLO7D (846} P7.634 P3438 P2.054 B26.390

Intersegnent (90 i2.246) 1 2.988) 6.037 (713
Net mnterest income {expense) alter

IRlErsE mnent ransaction TN 5833 (46) 1,646 9475 [IEEY] 26,390
Non-tntere st incois 2,599 414 648 7,552 3.562 5317 20,092
Revenue - net of'interest expense 7.740 6247 607 12,198 13037 6,658 16482
N on-tnerest expense 3813 1,548 67 2013 11.988 13.674 35,103
ireome (Toss) before share i net income of

assoctates and a JV 1.927 4,699 3% 10,185 1049 {7016} 11,379
Share innet income of associates and a TV 41 - - - 1.377 1618
Benelit from {provision) for yncome tax (514 (23 {13} {2,791 462 87% (3731
Naon-controlling interest in net income of

consolidated subsidiarics - - (900) (900}
Net income (loss) P1LA13 #7738 P51 P?.394 PLETL (B7.212) PE.360
Statement of Financial Posttion
Toral assets B49 191 Bl74.471 2l B372 395 PI87.33] R101.230 H8R7 323
Total liabiitties B24.936 BI37.158 B2.144 2354344 P2I6.728 £28.69% P794.306
Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures P426 il P P91 B7;3 BLL190 21851
Depreciation and amirtization B286 [ i P23 P94 Pi213 P2.260
Provision for credit and impainnent losses P2186 P81 P- B33 371 B2 14 £7 285

Non-interest income consists of service charges, fees and commissions, profit from assets sold,

trading and securities gain - net, foreign exchange gain - net, income from trust operations,
leasing, dividends and miscellaneous income. Noninterest expense consists of compensation and

fringe benefits, taxes and licenses, provision for credit and impairment losses, depreciation and

amortization, occupancy and equipment-related cost, amortization of software costs and

miscellaneous expense.

The Group has no significant customers which contribute 10.00% or more of the consolidated

revenue, net of interest expense.

Geographical Information

The Group operates in four geographic markets: Philippines. Asia other than Philippines. USA and

Europe (Note 2). The following tables show the distribution of Group’s external net operating

income and non-current assets allocated based on the location of the customers and assets,
respectively, for the years ended December 31:

Asia

(Other than
Philtppines Philippines) LISA Europe Total

2012

Interest income £44,227 P708 P44 | o 44,979
Inlerest expense 13,951 215 7 - 14,173
Net interest income 3,276 493 37 - 30,806
Non-interest income 23,475 1,118 329 140 15,062
Proxision for credit and nnpairment lasses 4,444 34 - - 4478
Total external net operating income £49,307 £1,577 £366 £140 B51,390
Non-current asscis P33,775 P30 B3 P13 B34,369

(Forward)
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Asia
(Other than

Philippines Philippines) LISA Furope Total
2011
Interest inceime £44 253 £729 £33 B8 B45.037
lnterest expense 13478 146 6 13,630
Net mterest imeome 28.775 583 49 29 407
Nom-mterest income 17.825 1.198 352 198 14.373
Provision for credit and impairment losses 3.822 1 3.823
Total external net operating income B42.778 B1.730 B401 PiO% #45.157
Non-current assets B32 G670 B1G]| B110 #19 $33.490
2010
Interest income P40.938 B4 356 BGO .l B4 464
Interest expense 14973 92 B - 15074
Net intercst income 25.965 364 60 | 26350
Non-interest income 18.145 1.314 310 323 200092
Provision for credit and impairment losses 7.218 Sl 16 - 7.285
Total external net operating income 236,892 Bl1.627 B354 £324 £39.197
Non-current assets #34,961 £392 214y £19 £35,521

Non-current assets consist of property and equipment, investment properties, chattel properties
acquired in foreclosure, software costs, assets held under joint venture and non-current asset held

for sale.

Interbank Loans Receivable and Securities Purchased Under Resale Agreements

This account consists of?

Consolidated

Parent Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
[nterbank loans receivable (Note 31) B18.401 P9.327 215,046 g3222
SPURA 4,993 15.040 — —
23,394 24.367 15,046 3.222

Less allowance for impairment losses
(Nute 13) 2 -- - -
$23,392 224,367 B15,046 P3.222

The outstanding balance of SPURA represents overnight placements with the BSP where the
underlying securities cannot be sold or repledged to parties other than BSP.

Trading and Investment Securities

This account consists of:

Consolidated

Parent Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

Financial assets at FVPL £606,721 B6.188 B57.635 R4.597
AFS investments {(Notes 29 and 31) 122,958 143.057 102,574 115976
H'IM investments (Note 31) 51,451 47.457 21,491 17.464
£241,130 196,702 P1581,700 P138.037
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Financial assets at FVPL consist of the following:

Consolidated

Parent Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

Held-for-trading (Note 31)

Debt securitics

Government £61,648 B2.530 B54,585 g2 10l
Private 801 254 801 254
BSP — 3 — 3
62,449 2.807 55,386 2.338
Equity sccuritics - quoted 1,933 1.041 - -
64,382 3.848 55,386 2338
Derivative assets (Note 31) 2,339 2.340 2,249 2.239
£66,721 26,188 B57,635 B4.567

Derivative Financial [nstruments

The following are fair values of derivative financial instruments of the Parent Company recorded
as derivative assets/liabilities, together with the notional amounts. The notional amount is the
amount of a derivative’s underlying asset, reference rate or index and is the basis upon which
changes in the value are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions
outstanding as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and are not indicative of either market risk or

credit risk.

Average
Notional Forward Rate
Assets Liahilities Amount  (inevery LSD 1)
December 31, 2012
Freestanding derivatives:
Currency forwards
BOUGIIT:
UsD B39 £1,280 U'SD 1,324 £41.9696
CNY 47 3 CNY 2,283 CNY 0.1577
EUR 25 1 EUR 31 EUR 1.3223
IPY - 1 JPY 16 JPY 0.0125
TWD - - TWD 116 TWD 0.0344
SOLD:
ush 1,098 28 L'SD 2,101 £41.5060
CNY 5 109 CNY 2,138 CNY 0.1572
NZD - - NZD | NZD 0.8328
SGD - - - SGD 0.8166
IPY 1 - JPY 191 JPY 0.0117
EUR — S0 ELR 13 EUR 1.2278
TR - - THB 12 THB 0.0326
ALID - 50 ALD 80 AUD 10010
Put Option Purchased-Warrants 199 - LS 645
Interest Rate Swaps-PHP 791 1,050 238,972
Interest Rate Swaps-FX 21 654 USD 710
Cross Currengy Swaps 8 3,163 1'SD Y61
Cross Currency Swaps - PHI? 5 - 8500
Credit Default Swaps - 1 'SD 10
Over-the-counter FX Option 3 15 L'SD 48
Embedded derivatives in:
Financial contract® - 20 LSD2
Nonfinancial contract®** 7 - L'SD O
P2,249 6,425

(Forward)
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Average
Notional Forward Raic
Assers [ 1abilitics Amount  {incvery USD 1)
December 31, 2011
Freestanding derivalives:
Currency forwards
BOUGHT:
UsD B344 P45 USD 1.041 P43.7832
CNY 176 54 CNY 3.874 CNY 0.1362
EUR 9 EUR 3 FUR 1.3488
IPY 4 — IPY 2727 IPY 0.0128
SGD - - SGD 13 SGL0.7678
INR 1 7 IR 228.000 IDR 0.0001
KRW 4 KRW 11.603 KRW §.0009
SOLD:
UsDh 93 565 USD 1.883 B43.7450
CNY 75 167 CNY 3.828 CNY 0.1567
EUR 9 - FUR 3 ELUR 1,3482
IPY l - IPY 779 IPY 0.0128
[DR 11 - IDR 135.000 DR 0.0001
KRW - 6 KRW 23,230 KRW 0.0009
KD - HKD 78 HKD 0.1286
Put Option Purchased-Warrants 212 USD 645
Interest Rate Swaps-PHP 687 692 P32.546
Interest Rate Swaps-FX 39 578 LS 631
Cross Currency Swaps 375 350 LSD 726
Embedded derivatives in:
Financial contract® - 16 USD3
Nonfinancial contract** 6 - UsSh o
P2.239 P2.689

* As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 dertvative liabilitics pertain 10 inierest rate derivatives embedded in structured debt
mstrument with outstanding notional amount of USD F.7 million and USD 2.8 million, respectively.

** - Nonfinancial host contracts include foreign curreney derivatives with average notional amounts of LISD 1,415 and
USD 1.379 per month as of December 31, 2012 and 201 1. respectively (with maturitics until 20213

The Group’s derivative assets include embedded call option in a financial contract amounting to
P27.4 million and £46.2 million as of December 31. 2012 and 2011, respectively. and derivative
assets from Put Option Purchased Warrants of B63.4 million and £54.8 million as of

December 31, 2012 and 2011. respectively. Further, as of December 31, 201 1. the Group’s
derivative liabilities include call option amounting to P61.4 million embedded in tinancial
investment securities. In 2012, these securities were redeemed prior to maturity.

Derivatives designated as accounting hedges

MCC entered into cross currency swaps agreements with a certain bank to hedge the foreign
exchange and interest rate risks from its dollar-denominated loan with the same bank. Under the
agreements, MCC, on a quarterly basis. pays a fixed annual interest rates ranging from 4.1% to
5.5% and from 3.5% 10 5.5% in 2012 and 2011, respectively, on the peso principals and receives
floating interest at 3-month LIBOR on the USD principals. MCC designated the swaps as
effective hedging instruments under cash flow hedges. The swap has negative fair value of
#2673 million and £73.3 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, presented
under *Derivative liabilities’ in the statement of financial position,
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Below is the schedule when the hedged cash flows are expected to occur and when they are
expected to affect profit or loss:

2012 2011
Within Over Within Over
1 year 1-2 years 2 years 1 year 1-2 vears 2 vears
Cash milow {asset) P45S £1,852 P47 B4 R473 R1.763
Cash outflows (liability) {558) (1.987) (445) (478) (533} (1.783)
Net cash flow (R103) (P135) (£28) (R77) (B62) #20

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, MCC assessed the hedge relationship of the swaps and the
hedged loans as highly effective. The effective fair value changes on the swaps that were deferred
in equity under ‘ Translation adjustment and others™ as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 amounted
to 81.9 million and £57.6 million, respectively. No hedge ineffectiveness was recognized in
profit or loss in 2012 and 2011.

AFS investments consist of the following:

Consalidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Debt securities:
Government (Note 17} B103,753 R126955 $86,176 R102.202
Privatc 16,612 14,093 15,942 13,435
120,365 141,048 102,118 1§15.637
Equity sceuritics:
Quoted 2,619 2.091 485 368
Unguoted 347 479 147 147
3,166 2,370 632 513
123,531 143618 142,730 116,152
I ess allowanec for impairment losscs
(Note 13) 573 36l 176 176
£122.958 B145.057 £102,574 2115976

In 2011, the Parent Company participated in bond exchange transactions affecting its held for
trading and AFS investments. The Parent Company received 10-year Benchmark Bonds with
coupon of 5. 1% and face value of 2.7 billion, at a price of 100.00% and 20-year Benchmark
Bonds with coupon of 6.4% and total face value of £34.5 billion. at a price of 98.77% and realized
net trading gain of £230.0 million from the bond exchange transactions presented under ‘Trading
and securities gain - net” in the statement of income.

AFS investments include net unrealized gains as foltows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Balance at the beginning of year B5,063 £1.333 82,377 Bg22
Unrealized gains recognized in other
comprehensive income 4,655 9.543 3,269 5.215
Amounts rcalized in profit or loss (7,067} (3.787) (4,004) {3.671)
2,651 5,089 1,642 2,366
Tax (Notc 28) (105) (26) 29) 11
Balance at end of year R2,546 B5.063 P1,613 22377
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HTM investments consist of the following;

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 201
Government bonds R37.481 B35,496 B17,157 B13.569
Treasury notes 9,635 8,066 - -
Private bonds 4,335 3,895 4,334 3.893
BSL 451 £47.457 221,491 RB17.464

HTM investments include US government securities with carrying value of USD 1.0 miilion (with
peso equivalent of £41.5 million and £44.2 million as of December 31, 2012 and 201 1,
respectively) which are pledged by MR USA to the State Treasury Office pursuant to the
California Financial Code and in accordance with the requirements of the California Department
of Financial Institutions relative to its license as a transmitter of money.

Bond Exchange Transaction

In July 2011, the Republic of the Philippines (ROP) through the Department of Finance and the
Bureau of Treasury embarked on the 6th phase of its Domestic Debt Consolidation via a Liability
Management exercise executed through the Exchange Offer, Subscription Offer and Tender
Offer - i.e., exchange of eligible fixed income government bonds for a new 10-year bonds (due
2022) or 20-year bonds {due 2031) wherein the proceeds of a simultaneous issuance of additional
new 20-year bonds were used to buy back Eligible Bonds via Tender Offer.

To encourage existing bondholders to participate given the existing tainting rule on HTM

investment under PAS 39. on June 28, 201 1, the SEC granted all holders of eligible bonds

currently classified as HTM that will exchange more than insignificant amount of such bonds

under this program, an exemptive relief from the tainting rule subject to the following conditions:

¢ disclosure to SEC of the (i) the date of the exchange. (ii) amount of eligible bonds exchanged.
(iii) amount of total HTM portfolio before and after the exchange;

¢ Day | profit or loss shall not be recognized and any unrealized gains or losses shall be
amortized over the term of the new benchmark bonds;

e exemption shall not extend to Eligible Bonds that will be bought back by the ROP and shall
not likewise apply if transaction would be a combination of tender offer for cash and exchange
for new bonds;

¢ basis of preparation of the financial statements shall not be PFRS but should be the prescribed
financial reporting framework for entities which are given relief from certain requirements of
the full PFRS. This basis of financial reporting shall be adopted by the availing entity until
such time that the ground for its coverage under the tainting rule of PAS 39 is no longer
present; and

¢ appropriate clearance shall be obtained from the BSP and Insurance Commission, as the
primary regulators of banks and insurance companies. respectively.

On October 11, 2011, the BSP through Circular 738 issued exemption from tainting provision for

prudential reporting on certain securities booked under HTM category which are covered by an
offer and accepted tender offer pursuant to liability management transactions of the ROP, among
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In July 2011, given its nature of business, FMIC participated in the domestic bond exchange
covering its #3.0 billion eligible government bonds classified as HTM investments to extend the
bond heldings (from maturity date of December 16, 2020 to July 19, 2031) and benetit from the
higher yields (from 5.875% to 8.00%). FMIC has complied with the disclosure and other
requirements of the SEC as follows:

a. total HTM Investments portfolio of FMIC before and after the exchange remain the same
while the gain on exchange of 814.5 million is deferred and amortized over the term of the
new bonds; and

b. as disclosed in Note 2, the related financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Philippine GAAP for banks.

Reporting under PFRS

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, had the Group accounted for the transaction under PFRS, the
unamortized balance of the deferred gain on exchange of £13.4 million and ®14.1 million.
respectively, would have been credited to the Group’s 2012 and 2011 net income and the entire
HTM investments portfolio of the Group with amortized cost of 851.5 billion and #47.5 billion,
respectively. would have been reclassified to AFS investments and carried at fair value with net
unrealized gain of 210.8 billion and B8.0 billion, respectively. being recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Interest income on trading and investment securities consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Financial assets al FVPL BL1,326 B476 P438 B1,190 B382 B3O8
AFS investments 5,738 6.260 6,759 4,840 3.683 4,135
H1TM invesunents 3,394 3.147 2.356 1,088 1.081 1,053
210,458 £9.883 PY,353 P7.118 Bs5.140 B3.588

In 2012, 2011 and 2010, foreign currency-denominated trading and investment securities bear
nominal annual interest rates ranging from 0.88% to 11.63%, 0.80% to 10.63% and 0.80% to
9.30%. respectively, for the Group and from 0.88% to 11.63%. 0.80% to 9.88% and 0.80% to
9.50%, respectively, for the Parent Company while peso-denominated trading and investment
securities bear nominal annual interest rates ranging from 3.30% to 18.25%, 3.70% te 18.23% and
1.56% to 14.00%, respectively, for the Group and from 3.30% to 11.50%. 3.70% to [4.00% and
3.70% to 13.20%, respectively, for the Parent Company.

Trading and securities gain - net consists of*

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Held-for-trading P2,442 P1.275 P793 B1,791 21.007 P394
AFS investments 7.067 5,787 5,982 41,004 3.671 2.825
Derivative asset/liabilities - nct {(4.024) {940 (653) (4.089) (968) (673)
25,485 P6.118 P6.122 21,706 B3.710 P2.546

Trading gains on AFS investments include realized gains/losses previously reported in other
comprehensive income.
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Loans and Receivables
This account consists of:
Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Receivables from customers (Note 31):
Commercial loans P338.830 £289.170 B3I1,018 B270.146
Residential mortgage loans 53,838 44,443 31,184 26,233
Auto loans 52,109 43.614 15,852 14,388
T'rade loans 21,715 26,380 21,684 26.380
Others 59,052 48.734 15,671 11,275
525544 454.341 396,009 348.424
Less unearned discounts and
capitalized interest 7.180 8.645 1,376 i.848
518.364 445,696 394,633 346.576
Unguoted debt securities (Note 17);
Government £910 1.984 494 502
Private 5,904 10.572 819 2.240
7.814 12,556 1,313 2.742
Accounts receivable (Note 3 1) 5,766 5.949 4,792 5.177
Accrued interest receivable (Note 313 7356 7.051 5,046 5.241
Sales contract receivable (Note 31) 637 760 244 910
Other receivables (Note 31 1,492 294 168 62
541,429 472,306 406,796 360.708
I ¢ss allowance for creditl losses
(Note 13) 15,726 14,884 8.233 8.666
B525,703 2457422 B398.563 £352.042
Receivables from customers consist of:
Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Loans and discounts P488.645 P417.303 £358,992 P3IIL1IS
Less unearned discounts and
capitalized interest 7,180 8.643 1,376 1.848
481,465 408.658 357,616 309.267
Customers” liabilities under letters of
eredit (LC)/trust receipts 21,715 26.380) 21,684 26.380
Bills purchased (Note 21) 15,184 10.658 15,333 10,929
P518.364 B445.696 B394,633 2346,376

Receivables from customers-others of the Group include credit card receivables, notes
receivables financed and lease contract receivables amounting to P27.8 billion. 9.2 billion and
£3.8 billion, respectively, as of December 31, 2012 and £23.9 billion. 7.3 billion and

P2.7 billion, respectively. as of December 31, 2011,

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, other receivables include dividends receivable of 1.4 billion
and P185.7 million, respectively, for the Group, and 158.5 million and £36.4 million,
respectively, for the Parent Company. Dividends receivable of the Group includes dividends
receivable of FMIC from its investee companies amounting to 1.4 billion and £174.8 million as
of December 31, 2012 and 20§ 1, respectively.

(T TR




- 68 -

Interest income on loans and receivables consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

Receivables from customers 23,548 B21 084 B19.940 £16,293 £14.323 B13953
Reeeivables from cardhelders 5,810 4.8G3 4 080 - -
Lease contract receivables 1,156 1.495 1.042 - - -
Customer liabilities under LC/irust recepts 848 ov7 734 808 697 734
Restructured loans 413 427 576 3358 340 473
Linguoted debt securities and others 929 510 844 216 296 315
£32,704 R20022 R27216 £17.652 £15.636 B15679

[nterest income on unquoted debt securities and others include interest accreted on impaired
receivables In accordance with PAS 39 and interest income on sales contract receivable.

BSP Reporting
As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, 79.81% and 79.39% of the total receivables from customers

of the Group, respectively, are subject to periodic interest repricing, In 2012 and 2011, the
remaining peso receivables from customers earn annual fixed interest rates ranging from 3.00% to
42.00% and from 1.00% 10 42.00%, respectively, while foreign currency-denominated receivabies
from customers earn annual fixed interest rates ranging from 1.37% to 36.00% and from 1.78% to
36.00%, respectively.

The following table shows information relating to receivables from custoniers by coilateral, gross
of unearned discounts and capitalized interest:

Cunsolidated Pareni Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

Amount o Amount k) Amount Y Amount %%

Secured by
Real estate P87, 19N 16.70 PT9155 1742 Bo1.442 15.52 #5927 1&.03
Chattel 62,820 1195 SHTR3 1206 7504 444 le3L8 468
Equity secunities 10,785 2.06 SA63 208 8510 L5 6,429 1.85
Deposit hold -out 7,788 1.48 11650 rs7 6,932 175 10177 29
(ther secunties 125,041 23.79 66,373 1461 125,041 3158 60,373 1903
Others 16,335 3.11 19677 439 13,105 3.08 17.729 500
30560 59.09 241410 5503 231,624 58,49 172953 4964
Unsccured 214,984 40,91 2112493] 1687 164,385 41.51 | 75471 50 36
BS2I5.544 100.00 B434.34] Lo0.0ag P3%4,(H9 100,00 PI48 424 | 00 O

Information on the concentration of credit as to industry of receivables from customers, gross of
unearned discount and capitalized interest, follows:

Cansolidated Parent Company
2012 2014 2012 2011
Amount Y Amount %o Amounit Yo Amouint %

Manutacturing | vanous

industries) £99.022 18.84 PRINAS 18 1% Y5036 2400 2RO 2312
Wholesale and rerail rrade 96.322 1833 73861 1620 71374 18.02 53396 532
Real estate. renting and business

ACtNItics 85548 16.2% 76 50% 1083 61,232 1546 S0.884 1032
Private housebolds T3.655 14.02 O 14,05 45,675 1183 9707 1140
Financial intermediaries 37,866 .1 38589 B4 JL2le 7.88 36,128 1037
Tiansportation, stocape and

communication 37,760 .18 20908 0.5% 30,192 7.62 23062 66l
Electrieity, was and water 37175 7.07 36980 814 34941 B.82 33469 G ol
Other community., socal and

personal activities 19,733 3,75 224350 ER 772 Q.19 3.2 {90
Hotel and cestaucunts 11,512 2.19 7,594 L.67 359 2.62 G618 190
Construction 9.8%2 1.88 9209 203 6,379 1.61 701 204
Agricultural, hunting and

forestry 5.756 11 8,900 130 4321 1.09 4.807 L 38
Public admuinistration and

defense, compulsory socal

SECUrity 3972 0.76 2641 U] t4l 0.04 120 004
Munng and quarrving 861 0.16 671 013 509 0,13 465 a3
Others 6,480 1,23 3106 O BY 3852 .99 1008 (83

P525,544 100.00 £454.34) f00 a0 £396.000 100,04 PI48 424 L0 00
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The BSP considers that concentration of credit exists when total lean exposure to a particular
industry or economic sector exceeds 30.00% of total loan portfolio except for thrift banks.
Current banking regulations allow banks with no unbooked valuation reserves and capital
adjustments to exclude from nonperforming classification those receivables from customers
classified as *Loss’ in the latest examination of the BSP which are fully covered by allowance for
credit losses, provided that interest on said receivables shall not be acerued.

Non-performing loans (NPLs) not fully covered by allowance for credit losses follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Total NI’Ls £9,596 £10.093 24,193 B5.130
1.ess NPLs fully covered by
allowance for credit losses 4,992 3.304 2,497 2,733
£4,604 £4.791 BL1,696 P2,377

Under banking regulations, NPLs shall, as a general rule, refer to loan accounts whose principal
and/or interest is unpaid for thirty (30) days or more after due date or after they have become past
due in accordance with existing rules and regulations. This shall apply to leans payable in lump
sum and loans payable in quarterly, semi-annual, or annual installments, in which case, the total
outstanding balance thereof shall be considered non-performing.

In the case of receivables that are payable in monthly installments, the total outstanding balance
thereof shall be considered non-performing when three (3) or more instatiments are in arrears. In
the case of receivabtes that are payable in daily, weekly, or semi-monthiy installments, the total
outstanding balance thereof shall be considered non-performing at the same time that they become
past due in accordance with existing BSP regulations, i.e., the entire outstanding balance of the
receivable shall be considered as past due when the total amount of arrearages reaches 10.00% of
the total receivable batance. Restructured receivables which do not neet the requirements to be
treated as performing receivables shall also be considered as NPLs.

. Property and Equipment

The composition of and movements in this account follow:

Consolidated

Furniture, Building
Fixtures and Leasehold Under

Land Buildings Equipment _Improvements  Construction Total
2012
Cast
Balanee at beginning of vear P4,998 £7,530 £13,847 R2.195 £2I88 PL8.858
Additions 124 94 2,837 224 562 3841
Disposals {45) (74) (1,3%0) (36) - (1,545)
Reclassification/others 26 190 {96) 23 (249 {106)
Balance at end of year 5,103 7740 15,198 2,406 a0l 31.048
Accumulated depreciation and

amaortization

Balance at begmmng of year - 3,136 10,421 1.352 - 14,909
Depreciation and amortization ~ 27 1,365 213 m 1.849
Disposals - (49) (939, (22) - (1,010
Reclassificarion/others — 48 (60} (35) — {47)
Balance at end of sear - 3,406 10.787 1,508 = 15,701
Allowance for impaiement fosses {Notwe 15)
Balance at beginning of vear - - 12 - - 12
Aceounts charged offiothers - - (1) - - (10)
Balance at end of year - - 2 - - 2

Net book value at end of year #5103 R4.334 24,409 £598 260t 215,345
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Consolidated
Fumiture, Buiiding
Fixtures and L.easchold Under
Land Buildings Fquipment  Improvements Construction Total
2001
Cost
Balance at beginmny of year PS.036 P6 835 Pi2.378 BLE13 238y ¥16.469
Additions 17 i93 2004 25 3 2,783
[hsposals t6) t7) {547 (2} {562)
Reclassificabonothers {49 389 14 133 {419 168
Balance at end of year 4.998 7.534 171,847 2105 288 18.858
Aeeumulated depreciation and
amortization
Balance at beginmng of year - 1847 9487 1014 13,348
Deprectation and amortization 264 1,228 200 1692
Lhsposals {5 {330y {2) {338)
Reclassification others 30 37 140 - 207
Balance at end of year L1360 10,421 1.352 14,909
Allowance for impairment losses (Note 15}
Balance at beginning of year - z 2
Provisions:aceounts charged oft'others 10 - 10
Balance at end of year - 12 - - 12
Net book value atend of year P4 998 P4394 P34i4 P43 P83 B13.937
Parent Company
Furniture, Building
Fixtures and Leasehatd Under
Land Buildings Equipment  Improvements  Construction Tutal
2012
Cost
Balance at beginning of year 24,436 BS 4S8 $9.337 £1,401 #IXR £10,920
Additions Yo 28 1,458 70 562 2,208
Disposals (45) {8) (784) 25 - (862)
Reclassificationsothers 27 130 (15) 56 (249) (51)
Balance at end of vear 4,508 5,608 9,994 1,502 601 212,215
Accumulated depreciation and
amortization
Balance ar beginning of year - 1713 7918 881 - 11,512
Diepreciation and amaortizatian - 115 534 106 - 865
Disposals - (6) (433 (9) - (448)
Reclassification/others - 5 (9) (31} — {35)
Balance at end of year — 2,937 8.010 947 - 11,594
Net book value at end of year R4,508 #1671 #1986 BS55 #£601 R10,321
2041
Cost
Balance at beginning of year £4.492 23009 PR.724 R1.361 £389 #19.9758
Additions - 8s 77 33 318 1,228
Disposals (G} (7N {139) - (1723
Reclassification/others {50) 371 ti3 (419} (HEDy
Balance acend of year 4436 5.438 9337 1401 288 20,920
Accumulated depreciation and
amartizatian
Balance at beginning of year 2339 7456 761 - 10,756
Depreciation and amortization 21s 477 126 818
Disposals i5) (22 1 - 26)
Reclassificationsothers {30) 7 [ {36}
Balance at end of vear 2713 7918 881 11512
Net book value at end of vear #4.136 ¥2.745 B1.419 RS20 B288 15408

Buiiding under construction pertains to bank premiscs vet to be completed and used by the Parent
Company. The capital expenditures of the Parent Company related to the construction amounted
to £562.4 million and £317.9 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012 and 201 1. the cost of fully depreciated property and equipment still in
use amounted to 1.1 billion and £977.5 million, respectively, for the Group and £78.4 million
and B170.1 million, respectively, for the Parent Company.
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11. Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture

Investments in subsidiaries consists of:

2012 2011
Acquisition cost:
FMIC 11,751 P11,751
MBCL 8,658 8,658
PSBank 3,626 3,626
Circa 837 837
ORIX Metro 265 265
MCC 214 214
MTI 200 200
MRCI 131 131
MR USA 158 117
MR Italia 60 66
MR Spain 42 42
MR UK 31 31
MRHL 26 26
MRSPL 17 17
FMIIC 12 12
Metrobank Bahamas 8 8
PVCC 5 5
MBTC Vienna (Note 2) - 22
DSI (Note 2) - 125
26,047 26,153
Allowance for impairment losses (Note 15)
Circa (719) (550)
MTI (153) {147)
MRCI (115) -
MR USA (53) -
MR ltalia (41 (N
MR Spain 41) (29)
MR UK &) (3)
MBTC Vienna - {16)
(1,125) (754)
Carrying Value
FMIC 11,751 11,751
MBCL 8,058 8,658
PSBank 3,626 3,626
Circa 118 287
ORIX Metro 265 265
MCC 214 214
MTI 47 53
MRCI 16 131
MR USA 105 117
MR Italia 25 59
MR Spain 1 13

{Forward)
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2012 2011
MR UK P28 P26
MRHL 26 26
MRSPL 17 17
FMIC 12 12
Metrobank Bahamas 8 8
PVCC 5 5
MBTC Vienna — 6
DSI - 125
£24,922 £25,399
Investiment in associates and a JV consists of

Consolidated Parent Company

2012 2011 2012 207 1

Acquisition cost:

Global Business Power Corporation (GBPC)

(48.72% owned 1 2G12; 29.42% owned 1n

20101) P7.281 #6641 P -
Lepante Consoiidated Minmg Company

(LCMC) {16.82% owned in 2012 16.64%

owned in 2011) 2397 2,303 - -
First Metro Save and Learn Equity Fund

(FMSLEF) (26.30% owned in 2012: 25 44%

owned in 2011} 1,171 707 - -
SMEC* (311.39% ouwned) 800 800 - -
Tovota Financial Services Philippines

Corporation ({TFSPC) (34.00% owned) 420 420 154 150

First Metro Save and Learn Balance Fund
(FMSLBF)} (23.29% owned in 2012 25 76%

owned in 2011} 279 172 - -
Northpine Land. Inc. (NLD) (20.00% owned) 232 232 232 232
SMBC setro Investment Corporation (SMBC

Metro) (30.00% owned) 180 80 180 180
Taal Land Inc. (TLD) (35.00% owned) 178 178 178 178

Cathay International Resources Corporation

(CIRC)Y(34.72% owned in 2012: 34 32%

owngd in 2011) 175 489 - -
Philippine AXA Life Insurance Corperation

(PALIC) (27.96% owned 1n 2012: 27.60%

owned in 2011) 172 172 - -
Charter Ping An Insurance Corporation {CPAIC)

(33.07% owned in 2012 32 68% owned in

2011) 611 e - -

Tovota Motor Philippines Corporation ( TMPC)
(30.00% owned in 200 1) (Note 13) - 673 - 673
Others 33 33 -
13,378 13.130 740 1413

Accumulated equity i net income {Joss)
Balance at beginning of vear

GBrC 1,735 1.236
LCMC (83) {d6)
FMSIEF 55 33
SMFC (85) (29)
TFSPC 407 304
FMSLBF 15 44
NLI 35 30
SMBC Metro 71 79
TL1 (85) (86
CiRC 2) (it
(Forward)
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Consolidated

Parent Company

L TR

2012 2011 2012 2011
PALIC B34S Péd0
CPAIC 196 200
TMPC 1,327 1648
Others (22) 22
4,159 4.051
Share in nct income (loss)
GRPC 1,252 494
LCMC 25 (26)
FMSLEF 221 12
SMFC (50} (56)
TFSPC 79 103
FMSLBF 65 1
NLI 43 6
SMBC Metro 20 16
I'L] 1 1
CIRC 3] 8
PALIC 252 221
CPAIC 07 {4)
TMPC 847 633
2.833 1,437
ividends
GBPC (1,925) -
NLI 3] (0
SMBC Metro (22) (273
PALIC (224) (316)
T™MPC [653) (974)
(2.826) {1.318)
Mivestments/reciassification
[.OMC - (1)
TMPC (L521) -
(L5218 (1)
Balance at ¢nd of vear
GBPC 1.062 1.735
LCMC (58) (83)
FMSLEF 276 35
SMFC (135) (85)
FFSPC 486 407
FMSLBE L1 35
NLI 96 35
SMBC Metro 69 71
Til (84 (83)
CIRC 9 (2)
PALIC 573 545
CPAIC 263 196
T™MPC - 1,327
Others (22) (22)
2,6d5 4,159
Equity in net unreatized gain (loss) on AI'S
nvestments
GuBPC 417 88
LCMC (58) )
FMSLEF - 3
FMSLBF ! 5
SMBC Metro t4 12
TLI 3 3)
PALIC 356 307
CPAIC E)) 28
TMPC — 11
768 343
Translation adjustment and others
LCMC 31 4
TESPC 16 3
PALIC - 3
CPAIC 29 29
76 39
(Forward)
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Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Allowance for impairment losses (Note 13)
NLI (B58) (P38) (#58) (B8}
TL! [LLLE)] (92) {104) (52)
(162} (1307 {162) (1500
Carrying Value
GBPC 8.760 5464 - -
LCMC 2312 2312 - -
FMSLEF 1.447 3 - -
SMEC 663 715 -
TFSPC 922 830 150 150
FMSLBF 390 222 - -
NLI 270 229 174 174
SMBC Metro 263 263 180 180
TL! i3 {2) 74 86
CIRC 184 487 - -
PALIC 1.101 1.027 - -
CPAIC 393 313 - -
T™MPC - 2.011 - 673
Others 11 11 — -
£16.705 P17.641 B578 £].2063

*Represents investment in a JV of the Group.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, gross amount of goodwill amounted to £6.4 bitlion for the
Group of which £1.2 billion pertained to the Parent Company. In 2012 and 201 |, the Group
recognized an impairment loss on goodwill amounting to P4.0 million and £35.4 million,
respectively.

In 2012, the Parent Company invested an additional USD 1.0 million in MR USA which was
approved by the BSP on October 1, 2012.

Investment in FMIC

Relative to the amended rule on minimum public ownership, on October 12, 2012, the BOD of
FMIC in its special meeting approved the voluntary delisting of FMIC’s shares from the PSE and
the buy-back of all of its publicly-owned shares through a tender offer. On October 15, 202,
FMIC published its Notice to its Shareholders of the proposed voluntary delisting and the intent to
buy back the publicly-owned common shares through a tender offer at £89.00 per share. It filed
its initial tender offer report with the SEC and submitted the said report to the PSE on

October 17, 2012, On December (2, 2012, the PSE*s BOD approved such request effective on
December 21, 2012, As required, the FMIC’s shares were suspended for trading for 3 days before
the delisting date or on December 18, 2012, As a result, the Parent Company's ownership in
FMIC increased from 98.06% to 99.21% as of December 31, 2012,

Investment of FMIC in GBPC

Foliowing the SEC approvai on the increase in authorized capital stock of GBPC to P1.0 biliion
and the reduction of the par value per shares of stock from 2100.00 to B1 a share, the deposit for
future stock subscription of FMIC amounting to £5.6 billion as of December 31, 2011 had been
used to subscribe additional 199,038,600 shares of GBPC in January 2012. This resulted in an
increase in the percentage of direct ownership to 49.11% from 30.00%. Further, in July 2012,
FMIC contributed £639.8 million representing deposit for future stock subscription (included in its
investment in GBPC as of December 31, 2012) in response to a capital cali made by GBPC.

A total of additional equity infusion of £1.6 billion representing the proportionate share of FMIC

on such capital call was approved by its BOD on June 29, 2012.
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Investment of FMIC in CIRC
As of December 31, 2011, FMIC's investments include deposit for future stock subscription
amounting to £314.0 million which was returncd in December 2012.

Investment of FMIC in LCMC

In May 2011, FMIC partialty disposed its ownership in LCMC to a third party which resulted in a
gain of #370.0 million included under ‘Miscellaneous income’. FMIC holds less than 20.00% of
the ownership interest and voting control in LCMC but holds 2 out of 9 board seats (or 22.20%)
and has the ability to exercise significant influence through its nominated directors’ active
participation in the board and management sub-committee. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
the fair value of investment which is equivalent to the bid price of the shares in the PSE amounted
to P7.4 billion and £11.7 billion, respectively.

The following tables present financial information of significant associates and a JV as of and for
the years ended:

Statement of Financial Position Statement of Income
Tatal Total Operating Net income

Assets Liahilities Gross Income Income {Loss) { Loss)
December 31, 2012
GBPC R58,693 P40,571 RI19,233 #3382 #1592
PALIC 44,703 40,789 12,280 3.6H0 869
TFSPC 22,361 19,962 1,791 331 197
LOMC 9,058 1443 2,007 75 103
CPAIC 5,642 4,473 2,894 282 201
FMSALEF 5,585 30 1,034 9432 9209
CIRC 3,025 2,501 93 23 i6
NLI 1,992 478 339 240 176
SMFC [.732 67 300 (118) (122)
FMSLBF 1,607 31 281 253 147
SMBC Metro 8383 82 17 87 o8
THI 46 - i 1 1
Deeember 31, 2011
GRPC S6.841 34,994 16,786 4.082 1580
PALIC 38.943 35275 9975 1108 967
TFSPC T2 19.095 1.869 342 257
LOMC 11,753 3.642 1,751 2 215
CPAIC 4871 3.850 2257 208 150
FMSLEE 3098 129 177 134 1030
CIRC 2954 24600 50 26 18
NI 1861 513 140 93 66
SMFC 1.886 99 153 {192) {140h
FMSALRF 786 9 34 72 12
SMBC Metro 836 37 79 78 63
TL 44 2 I 1
TMPC (Nate 1) 16.073 9293 5567 2,949 2,178

Major assets of significant associates and a JV include the following:

2012 2011
GBPC
Cash and cash equivalents P10,588 P8,607
Receivables - net 5,150 4,026
Property, plant and equipment - net 35,946 36,714
Prepaid expenses 2,385 2,020
PALIC
Cash and cash equivalents 2,026 2,602
AFS investments 7,895 7,950
Investments held to cover linked liabilities 33,714 25,99]
TFSPC
Cash and cash equivalents 3,549 3.439
Receivables - net 14,870 14,785
(Forward)
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2012 2011
LCMC
Inventories B453 Bo09
Investments and advances 812 414
Property, plant and equipment - net 6,696 7.215
CPAIC
Receivables - net 3,584 1,075
[nvestments 1,804 360
FMSLEF
Cash and cash equivalents 339 705
Receivables - net 339 185
Investments 4,907 2,207
CIRC
Receivables - net 2,022 2,105
Investment properties - net 309 483
NLI
Cash and cash equivalents 572 194
Real estate properties 973 1,278
Receivables - net 441 309
SMFC
Cash and cash equivalents 790 987
Receivables - net 751 697
FMSLBF
Cash and cash equivalents 100 21
Investments 1,495 679
SMBC Metro
Cash and cash equivalents 234 521
Due from other banks 150 -
AFS investments 70 49
Receijvables - net 424 259
TLI
Cash and cash equivalents 46 44
TMPC (Note 13)
Cash and cash equivalents 5.746
Receivables - net 3,698
Inventories - net 3,754
Property, plant and equipment - net 1,030

The following tables summarize dividends declared by investee companies of the Parent

Company:
Date of BSP

Subsidiary/Assoeiate Date of Declaration Per Share Total Amount Approval Record Date Pavment Date
2012
Cash Dividend

Mayv i1, 2012/
TMPC May 10,2012 140,38 R2.178 Not requited December 31,2011 June 21, 2012
MCC March 222042 0.89 £86 August 1. 2012 August 7. 2012 Aupust 8, 2012
PSBank Ocrober 23,2012 0.75 180 November 21, 2012 December 27, 242 January 14, 2013
PSBank July 23,2012 0.7 180 Augus 13,2012 September 11,2012 September 26, 2012
PSBank Apal 27,2042 073 180 May 15,2012 Jume 7, 2012 June 25. 2042
PSBank January 24, 2012 0is 36 February 9. 2042 March 8, 2012 March 23, 2042
SMBC December 13,2012 12.00 72 Not required December 13,2012 January 8, 2013
NI March 1. 2012 0.82 10 Nut required Mareh 1. 2012 Mareh 21, 2012
(Forward)
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Total Amount

Date of BSP
Approval

Record Date

Pay ment Date

2012
Cash Dhvidend

Metrobank Bahamas  Apnl 12,2012

MRSPL May 3, 2012
MRHK May 2, 2012
Stock Dividend

ORIX Metro
{Note 36d) November 29,2012

2011

Cash Dividend

TMPC April 12, 201)
FMIC May 24,2001
MCC March 22, 2011
PSBank October 27201
PSBank August 1, 2011
PSBank Aprild. 2011
PSBank January 20, 2011

Detober 26, 2011
Octaber 27, 2040

ORIX Metro
ORIX Metro

SMBC Brecomber 62011
SMBC December 9, 2010
NLI July 13,2010
MREPL May 23, 2011
Stock Dividend

ORIX Metro
ORIX Mletro

October 26, 2011
Dctober 27, 2010

Usno18
SGID 260
HKD 0.39

20.060

B209. 51
2.66
1.00
0.13
013
Q.15
015

10.00
10.00
5.041
10,40
0,28
SGD 300

20.00
20.04

B39

=)
un
)

169
14

Not required
Not required
Not reqguired

Not required
August 12,2011
May {8 2011
November 23, 2011
Augst 16, 2011
May 132001
Februmey 23,201 ]
Junuary 18, 2012
January 26, 2011
Not required

Nut required

Not required

Not required

Javuary 18, 2012
Januwary 26, 2011

Dividends declared by significant investee companies of FMIC follow:

Date of BSP

Apnl 27,2012
May 3. 2012
Nay 2.2012

November 29,2012

Docember 31, 2010
August 31, 2011
March 22, 2011
December 260, 2011
Seprember 8. 2011
Augst 4, 21 ]
March 18, 2011
tctober 26 2011
Datober 27, 2000
December 6, 2011
December 9. 2010
July §5, 2010

May 13,2011

October 26, 2011
October 27, 2000

Apnl 27,2012
May 3.2032
May 24, 2012

Apal 13,2034
May 20, 2011
September 8, 2011
May 23 2011
January 5, 2012
Sepremnber 23, 2041
August 19. 2011
April 4. 2041
February I. 2012
Februany 3, 2011
January 5. 2012
January 6. 201t
Febraary 8, 2011
May 23, 2011

January 18, 2012
August 312011

Associate Date of Declaration Per Share Total Amount Approval Record Date Payvment Date
2012

Cash Dividend

GRPC December 17,20]2 P36 2870 Not requited December 3, 2012 March 31, 2613
GBPC August 11,2082 1.89 1,050 Not required July 31, 2012 August 30,2012
PALIC October 29,2012 120.57 7935 Not required October 242012 November 9. 202
2011

Cash Dividend

PALIC April 28,201 [HEXNE] B 50! Not required Apal 28,2011 Apnl 28, 2011
PALIC December 14, 20t 177,43 611 Not required December 14,2001 December 14,2011

. Investment Properties

This account consists of foreclosed real estate properties and investments in real estate:

Consolidated
2012 2011
Buildings and Buildings and

Land Improvements Total Land _ Improvements Tolai
Cost
Balunece at beginning of vear PL14,920 B5,236 R20,165 BI7.878 85 781 B23 639
Additions 622 1,064 1,686 691 631 1,372
Disposals (2,873) (843) (3.716) {3,609 11,197) {4,806)
Reclassification others 1,925 38 1.963 (31) 21 (10}
Balanece at end of vear 14,603 5,495 20,008 14,929 5.236 20,1658
Accumulated depreciation and

amorti zation

Balance at beginning of vear - 2,168 2,168 - 2,497 2497
Depreciation and amorntization - 226 226 324 324
Disposals - (362) (362} (646} 646
Reciassilication others - 4 4 (7) 173
Balance at end of vear - 2,036 1036 2168 2,168

{Forward}
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Consolidated
2012 2011
Buildings and Buildings and
Land Tmproscments Total Land  improvements Totat

Allowance for impairment losses

{Note 15
Balance at beginning of year #2,452 #74 #2.526 B2.660 Bl P2761
Provision {or impairment loss 246 94 340 333 6 34
Disposals (373) (15) {388} (518) (25) (543
Reclassi{ication others 162 — 162 (25) (8) [EX))]
Balance at end of year 2,487 153 2,640 2,452 74 2526
Net baok value at end of year #12,116 £3,306 P15,422 212477 B2 504 B15 471

Parent Company
2012 2011
Buildings and Buildings and
Land Emprovements Tatal Land  Improvements Total

Cost
Balance at begimning of vear BI1442 #3.378 B14.820 Bl4.093 B3950 BISOS2
Additions 395 595 990 473 249 722
IMspesals (2,395) (554) (2,949) 13,091 (978) 4.069)
Reclassificationothers 2,577 37 2.614 (33) 118 83
Balanec at ond of vear 12,019 34506 15475 11.442 3378 14.820
Accumulated depreciation and

amortization
Balance at beginning of vear - 1,732 1,732 2.050 2050
Depreciation and amurtization - 157 157 255 255
Disposals - (318) (318) (609} (609}
Reclassification‘others - 4 4 - 36 36
Balance at end of vear - 1,575 1,575 1,732 1.732
Allowanee for impairment losses

{Note 15)
Balance at beginning of vear 1,998 16 2,044 2220 73 2,293
Provisipn for impairment {oss 26 31 57 291 - 291
Disposals 275 (12) (28T) {488) (1o 1507
Reclassificationothers 188 — 188 {25) {8) 133)
Balance at end of year 1,537 65 20012 1.598 36 2,044
Net book valuc at end of year 210,082 1,816 #11,898 PO 444 P1,600 P11,044

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, foreclosed investment properties still subject to redemption
period by the borrower amounted to P719.1 million and B931.0 million, respectively, for the
Group and P227.7 million and P330.8 million, respectively, for the Parent Company.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, aggregate market value of investment properties amounted to
£24.7 billion and P21.6 billion, respectively, for the Group and £20.1 billion and RB16.2 billion,
respectively, for the Parent Company, of which the aggregate market value of investment
properties determined by independent external appraisers amounted to £21.9 billion and

P18.1 billion, respectively, for the Group and 820.1 billion and B15.5 billion. respectively, for the
Parent Company. Fair value has been determined based on valuations made by independent
and/or in-house appraisers. Valuations were derived on the basis of recent sales of similar
properties in the same area as the investment properties and taking into account the economic
conditions prevailing at the time the valuations were made.

Rental income on investment properties (ineluded in *Leasing income” in the statement of income)
in 2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to R96.1 million, 8222.1 million and B125.7 million,
respectivety, for the Group and B30.4 million, B144.0 million and £55.2 mitlion, respectively, for
the Parent Company.

Direct operating expenses on investment properties that generated rental income {included under
“Litigation expenses’) in 2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to P28.5 miltion, #18.0 miltion and
£33.7 million. respectively, for the Group and 27.2 million, 817.9 million and £32.7 million,
respectively, for the Parent Company. Direct operating expenses on investment properties that did
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not generate rental income (included under *Litigation expenses’) in 2012, 2011 and 2010
amounted to P288.1 million, £333.2 million and B270.4 million, respectively, for the Group and
P227.7 million, B296.9 miilion and £239.3 million, respectively, for the Parent Company

(Note 25).

Net gains from sale of investment properties (included in *Profit from assets sold’ in the statement
of income) in 2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted 1o £1.0 billion, £807.2 million and £1.1 billion,
respectively, for the Group and RB[.0 billion, P800.4 million and P997.4 million, respectively, for
the Parent Company (Note 31).

13.

Non-Current Asset Held For Sale

On October 22, 2012, the respective BOD of the Parent Company and GT Capital Holdings, Inc.
(GT Capital with 25.11% ownership in the Parent Company) on separate meetings, upon the
endorsement of their respective Related Party Transaction Committees, have approved in principle
the sale of the former’s 30% ownership in TMPC to GT Capital at a consideration of £9.0 billion.
This amount was arrived at after an independent valuation exercise and subjected to third party
fairness opinions. The divestment of TMPC shares was undertaken by the Parent Company to
enhance its regulatory capital position in preparation tor the implementation of Basei 1.
Accordingly. in December 2012, the Parent Company sold its 15% ownership in TMPC and
recognized a gain on sale of £3.4 biilion and 24.2 billion for the Group and the Parent Company,
respectively (Note 313,

As of December 31, 2012, this account represents the remaining 15% ownership of the Parent
Company in TMPC (Note 36a).

. Other Assets

This account consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Creditable withholding lax BL749 B1.053 B1.331 2776
Interofiice float items 1,550 £.792 1.288 1.758
Assets held under joint ventures 1,189 3210 1,189 3.210
Softwarc costs - net 832 442 514 187
Residual value af leased assets 609 417 - -
Chattel propertics acquired in forcclosure - net 479 430 19 17
Prepaid expenses 385 339 79 86
Documentary and postage stamps an hand 132 90 110 90
Returned checks and other cash items 80 67 63 47
Retirement asset (Note 26) 25 125 - 101
Other investments 13 14 10 10
Investments in SPVs - net - - - -
Miscellancous 3,097 2.233 2.496 1.658
10,140 10.232 7.099 7.940
Less allawance for impairment losses (Note 15) 861 984 814 742

B9,279 P9.248 6,285 27,198
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Assets held under joint ventures are parcels of land and former branch sites of the Parent Company
with net realizable value of 1.2 billion and 3.2 billion as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, which were contributed to separate JVs with Federal Land, Inc. and Federal [.and

Orix Corporation (Note 31).

Movements in software costs account follow:

Consolidated

Parent Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
Cost
Balance at beginning of vear B 445 £1.261 P68S 2630
Additions 662 216 476 60
Disposals/others (314) (32) (67) {2)
Balance at end of year 1,793 1.445 1,097 688
Acceumulated amortization
Balance at beginning of year 1,003 761 S01 368
Amortization 236 230 120 120
Disposals/others (278) 12 (38) 13
Balance at end of year 901 1.003 583 301
Net book value at end of vear £832 £442 Bs14 B187
Movements in chattel properties acquired in foreclosure follow:

Consolidated Parent Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
Cost
Balance at beginning of vear £566 P18 ©73 P85
Additions 204 748 22 18
Disposals/others (883) (600} (67} (30)
Balance at end of year 587 566 28 3
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Balance at beginning of year 127 148 53 73
Depreciation and amortization 113 88 6 7
Disposals/others (145) (0% (33) 27
Balance at end of year 95 127 6 33
Allowance for impairment losses (Note 13)
Balance at beginning of vear 9 ] 3 3
Provisien for impairment loss 4 : - -
Disposals — H - -
Balance at end of year 13 9 3 3
Net book value at end of year 479 P430 B19 Bl7

Investments in SPVs represent subordinated notes issued by CG3AMI and LNC3AMI with face
amount of 89.4 billion and £2.6 billion, respectively. These notes are non-interest bearing and
payable over five (5) years starting April 1. 2006, with rollover of two (2) years at the option of
the note issuers. These were received by the Parent Company on April 1, 2006 in exchange for the
subordinated note issued by Asia Recovery Corporation (ARC) in 2003 with face amount of
B11.9 billion. The subordinated note issued by ARC represents payment on the nonperforming
assets (NPAs) sold by the Parent Company to ARC in 2003. The related deed of absolute sale was
formalized on September 17, 2003 and approved by the BSP on November 28, 2003, having
qualified as a true sale. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the estimated fair value of the
subordinated notes, which is the present value of the estimated cash flows from such notes

{derived from the sale of the underlying collaterals of the NPAs, net of the payment to senior notes
by the SPV) amounted to nil, after deducting allowance for impairment losses of 8.8 billion.
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Miscellaneous account includes certificates of deposits totaling USD 11 miltion (with peso
equivalent of P451.6 million and P491.0 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively)
that are pledged by the Parent Company’s New York Branch in compliance with the regulatory
requirements of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Office ot the Controller of the
Currency in New York.

Further, miscellaneous account includes downpayment to a real estate company. a related party,
amounting to £1.1 billion relative to the purchase of commercial and office spaces located at
Bonifacio Global city, Taguig City (Note 31) and a receivable from a third party of

P425.7 million, pertaining to the final tax withheld on PEACe bonds which matured on
October 18, 2011 {Note 30).

. Allowance for Credit and Impairment Losses

Changes in the allowance for credit and impairment losses follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
December 31
2012 2011 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year;
AFS investments (Note 8)
Debt sccurities - private [ B1.073 8977
Equity seeuritics
Quoted 337 377 90 123
Unquoted 224 243 86 86
HTM investments (Nate §) - 219 - 219
Loans and receivables (Note 9) 14,884 14.941 8,666 9,124
Investments in subsidiaries (Note 11) - : 754 351
Investments in agsociates (Note 11) 150 252 IS0 150
Property and equipment (Note 10) 12 2 - -
Investment properties (Note 12) 2,526 2,761 2,0:44 2.293
Olher assets* (Note 14) 9,850 9,609 9,601 9.571
27,983 29.477 21,391 22.894
Provisions for credit and impairment losscs** 4,478 3.823 777 1.186
Disposals (376) (2.000) (275) (1.980
Accounts wrinten oft/others (3,249 (3317 (320) £709)
Batance at end ot vear;
[nterbank loans and receivabie (Note 7) 2 - - -
AFS investments (Note 8)
Debt securitics - private - - -
Equity seeuritics
Quated 308 337 9 90
Unquoted 268 224 86 86
HTM investments (Note 8) - - - -
[.oans and receivables (Note 9) 15,726 14.884 8,233 8.066
Investments in subsidiaries (Nate [1) - - L1253 754
Investments in associates (Note 11) 162 15¢ 162 150
Property and equipment (Note 10) 2 [2 — -
Investment properties (Note 12) 2,640 2526 2,002 2,044
Other assets* (Note 14) 9,731 9,830 9,675 9.601
£28,836 £27.983 £21,373 P21.391

* Allowance for eredit and impairment lasses aof other assets include allowanee on investments in SPVs. chattel
mortgage properties and miscellaneous assets.
**Nct of reversal of credit and impairment losses.
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Below is the breakdown of provision for credit and impairment losses:

Consolidated Parent Company
December 31
2012 2011 2010 2012 201t 2080
Interbank loans and receivable
{Notes 7 and 33) $2 P— P o £ B
AT'S investments (32) 17 252 - - 173
Loans and reecivables
Receivables from customers 4,037 2.817 2,983 660 330 170
Unquoted debt instruments 24 304 232 - - 104
Accounts receivable 120 i58 108 60 130 97
Sales contract receivable 3 - - - - 196
Other receivables 127 99 124 - - -
Investments in subsidiaries - 36 - - 403 351
Investments in associales - (203) 102 - -
Property and equipment (Note 10) - 10 - - - -
Investment propertics (Note 12) 340 34] 878 57 291 827
Chattel properties acquired in
foreclosure (Note 14) 4 - - - - -
Other assets (147) 244 2.586 - 32 2.567
P4.478 B3.823 B7.285 B777 P1.186 P4.485

With the foregoing level of allowance for credit and impairment losses, management believes that
the Group has sufficient allowance to take care of any losses that the Group may incur from the

noncollection or nonrealization of its recetvables and other risk assets.

A reconciliation of the allowance for credit losses by class of loans and receivables is as follows:

Consolidated

Residential
Commercial Mortgage Other
Loans Loans  Auto Loans Lrade Others Subtotal Receivables* Total
Ralance at January 1. 2012 B5,508 B628 BSIt £339 £3,009 #10,045 P4.439 Pl4,884
Provisinns during the year 887 92 173 27 2,858 4,037 274 4,381
Accounts writien oft’ (131) - 0 (76) (2,591) (2,798) (160 (2,958)
Reclassifications others (9%) (20) 52 (2) [RE)] {7 (432) (5t1)
Balanuce at December 31, 2012 #6,169 700 ¥736 £338 £3,262 ®11.20% £4.521 £15,726
Individual impatirment B4644 B599 | 24 £206 £754 £6,205 #1856 #9061
Cnllective impairment 1,525 101 734 132 2.508 5,000 1,665 6,665
#6169 £700 #£736 £338 £3,262 #£11,205 4,528 F15.726
Omss amount of loans
individually determined
to be unpaired #7578 #1000 5 R208 £O52 #9749 P5.134 #14.583
HBalance at January 1. 2011 BS.705 232 P408 Ps3l P3115 7O 161 P4.780 H14.941
Provisions during the year 685 10 43 - 2029 2817 361 3378
Accounts witten off {477} - {17 (178) 12.161) (2.893) {40} {2.93%9)
Recl assifications/others 403) 306 (3 6 26 {4i}) (456) {496}
Balance at December 31, 2011 B3 508 P6Z8 8511 PIRG B3.009 Pi0.045 Bl 839 B14.884
Individual impatoment P1.733 P3g3 Pl #3889 439 Bo. 165 £3 398 B0 563
Cotlective impainment 778 45 S0 - 2,530 3.880 1.441 5321
B3.508 P62R P3| P89 23006 B10.045 £41.839 Bl4.884
Cirnss antount of loans
individually determined
w0 be nnpared BY 5SRO Po57 P4 2667 P77 211.830 BA035 P10.8G5
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Parent Company

Residential
Coemmercial Murtgage Other
Loans Loans  Aute Loans Trade Others Subtotal  Receivables® Total
Balance at January 1, 2012 24,116 Pdd6 £21 £389 P38 £3,010 83,656 £8,666
Provisions during the year 614 1 - 27 18 660 60 720
Agcounts written oft (115} - 0 (76) (n (192) (100) (292}
Reclassificationsiothers (302) (15) 1] ) (1) (321 {540) (861)
TBalance at December 31, 2012 £4.313 432 [ [ AR £54 £5,157 £3.076 #8,233
Individual impairment £3.833 £384 £1 R206 £54 B4,482 £2.175 #6657
Collective impainment 480 44 19 132 — 675 901 1,576
£4,313 £432 ®10 ®338 BS54 B5. 187 #3076 £3,233
Grass amount of loans
ndividually determined 1o
be nmpaieed RG6.501 £539 #3 #208 £62 #7373 #£4,054 £11,427
Balance at Junuary 1, 2071 #4638 P139 £23 B528 B2 B5.370 P3.754 P9.124
Provisions durtng the year 327 3 - - 330 130 160
Accounts wntten oft 457y - 4] t178) (2} {639) 125 {664y
Reclassifications/others {412) 307 {3) 19 18 (51 {203) (254)
Balance at December 31, 2011 P4.116 P46 P2i P89 P38 83010 PiB306 BB.H6O
Individual impairment P1.079 P443 P- P389 P38 P4.931 P2.760 #7711
Collective impairment 37 | 21 39 896 935
16 Biin P2l P3gg P3g P30 #3636 P8.666
Gross amount of loans
induvidually deternuned to
be itnpared P7 981 £637 2- BO67 B90 B9 01 84,935 B14.336
¥ Ailowance for credit iosses on other recervables include aliowance pn unguoeted debt seeurntties. accounts receivabics, accrued
interest receivable on AFS and HTM nvestments, sales contract receivables and defictency judgment recervable
Movements in the allowance for credit and impairment losses on AFS investments, HTM
investments and other assets follow:
Consolidated
AFS Investments
Debt Equity HTM™M
Securities Securities Investments  Other Assets*® Total
Balance at January 1, 2012 [ B561 $- £9.850 £10.411
Provisions for eredit and impairmcnt losses - (32) - (143) {175)
Accounts wrtten-off - - - (56) (56)
Disposals - - - ] 6
Reciassifications/others - 44 - 74 118
Balance at December 31, 20402 P P73 P £9,731 £10,304
Balance at January 1. 2011 Bi1.073 RO 2216 29609 #11.521
Provisions tor credit and impairment Ipsses - 17 - 243 260
Disposals {976) (33) (216) (i) (1.226)
Reclussifications/others (97) (43} (3) (1) (144)
Balance at December 31, 2011 B B361 P B9850 2041
Parent Company
AFS [nvestments
Debt Equity HTM
Securities Securities Investments  Other Assets® Tolal
Balance at January 1, 2012 L= ®i76 £- £9,6001 #9777
Provisions for credit and impairment Josaes - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
Reclassifications/others - - - 74 74
Balance at December 31, 2012 - £176 P PY.675 R9.851
Balance at January |, 2011 B977 B209 P219 £Y.570 PIDYTS
Provisions for credit and impatrment fosses - - - 31 3
Disposals (976) (33) (216) - (1.225)
Reclassifications/others (1) - (3 - (4)
Batance at December 31, 2011 2 2176 B 29601 B 777

*Allowance for credit and impairment Josses of other assets include allowance on iavestments in SPVs, chattel mortgage propertics and

miscellangous assets
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16. Deposit Liabilities

As of December 31, 2012 and 201 1. 9.35% and 8.63% of the total interest-bearing deposit
liabilitics of the Group. respectively, are subject to periodic interest repricing. Remaining peso
deposit liabilities earn annual fixed interest rates ranging from 0.00% to 6.59%, from 0.00% to
6.59% and from 0.00% to 7.50% in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, while foreign currency-
denominated deposit liabilities earn annual fixed interest rates ranging from 0.00% to 3.50%, from
0.00% to 3.50% and from 0.00% to 2.50% in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Interest expense on deposit liabilities consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Demand £293 B276 £191 B217 Bl19%6 P135
Savings 1,045 1.159 1.069 988 1.109 1,022
Time 7.418 8.799 8,453 4,474 5.7035 5.913
B8,756 £10.234 B9.713 £5,679 #7.010 £7.070

Composition of Reserves

Under existing BSP regulations, non-FCDU deposit liabilities of the Parent Company and deposit
substitutes of FMIC, ORIX Metro and MCC are subject to liquidity reserves equivalent to 11.00%
and statutory reserves equivalent to 10.00%. On the other hand, non-FCDU deposit liabilities of
PSBank are subject to liquidity reserves equivalent to 2.00% and statutory reserves equivalent to
6.00%.

On March 29, 2012, the BSP issued Circular No. 753 mandating the unification of the
statutory/legal and liquidity reserves requirement on deposit liabilities and deposit substitutes. As
such, effective the reserve week starting April 6. 2012, non-FCDU deposit liabilities of the Parent
Company and deposit substitutes of FMIC, ORIX Metro and MCC are subject (o required reserves
equivalent to 18.0%. On the other hand, non-FCDU deposit liabilities of PSBank are subject to
required reserves equivalent to 6.0%. In compliance with this Circular, government securities
which are used as compliance with the regular and/or liquidity reserve requirements shall continue
to be eligibie until they mature and cash in vault shall no longer be included as reserve. The
required rescrves shall be kept in the form of deposits maintained in the Demand Deposit
Accounts (DDAs) with the BSP. Further. deposits maintained with the BSP in compliance with
the reserve requirement shall no longer be paid interest.

The Parent Company. PSBank. FMIC, ORiX Metro, and MCC were in compiiance with such
regulations as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

The total required reserves and total tiquidity and statutory reserves as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively, as reported to the BSP follows:

Parent Company PSBank FMIC
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Cash and other ¢ash items - £16.600 [ P3.842 P £10.944
Due from BSP 96,014 84.469 5,135 1.907 8.000 1.173
AFS investments — — — 1,787 — —

£96.014 B101.06Y9 P5,135 B7.536 £3,000 B12.117
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QRIX Metro MOC
2012 2011 2012 2011
Due from BSP 21,97 B1.677 £3.832 B688
Due [rom other banks - - - 2.962
£1,917 B1.677 £3,832 £3.650

17.

Bills Payable and Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements

This account consists of borrowings from:

Consolidated IParent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Deposit substitutes £59,607 B3O.37T - P
Local banks 15,358 17.398 1,437 246
Fareign banks 12,876 5.788 9,720 977
SSURA 9,267 16.8G4 5,066 12,377
£97.108 P99.657 £16,223 B13.600

Interbank borrowings with foreign and local banks are mainiy short-term borrowings. The
Group’s peso borrowings are subject to annual fixed interest rates ranging from 1.00% to 8.12%,
from 1.00% to 8.54% and from 1.00% to 8.40% in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, while the
Group’s foreign currency-denominated borrowings are subject to annual fixed interest rates
ranging from 0.15% to 1.95%, from 0.10% to 2.90% and from 0.15% t0 4.10% in 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

Deposit substitutes pertain to borrowings from the public of FMIC, ORIX Metro and MCC.

The following are the carrying values of the investment securities pledged and trans ferred under
SSURA transactions of the Group and the Parent Company:

Consolidated
2012 2011
Transferred Transferred

Securities SSURA Securities SSURA

Government debt securities (Note 8)
AFS investments £5,215 £4,284 B12.791 Bi2.377
HTM investments 3,371 2,851 360 369
8.586 7,135 13,190 12.776

Unquoted debt securities {Note )

Government 1,320 1,320 706 706
Private 812 812 3.412 3412
2,132 2,132 4,118 4.118
210,718 £9,267 217,308 £16.894

Parent Company

2012 2001
Transferred Transterred
Securities SSURA Sccuritics SSURA
Government debt securities (Note 8)
AFS investments B5,215 £4.284 BI12,791 B12.377
H'I'M investments 733 782 -- -
£5,948 BS5,066 212791 212377
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Interest expense on bills payable (included in the *Interest expense on bills payable and SSURA,
subordinated debt and others’ in the statement of income) in 2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to
£3.3 billion. £3.7 billion and 3.5 billion, respectively, lor the Group and £0.1 billion,

£0.1 billion and £0.5 billion. respectively, for the Parent Company.

18.

Accrued Interest and Other Expenses

This account consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Accrued interest (Nate 31) £1.811 £2.020 BY59 P1,207
Accrued other expenses (Note 31) 6.531 3,180 4,948 3,340
£8,342 £7.200 85,907 B4.547

Accrued other expenses include accruals for salaries and wages, fringe benefits, rentals,
percentage and other taxes, insurance on deposits. professional fees, advertisements and
information technology expenses.

. Bonds Payable

This account represents scripless fixed rate corporation bonds issued by FMIC as follows:

Redemption Carrying value
[ssue Date Maturity Date Interest Rate Period Face Value 2012 200 1
November 25,201 1 February 23,2017 5.68%  aftera” vear B5.000 P4.967 B4.RTS
August 10,2012 November 20, 2017 550%  after 47 vear 1,000 3,894 -
August 10,2012 Augusi 10, 2019 5.75% alter 5™ year 3,000 2,973 -
P12,600 211,834 84 875

These bonds are issued in principal amounts of 250.000 and in multiples of 5.000 in excess of
50,000 with an option to redeem in whole. but not in part. on any quarterly interest payment after
the fourth or fifth anniversary of the issue date at 102.00% of'its face value plus accrued interest.
These are exempt securities pursuant to certain provisions of the Securities Regulation Code and
are covered by deed of assignments on government securities held in trust by a collateral agent
which shall have aggregate market value of 100.00% of the issued amount, otherwise, additional
government securities shall be offered to increase and maintain the cover at 100.00%.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the carrving amount of the government securities assigned
as collateral classified under HTM investiments amounted to £9.97 billion and 4.4 billion,
respectively, with market value of 12,54 billien and 85.3 billion, respectively (Note 8). As of
December 31,2012 and 2011, FMIC has complied with the terms of the issuance.

Interest expense on bonds payable (included in *Interest expense on bills pavable and SSURA,

subordinated debt and others™) in 2012 and 201 | amounted to B439.3 million and £28.3 million,
respectively.
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20. Subordinated Debt

This account consists of the following Peso Notes:

Carrying Value Market Value

Maturity Date Face Value 2012 2011 2012 2011

Parcnt Company
2017 October 19, 2017 B8.500 o P8.486 [ B8.346
2018 October 3. 2018 5,500 5,490 5.477 5,451 5.357
2019 May 6. 2019 4.500 4,487 4.479 4415 4,324
18.500) 9,977 18.442 9,866 18.027
MCC - 2019 June 30. 2019 1,300 1,296 1.293 1,423 1.480
PSBank - 2022 February 20, 2022 3,000 2,970 — 3,397 —
B22.800 214,243 B19,735 14,686 B19.507

Peso Notes issued by the Parent Company are unsecured and subordinated obligations and will
rank pari passu and without any preference among themselves and at least equally with all other
present and future unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Parent Company. These Peso
Notes have a term of 10 years and are redeemable at the option of the Parent Company (but not the
holders) after the fifth year in whole but not in part at redemption price equal to 100.00% of the
principal amount together with accrued and unpaid interest on the date of redemption, subject to
the prior consent of the BSP. Further. at any time within the first 5 years from respective issue
dates of these Notes, upon (a) a change in tax status due to changes in laws and/or regulations or
{b) the non-qualification as Lower Tier 2 capital as determined by BSP of these Notes, the Parent
Company may, upon prior approval of BSP and at least 30-day prior written notice to the
Noteholders on record, redeem all and not less than all of the outstanding Peso Notes prior to
stated maturity by paying the face value plus accrued interest at the interest rate. Also, the
following shall be prohibited from purchasing and/or holding these Peso Notes: (1) subsidiaries
and afftliates. including the subsidiaries and affitliates of the Parent Company’s subsidiaries and
affiliates; (2) unit investment trust funds managed by the Trust Department of the Parent
Company, its subsidiaries and afttliates or other related entities; and (3) other funds being
managed by the Trust Department of the Parent Company, its subsidiaries and affiliates or other
related entities where (a) the fund owners have not given prior authority or instruction to the Trust
Department to purchase or invest in the Peso Notes or (b) the authority or instruction of the fund
owner and his understanding of the risk involved in purchasing or investing in the Peso Notes are
not fully documented.

Each Noteholder may not exercise or claim any right of set-off in respect of any amount owed to it
by the Parent Company arising under or in connection with the Peso Notes and to the fullest extent
permitted by applicable law, waive and be deemed to have waived all such rights of set-off. These
Notes are not deposits and are not insured by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation
(PDIC).

On September [7, 2008, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the listing of the 2018 Peso
Notes and the 2017 Peso Notes with the Philippine Dealing Exchange (PDEX).
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Specific terms of these Notes tollow:

Parent Company

2017 Peso Notes - issued on October 19, 2007 at 100.00% of the principal amount of £8.5 billion

¢ Bear interest at 7.00% per annum from and including October 19, 2007 to but excluding
October 19, 2012, Interest will be payable quarterly in arrears on January 19, April 19,
July 19 and October 19 of each year, commencing on January 19, 2008 up to and including
October 19, 2012. Unless these Notes are previously redeemed, the interest rate from and
including October 19, 2017 will be reset at the equivalent of the five-year PDST-F as of the
Reset date multiplied by 80% plus a spread of 2.4485% per annum, and such interest will be
payable quarterly in arrears on January 19, April 19, July 19 and October 19 each year,
commencing on January 19, 20E2 up to and including October 19, 2017. On
October 22, 2012, the Parent Company exercised its call option which was approved by the
BSP on September 6, 2012.

2018 Peso Notes - issued on October 3, 2008, at 100.00% of the principal amount of 3.5 billion

e Bear interest at 7.75% per annum from and including October 3, 2008 to but excluding
October 3, 2013. Interest will be payable quarterly in arrears on January 3, April 3, July 3 and
October 3 of each year, commencing January 3, 2009 up to and including October 3, 2013,
Uniess these are previously redeemed, the interest rate from and including October 3, 2013 to
but excluding October 3, 2018 will be reset at the equivalent of the five-year PDST-F as of the
Reset date multiplied by 8§0.00% plus a spread of 2.71% per annum. Interest will be payable
quarterly in arrears on January 3, April 3, July 3 and October 3 of each year, commencing
January 3. 2014 up to and including October 3, 2018.

2019 Peso Notes - issued on May 6. 2009, at 100.00% of the principal amount of £4.5 billion

¢ Bear interest at 7.50% per annum from and including May 6, 2009 to but excluding
May 6. 2014, Interest will be payable quarterly in arrears on August 6, November 6,
February 6. and May 6. commencing August 6, 2009 up to and including May 6, 2014,
Unless these are previously redeemed, the interest rate from and including May 6, 2014 to but
excluding May 6, 2019 will be reset at the equivalent of the five-year PDST-F as of the Reset
date multiplied by 80.00% plus a spread of 3.53% per annum. Interest will be payvable
quarterly in arrears on August 6, November 6, February 6 and May 6 of each vear,
commencing August 6, 2014 up to and including May 6. 2019,

MCC

2019 Peso Notes - issued on June 30, 2009 at 100.00% of the princtpal amount of £1.3 bitlion

* Bear interest at 8.40% per annum from and including June 30, 2009 but excluding
June 30, 2014 which is payable quarterly in arrears every 30th of September. December,
March and June of each year, commencing on September 30, 2009.

s Constitute direct, unconditional, and unsecured obligations of MCC and ¢laim in respect of
the 2019 Notes shall be at all times pari passu and without any preference among themselves.

s Subject to the written appraval of the BSP, MCC may redeem all and not less than the entire
outstanding 2019 Notes, at a redemption price equal to the face value together with acerued
and unpaid interest based on the interest rate.

On September 30, 2014 (the Reset date), the Step-up Interest Rate will be based on a 5-year
PDST-F FXTN as of the Reset date multiplied by 80.00%, plus the Step-up Credit Spread on the
twenty-first interest period up to the last interest period in the event that the issuer does not
exercise the Call Option. The Step-up Credit Spread is equivalent to 4.92%.
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PSBank

2022 Peso Notes - issued on February 20, 2012 at 100.00% of the principal amount of

B3.0 billion

* Bear interest at 5.75% per annum {rom and including February 20, 2012 but excluding
February 20, 2017 which is payable quarterly in arrears every May 20, August 20,
November 20 and February 20, commencing on February 20, 2012.

¢ Constitute direct, unconditional, and unsecured obligations of PSBank and claim in respect of
the 2022 Notes shall be at all times pari passu and without any preference among themselves.

¢  Subject to satisfaction of certain regulatory approval requirements, PSBank may redeem all
and not less than the entire outstanding 2022 Notes, at a redemption price equal to the face
value together with accrued and unpaid interest based on the interest rate,

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Parent Company. PSBank and MCC are in compliance
with the terms and conditions upon which these subordinated notes have been issued.

In 2012, 20[1 and 2010. interest expense on subordinated debt included in *Interest expense on
bills payable and SSURA, subordinated debt and others” amounted to 1.5 billion,

£1.5 billion and 1.7 billion (including amortization of 40.0 million, R62.3 million and

£39.6 million). respectively, for the Group, and £1.3 billion, 1.4 billion and B1.4 billion
(including amortization of P35.2 million, P36.7 million and B33.4 million), respectively, for the
Parent Company.

Other Liabilities

This account consists of?

Consolidated Parent Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

Bills purchased - contra (Note 9) £15.217 B10.695 RIS, 150 £10.630
Accounts payable (Note 31) 6,136 5.954 3,691 3.693
Marginal deposits 1,846 374 152 97
Non-¢quity non-controlling interests 1.513 704 - -
Retirement liability (Note 26)* 1,010 184 761 -
Outstanding acceptances 968 1,064 968 1.064
Deposits on lease conltracls 832 397 - -
Deferred revenues 708 553 78 67
Withholding taxes payabie 517 414 342 249
Other credits 496 391 341 295
Miscellancous 2,345 2.307 §29 783
£31,588 £23.237 $22,318 £16.878

*Includes retivement liability of'a forcign branch and a foreign subsidiary

Deferred revenues include deferral and refease of MCC’s lovalty points program transactions and
membership fees and dues.

Non-equity non-controlling interests arise when mutual funds are consolidated and where the
Group holds less than 100% of the investment in these funds. When this occurs, the Group
acquires a liability in respect of non-controlling interests in the funds of which the Group has
control. Such non-controlling interests are distinguished from equity non-controlling interests in
that the Group does not hold an equity stake in such funds.
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Miscellaneous liabilities of the Group include notes payable amounting to 2488.1 million as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. This account also includes the proceeds from
sale of corporate bonds with recourse amounting to 262.5 million and P66.7 million as of
December 31, 2012 and 201 |, respectively.

. Maturity Profile of Assets and Liabilities

The following tables present the assets and liabilities by contractual maturity and settlement dates:

Consolidated

2012 2011
Due Within Due Bevond Due Within Due Beyond
One Year One Year Total One Year One Year Tonal
Financial Assets - at gross
Cash and other cash itens £24.382 B £2.4.382 P20.954 B 220,954
Due from B8P 131.278 - 131.278 156,537 156,337
Due from other banks 22557 - 22557 32095 32,095
Interbank loans receivahle and SPURA (Note 7) 23,394 - 23394 24367 24367
Financial asscts at FYPL { Note &) 10,363 56,358 66,721 2983 3204 5,188
AFS investments (Note 8) 24,792 98,739 123,531 23985 119.633 143,618
H M investments (Note 8} 8.851 42,6101 51451 38495 43,562 47437
Receivables from cusiomers (Note 9) 273,890 251,654 525,544 223334 231008 454,391
Unguoted debr securtties {Note 9) t,701 6113 7814 1.773 10,783 12.356
Acerued interest receivahle (Note 9 7,356 - 7356 7051 - 7.051
Accounts receivable (Note 9) 4,044 - 4,044 4227 - 4227
Sales contract receivable {Note 9) 133 204 037 73 687 760
Other receivables { Nore 93 1,492 - 1,492 240 54 394
Other assets (Nate 14)
Eateroffice float items 1,550 - 1,550 1.792 1792
Returned checks and ather cash items 80 - 80 o7 - 67
Residual value of leased assets 383 226 60y HIU 07 417
{ther investments - 13 13 - 14 14
Investments m SPVs 8,857 - 8.857 B 857 - 8837
Pledge certificate of time deposit 452 - 452 491 - 491
Miscellancous assels ~ 457 457 - 457 457
$45,885 456,664 1.002.219 312.834 H)9.706 922 540
Nonfinaneial Assets - at gross
Propenty and equipment (Note 10} - 31,048 31048 28.858 28,858
[nvestments in associatcs {Note 11) - 16,867 16,867 - 17.791 17.791
Investment propertics (Note 12} - 20,098 20,098 - 20,165 20,165
Non-current asscr held for sale (Note 13) 1,102 - 1,162 -
Deterred tax assets (Note 18) - 7.876 7,876 7397 7.507
Goodwill (Nopte 11) - @409 6,409 - 6413 0413
Retirement asset { Note 26} - 25 25 123 i25
Assets held under joint ventures (Note 14) . 1.184 1,189 3210 3.210
Aceounts recelvable [ Note 9) - 1.722 1,722 - 1.722 1.722
(nher assers {Note 19) 2,266 4568 6,834 1.502 3396 4.798
3,368 59,802 93,170 1.502 89,177 AN6T9
P548,923 R546,466 1,095389 Bs14 336 P498 883 i013.2i9
Less:
Limearned discounts and capitalized imerest
{Note 9y 7,i80 8643
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
{Notes 10, 12 and 14} 18,793 18.207
Allowanee for credit and impainmnent losses
{Nore 13) 28,836
R®1.040,580
{Forward)
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Consolidated
2012 2011
Due Within Due Beyond [ue Within e Bevond
One Year One Year Total Chie Year One Year Total
Financial Liabilities
Deposit lamhiies
Demand #106,229 - £106,229 P77.589 P- BI7.589
Savings 305,034 - 305,034 283011 - 283011
Time 309,651 17,780 327431 33,548 17.045 320.393
720,914 17,780 738,694 663 948 17.045 680,993
Rifls payable and S5URA (Nowe 17) 83,094 14,014 97,108 9i.572 B.083 95,657
Denvative liabilitics 6,692 — 6,692 2751 68 1819
Manager's checks and demand drafts outstanding 3,489 - 3.489 2610 - 2610
Aecrued interest and other expenses 6,732 - 6,732 6,602 - 6.602
Borls payable (Note 19) - 11,834 11,834 4,878 4873
Subordinated debt (Note 20} 4,260 9977 14,243 19,735 19.735
Other habilitics {(Note 21)
Bills purchased - conra 15217 - 15217 10.695 1,693
Accounts payabie 6,136 - 6,136 5931 5954
Non-gquity non-contrelling intcrest 1,513 - 1.513 704 104
Marpinal depuosits 1,846 - 1,846 374 374
Outstandiny aceeptances Y68 - 968 1064 1,064
Deposits on lease contracts 243 589 832 159 438 597
Dividends payable 66 - 66 3t - 31
Miscellancous 188 488 - 488 188
851,176 54,682 95,858 786104 50,734 837 198
Nonfinancial Liabilities
Retirement liability { Note 26) - 1,010 1,000 184 184
Income taxes pavable 1,326 - 1,326 597 - 597
Acerued interest and other expenscs 1,610 - 1.610 398 598
Withholding taxes pavable {Note 21) 517 - 517 414 - 414
Deferred tax and other hiabihties (Notes 21 and 28) 2,499 740 3,239 2341 548 2889
5,952 1,750 7,702 3950 732 4,682
R857,128 R56,432 £913.5611 2790414 P51 466 PR41.880
Parent Company
2012 2011
Duc Within Due Bevond Due Within Due Beyond
One Year One Year Tatal One Year Ong Year Total
Financial Assets - at pross
Cash and other cash Tiems £21,540 2 B21.540 Ri6.983 P Pl6.98s
Due fromm BSP 111,515 - 111,518 146,636 146,636
Dug trom other banks 7873 - 7,873 13.310 i3.310
Interbank loans receivable and SPURA (Note 7) 15046 - 15,046 1222 3212
Financial asscts at FVPL (Note 8) 1,344 56,29 57.635 1,303 3204 4597
AFS investiments {Note 8) 23,694 79,056 102,750 3034 111,118 [t6.152
HTM investments (Note §) 8,574 12,917 21,491 3.895 13,509 17.464
Rcecivables from customers (Noie 9) 219,247 176.762 396,009 184 219 164205 348,424
Unquoted debi secunties {Note 9) 765 S48 1313 673 2,069 2,742
Accrued interest reecivable (Note 9) 5,646 - 5,646 5241 — 5,241
Accounts receivable (Note 9) 3070 - 3,070 34335 3458
Sales contract receivable (Nowe 9) 11t 133 244 695 215 910
Other receivables (Notwe 9) 168 - 168 61 61
Cther assers (Note 1)
[nteroffice float Hems 1,288 — 1,288 1758 1,754
Rctumed checks and other cash iems 63 - 63 47 - 47
Other investments - 10 10 - 10 i0
Investments in SPv's 8,857 - 8,857 8.857 8,857
Pledged certtficaie of bme deposit 452 - 452 491 - 491
Miscelianeous assets — 457 457 457 437
429,255 326,174 TRS.427 395972 204 847 690,819
Nonfinancial Assets - at gross
Property and equipment {Note 10) 22,218 12215 70,920 20,920
Investment in subsidianes (Note 11) - 26,047 26,047 26153 26,153
Investments im assoeiares { Note 1) 740 740 1413 1413
Investiment properties { Note 12y - 15475 15478 - 14.820 14.820
Now-carrent asset held for sale {Note 13) 336 336 -
Deferrcd tax assets (Note 28) - 6,333 6,333 - 6.065 6.06%
Goodwill (Note 113 1,203 1,203 - 1203 i.203
Retirement asset { Note 26) - - 101 int
Assets held under joint ventures (Noie 14) — 1,189 1,189 3210 3200
Accounts reeeivable (Nowe 9) - 1,722 1,722 1,722 1.722
Other assets (Note i4) 1,520 2,713 4,233 932 1371 2423
1,856 77,637 79,493 952 77.078 78.030
£431.109 #403,811 834,920 P396.924 RITL.925 768.84%

{Forward)
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Parent ¢ v
2012 2041
Due Yithin Due Bevend Due Within Duc Bevond
(Ine Year One Vear Total One Year Onie Ycar Total
Leys:
Uneamed discounts and capitalized interest
(Note 9) #1,376 pP1.848
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
(Notes 10,12 and 14) t4,088 13,798
Allowance for credit and inpainment losses
{Note 15) 21,373 21391
£798,113 P731.812
Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilitics
Demand £54.516 - BOLSLO £71.667 2 B71.667
Savinus 293,934 - 293934 272.13] 272,331
Time 245,135 834 245,969 236958 680 237638
633,585 834 634,419 580,956 680 581,636
Bills pasable and SSLRA (Note 17) 16,223 - 16,223 135397 3 13.600
Denivative labifities 6,425 - 6425 2.689 2.689
Manager™s checks and demand drafts outstanding 2,732 — 2,732 1.933 - 1955
Accrued interest and other expenses 3,297 - 4,297 3949 3949
Subordinated debt (Note 20 - 9,977 9977 18442 18,442
Other fiabilities (Note 21)
Bills purchased - contra 15,156 - 15,156 10.630 10,630
Accounts payabie 3,691 - 3,691 3693 - 3.693
Marginal deposits 152 - 152 97 - 97
Qutstanding acceptances 968 — 968 1.064 L.404
643,229 10,811 694,040 618.630 i9.125 637,755
Nonfinanctal Liahilities
Retiement l1abtlity ( Note 26) - 761 761 -
income taxes payable 12 - a2 22 322
Accrued interest and other expenses 1.610 - 161 598 598
Withhalding raxes payable (Note 21) 342 - 342 249 249
(her Lisbilities (Note 211 997 341 1,248 850 295 1.145
3,771 1,102 4,473 2019 295 2314
R687,000 #11,913 £698,913 £620,649 #19.420 PG40.069

. Capital Stock

This account consists of (amounts in millions, except par value and number of shares):

Shares Amount
2012 2011 2012 2011
Common stock - #20,00 par valuc
Authorized 2,500,000,000 2.500.000.000
[ssued and outstanding
Balance at beginning of vear 2,111,386,017 1.911.386.017 842,228 £38.228
Issuance of common stock — 200,000.000 — 4.000
Balance at end of year 2,111,386,017 2.111.386.017 42,228 42228
HT1 Capital - - 6,351 6,351
2,111,386,017 2.111,386,017 B48.579 P48.579

All issued and outstanding shares of the Parent Company are listed with the PSE (Note 1). As of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Parent Company’s share price closed at B102.00 and B67.95 a

share, respectively,

Following the approval of the BOD of the Parent Company on October 13, 2010. on
January 24. 2011, the Parent Company has concluded the 10.0 billion stock rights offering,

involving 200 million common shares with a par value of £20.00 priced at £50.00 per share which
was computed based on the 10-trading day volume-weighted average price of the Parent
Company’s common shares on the PSE prior to the December 10, 2010 pricing date, subject to a
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discount of 30.50%. Stockholders were entitled to the rights as of December 20, 2010, the record
date, at the ratio of one (1) right share for every 9,557 common shares held.

HT1 Capital represents USD 125.0 million, 9.00% non-cumulative step-up callable perpetual
capital securities with liquidation preference of USD 100,000 per capital security issued by the
Parent Company on February [5, 2006 pursuant to a trust deed with The Bank of New York
(Trustee) and listed with the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The HT1 Capital is
governed by English law except on certain clauses in the Trust Deed which are governed by
Philippine law. Basic features of the HTI Capital foilow:

Coupons - bear interest at 9.00% per annum payable semi-annually in arrear from (and
including) February 15, 2006 to (but excluding) February 15, 2016, and thereafter at a rate,
reset and payable quarterly in arrear, of 6.10% per annum above the then prevailing London
interbank offered rate for three-month USD deposits. Under certain conditions, the Parent
Company is not obliged to make any coupon payment if the BOD ot the Parent Company, in
its absolute discretion, elects not to make any coupon payment in whole or in part.

Coupon Payment Dates - payable on February 15 and August 15 in each year, commencing on
August 15, 2006 (in respect of the period from (and including) February 15, 2006 to (but
excluding) August 15, 2006 and ending on February 15, 2016 (first optional redemption date):
thereafter coupon ameunts will be payable (subject to adjustment for days which are not
business days) on February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15 in each year
commencing on May 15, 2016.

Dividend and Capital Stopper - in the event that any coupon payment is not made, the Parent
Company: (a) will not declare or pay any distribution or dividend or make any other payment
or, and will procure that no distribution or dividend or other payment is made on any junior
share capital or any parity securities; or (b) will not redeem, purchase, cancel, reduce or
otherwise acquire any junior share capital or any parity securities. Such dividend and capital
stopper shall remain in force so as to prevent the Parent Company from undertaking any such
declaration, payment or other activity unless and until payment is made to the holders in an
amount equal to the unpaid amount. if any, of coupon payments in respect of coupon periods
in the 12 months including and immediately preceding the date such coupon payment was due.
and the BSP does not otherwise object.

Redemption

- may be redeemed at the option of the Parent Company (but not the holders) under optional
redemption, tax event call, and regulatory event call, subject to limitation of the terms of
the issuance.

- may not be redeemed (i) for so long as the dividend and capital stopper is in force; and
(ii) without the prior written approval of the BSP which. as of February 8, 2006, is subject
to the following conditions: (a) the Parent Company’s capital adequacy must be at least
equal to the BSP’s minimum capital ratio; and (b) the HT | Capital are simultancously
replaced with the issue of new capital which is neither smaller in size nor lower in quality
than the original issue.

The HT1 Capital is unsecured and subordinated to the claims of senior creditors. In the event of

the dissolution or winding-up of the Parent Company. holders will be entitled. subject to
satisfaction of certain conditions and applicable law. to receive a liquidation distribution
equivalent to the liquidation preference. Also, the HT1 Capital is not treated as deposit and is not
guaranteed or insured by the Parent Company or any of its related parties or the PDIC and these

SRR R




-94 -

may not be used as collateral for any loan availments. The Parent Company or any of its
subsidiaries may not at any time purchase HT | Capital except as permitted under optional
redemption, tax event call. and regulatory event call as described in the terms of issuance, The
HT1 Capital is sold to non-U.S. persons outside the United States pursuant to Regulation under the
U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and represented by a global certificate registered in the
name of a nominee of, and deposited with, a common depository for Euroclear and Clearstream.

The Parent Company paid the semi-annual coupoen amounting to USD 5.6 million from 2006 to
2012 after obtaining their respective BSP approvals. Details of approvals and payments from
2010 to 2012 are as follows:

Date of BSP Approval Date Paid

August 12, 2012 August 15, 2012
February 1, 2012 February 15, 2012
August 1, 2011 August 15, 2011
February 10, 201 | February 15, 2011
August 9, 2010 August 16, 2010
February 4, 2010 February 16, 2010

Details of the Parent Company’s cash dividend distributions from 2010 to 2012 follow:

Dalc of Declaration Per Share Total Amount  Date of BSP Approval Record date Pavment date
January 25, 20412 £1.00 B2 111 February 13,2012 March 5. 2012 March 26,2012
March 25, 2011 1.00 2001 April 28, 2011 Mav 16,2011 May 23, 2011
February 17,2000 0.60 1,084 March 8 2010 March 25,2010 April 15,2040

‘The computation of surplus available for dividend declaration in accordance with SEC
Memorandum Circular No. [1 issued in December 2008 ditfers to a certain extent from the
computation following BSP guidelines.

24,

Surplus Reserves

This account consists oft

2012 2011

Reserve for trust business P756 P672
Reserve for self-insurance 352 330
£1,108 £1.002

In compliance with existing BSP regulations, 10.00% of the Parent Company’s income from trust
business is appropriated to surplus rescrves. This yearly appropriation is required until the surplus
reserve for trust business equals 20.00% of the Parent Company’s regulatory net worth.

Reserve for self-insurance represents the amount set aside to cover losses due to fire, defalcation
by and other unlawful acts of the Parent Company s personnel or third parties.
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25.

Miscellaneous Income and Expenses

In 2012, 2011 and 2010, miscellaneous income includes gain on initial recognition of
investment properties and other nonfinancial assets amounting to £138.9 million, B238.2 million
and £446.1 million, respectively, for the Group and £121.9 million, £135.3 million and

#220.7 million, respectively, for the Parent Company and recovery on charged-off assets
amounting to £390.4 million, £324.8 million and £289.0 miilion, respectively, for the Group
and £46.2 million, 31.3 million and #8.1 million, respectively. for the Parent Company,

Miscellaneous expenses consist of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 20101 2010 2012 2011 2010
Security, muessengerial and janitorial £1,630 B1,374 P1.223 £1,304 £1.141 ®1.027
Insurance 1.480 1,528 1.314 1,180 1.227 1072
Litigation {Note 12) 776 636 713 542 473 562
[nformation technology 639 706 371 577 693 690
Advertising 580 714 663 105 53 102
Communication 474 502 327 96 127 132
Repairs and maintcnance 451 375 326 253 219 190
Management and professional fees 450 496 436 255 235 279
Transpertation and travel 447 393 342 342 282 249
Stationery and supplics used 404 356 367 248 203 164
Supervision fees 333 265 249 263 205 188
Entertzinment. amusement ang
representation (EAR) (Note 28) 238 2i7 208 188 180 175
Others 1,252 892 1.014 611 320 327
#9,154 P8.476 £7 957 B3,964 £35 382 B5157

- Retirement Plan and Other Employee Benefits

The Group and most of its subsidiaries have funded noncontributory defined benefit retirement
plan covering all their respective permanent and full-time employees.

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement liability of the Parent
Company and significant subsidiaries are shown below:;

Parent

Company FMIC PSBank MOC ORIX Metro
As of Janoary 1, 2012
Average remaining working life Y years 6 to 8 years 9 vears 10 years 25 years
Discount rate S74% 5.23% to 5.50% 6.30% 5.89% 8.60% to 10.00%
Expected rate of return on assets 3.00% 5.00% to 6.50% 7.00% 7.00% 6.00%
Future salary inercases 8.00% L0.00% 8.00% 8.00% 7.00%
As ol January 12011
Average remaining working lite PO vears 8 yvears 21 vears 11 vears 25 vears
Discount rate 7.25% 589% w06, 10% 11 16% T 0% 960%to 10.10%
Expected rate of return on assels 8 00% 6.00%, 8271% 8.00% 6.00%
Future salary increases 8005, 8.00% 1 10.00% 9 004% 9.00% 7.00%

For employees of the Parent Company, retirement from service is compulsory upon the attainment
of the 55th birthday or 30th year of service, whichever comes first,

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on the market prices
prevailing on that date applicable to the year over which the obligation is to be settled.
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Consolidated

Parent Company

2012 2011 2012 2311
Present value of the obligation Bl1i,742 B9,754 £9,954 B8.395
Fair value of plan assets (7,435) (7.14h (6,063) {6.059)
Unfunded status 4.307 2610 31891 2.336
Unrecognized actuarial losses (3,278) (2.484) (3.080) (2,377
Unrecognized past service cost - nonvested
bencfits (68) (67) {353 (60)
Net retirement lLiability (assct) £I61 £59 P758 (BI0D

Net retirement liability {asset) included in the statement of financial position follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Net retirement asset (Note 14) (B25) 2123 P (P10
Net retirement liability (Note 21) 986 184 758 —
Net retirement liability (assct) £961 P59 P758 (BI10]Y

Discount rates used in computing for the present value of the obligation of the Parent Company
and significant subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 follow:

Parent
Company FMIC PSBank MOC ORIX Metro
2012 5.00% 5.23% to 5.50% 5.45% 5.89%  B.60% to 10.00%
2011 5.74% 3 89% to 6.10% 6.30%% T00%  8.60% o 10.00%

The movements in the retirement liability (asset) recognized in the statement of financial position
follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of vear #39 (B243}) 210N B510)
Retirement expense 1,054 578 859 409
Transterred employees - (06) - -
Contribution paid (152) (210) — =
Balance at ¢nd of vear £9061 P59 P758 (P10

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year £9,754 P6.782 B8.395 P5.608
Current scrvice cost 851 379 680 449
Interest cost 554 506 468 405
Past service cost 43 - - -
Transterred employees - (2) - 212
Benefits paid (715) (496) (638) (441N
Actuarial lasses 1,255 2,385 1,049 2.162
Balance at end of vear £11,742 B9.754 £9,954 P8.395
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The movements in the fair value of plan assets recognized follow:

Consolidated Parent Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year £7.14 P6.629 #£6,059 P5.636
Expected return on plan asscts 545 517 467 452
Contribution paid 152 210 - -
Fund transfer - 77 - 212
Benefits paid (715) (496} (638) (441)
Actuarial gains 309 207 175 180
Baiance at end of year £7,435 £7.144 B6,063 B6.059

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the net carrying value of plan assets amounted to 27.4 billion
and 7.1 billion, respectively, for the Group and £6.1 billion for the Parent Company.

The actual return on plan assets of the Parent Company amounted to 264 1.4 million and
P632.3 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Debt instruments 77.09% 88.11% 86.86% 90.30%
Equity instruments 21.26% 13.21% 11.62% 8.12%
Other assets 1.65% 1.68% 1.52% 1.58%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 1(10.00%

The amounts included in *Compensation and fringe benefits™ in the statement of income follow:

Consolidated Parent Company

2012 2011 20100 2012 2011 2010

Current service cost £851 P379 B484 P630 P449 B3a1
Interest cost 554 306 492 468 403 398
ixpected return on plan assets (534%) (317) (519 H67) (452) (458)
Net actuarial gains recognized 185 - {3 171 - -
Past service cost 9 Y] 32 7 7 46
21,054 P378 B506 £859 2409 P347

Amounts for the current and previous years follow:

Consolidated

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Present value of unfunded obligation R11,742 RO.754 B6.782 P5.257 B4.496
l-air value of plan asscts (7435 {7.144) (6.029) (6.1 (4,.578)
Unfunded (funded) status 4,307 2.610 153 (855} (82)
Experience adjustments on defined benefit
obligation (1,255) (2.38%) (870 (32%9) 2.798
ixperience adjustments on fair value of
plan assets R 207 333 462 (391
Parcnt Company
2012 200t 2010 2009 2008
Present value of unfunded obligation £9,954 £8.395 B35 608 £4.533 P3.795
Fair value of plan asscrs (6,063) {6.039} {5.036) (53.330) (4.048)
Unfunded (funded) status 3,891 2.336 (48) (997) (253
Experience adjustments on defined benefit
obligation (1,049) (2,162 (803) (203 2491
Expericnee adjustments on fair value of
plan assets 175 180 268 316 (221)
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In addition, the Parent Company has a Provident Plan which is a supplementary contributory
retirement plan to and forms part of the main plan, the Retirement Plan, for the exclusive benefit
of eligible employees of the Parent Company in the Philippines. Based on the provisions of the
plan, upon retirement or resignation, a member shall be entitled to receive as retirement or
resignation benefits 100.00% of the accumulated value of the personal contribution plus a
percentage of the accumulated value arising from the Parent Company’s contributions in
accordance with the completed number of years serviced. The Parent Company’s contribution to
the Provident Fund in 2012 and 2011 amounted to 134.3 million and R142.1 million,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the retirement fund of the Parent Company’s employees
amounting to P6.1 billion is being managed by the Parent Company’s Trust Banking Group.
Directors’ fees and bonuses of the Parent Company in 2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to

B61.8 million. R35.1 million and B32.4 million, respectively. while, officers’ compensation and
benefits of the Parent Company aggregated to £5.4 billion, 4.0 billion and B3.7 billion,
respectively.

The adoption of the revised PAS 19 effective beginning January 1, 2013 of the Group wiil result
in: (a) decrease in surplus of 8263.4 million. net of deferred tax asset/liability, as of

January 1, 2011; (b) decrease in other comprehensive income of 2556.0 million and B1.5 billion,
net of deferred tax asset/liability. in 2012 and 2011, respectively: (c) decrease in retirement asset
of #8.3 million and increase in retirement liability, deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability of
£3.3 biilion, 1.0 billion and 830.6 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2012; and (d)
decrease in retirement expense by B10.3 million and increase by R10.9 million in 2012 and 2011,
respectively. For the Parent Company. the adoption will result in: (2) decrease in surplus of
B323.7 million, net of deferred tax asset, as of January 1, 2011; (b) decrease in other
comprehensive income of B519.4 miilion and B1.4 billion, net of deferred tax asset, in 2012 and
2011, respectively; {¢) increase in retirement liability and deferred tax asset of £3.1 billion and
B943.3 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2012; and (d) decrease in retirement expense by
£46.5 million and increase by £34.9 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

. Long-term Leases

The Parent Company leases the premises occupied by some of its branches {about 46.05% and
48.03% of the branch sites in 2012 and 201 I, respectively, are Parent Company-owned). Also.
some of its subsidiaries lease the premises occupied by their Head Offices and most of their
branches. The lease contracts are for periods ranging from 1 to 25 years and are renewable at
the Group’s option under certain terms and conditions. Various fease contracts include
escalation ctauses, most of which bear an annual rent increase of 5.00% to 10.00%. As of
December 31. 2012 and 2011, the Group has no contingent rent payabie.

Rent expense (included in *Occupancy and equipment-related cost” in the statement of income) in

2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to R1.4 bitlion, B1.3 billion and 1.2 billion. respectively, for the
Group and B751.3 million, B721.0 million and R683.7 million, respectively, for the
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Future minimum rentals pavable under non-cancelable operating leases follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
20112 2011 2012 2011
Within onc vear 2459 B537 p323 £269
After one vear but not more than five vears 1,107 1.321 986 718
More than five years 259 524 259 223
B1,525 22,382 £1,568 B1.210

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio.
consisting of the Group’s available office spaces and real and other properties acquired and
finance lease agreements over various items of machinery and equipment which are
non-cancelable and have remaining non-cancelable lease terms between | and 20 years.

In 2012, 2011 and 2010, leasing income amounted to .4 billion, £1.0 billion and 824.0 million
respectively, for the Group and #207.3 million, 2196.1 million and P217.4 million. respectively,
for the Parent Company,

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancelable operating leases follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Within one vear POS0 8259 B1O7 P10
Afler one year but not more than five vears 1,533 309 132 [68
More than five years 468 - - -
E2,951 R568 2239 £277

28.

Income and Other Taxes

Under Philippine tax laws, the RBU of the Parent Company and its domestic subsidiaries are
subject to percentage and other taxes (presented as ‘Taxes and licenses’ in the statement of
income) as well as income taxes. Percentage and other taxes paid consist principally of gross
receipts tax (GRT) and documentary stamp tax (DST). Income taxes include 30% regular
corporate income tax (RCIT) and 20.00% final taxes paid, which is a final withholding tax on
gross interest income from government securities and other deposit substitutes. Interest allowed
as a deductible expense is reduced by an amount equivalent to 33% of interest income subjected to
final tax.

Current tax regulations also provide for the ceiling on the amount of EAR expense (Note 25) that
can be claimed as a deduction against taxable income. Under the regulation, EAR expense
allowed as a deductible expense for a service company like the Parent Company and some of its
subsidiaries is limited to the actual EAR paid or incurred but not to exceed 1.00% of net revenue.
The reguiations also provide for MCIT of 2.00% on modified gross income and allow a NOLCO.
The MCIT and NOLCO may be applied against the Group’s income tax liability and taxable
income, respectively, over a three-year period from the year of inception.
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FCDU offshore income (income from non-residents) is tax-exempt while gross onshore income
(income from residents) is subject to 10.00% income tax. In addition, interest income on deposit
placements with other FCDUs and offshore banking units (OBUs) is taxed at 7.50%. Income
derived by the FCDU from foreign currency transactions with non-residents. OB Us. local
commercial banks including branches of foreign banks is tax-exempt while interest income on
foreign currency foans from residents other than OBUs or other depository banks under the
expanded system is subject to 10.00% income tax.

Following are the applicable taxes and tax rates for the foreign branches of the Parent Company:

Foreign Branches

Tax Rates

USA - New York Branch
Japan - Tokyo and Osaka Branches

Korea - Scoul and Pusan Branches
Taiwan - Taipei Branch

30.00% income tax: 8.875% YAT: Business taxcs - 0.0]1% {New York State) and
0.26% (New York Cily)

30.00% income tax. Various rates for business taxes - income . locai business,
sheet value and sheot capital ailocations

24 20% ncome tax: ¢ 30% cducation tax

17.00% income tax: 2.00% gross business receipts tax: 5.00% VAT

The provision for income tax consists of:

Consolidated

Parent Company

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

Current:
Final tax [REE B2 281 #1911 $1.220 #1.392 R1.205
RCIT* 1,995 1.094 1.231 751 167 536
MCIT 13 268 3 — 263 3
3,992 3.643 3,145 1,971 1,822 1,744
Deferred* {166) (1i9) 286 211) 297 183
#3826 P3.524 £3.731 £1,760 B2119 P1927

* Includes income taxes of fureign subsidiaries.

Components of net deferred tax assets of the Group and the Parent Company follow:

Consolidated

Parent Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
Deferred tux asset on:
Allovancee fur credit and impairment losscs 26,201 P6.479 B4,664 B4 879
Unrealized losses on financial assets at FVPL. 993 262 993 292
Accumulated depreciation of investment
propertics 504 560 443 502
Unamortized past service cost 311 408 298 391
Acerued retirement liability 297 6l 228
Deferred membership/awards 185 142 - -
Acerued expenscs 172 82 130 42
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - net 22 56 24 33
Uncamed rental income 10 9 10 9
MCIT - 336 - 336
Unreaiized loss on ATS investments - 11 - [l
(Hhers 113 121 26 39
8,808 8.557 6,816 6.554
Deferred tax fiability on:
Unreatized gain on initial measurement of
investment propertics 092 722 454 438
Unrcalized gain an AFS investments (Note 8) 78 23 29 -
Detferred acquisition cast 55 74 - -
Retirement asset - 31 - 31
Others 107 108 — —
932 96() 483 489
Net deferred tax asscts R7.876 27,397 £6,333 26,065
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Components of net deferred tax liabilities of the Group follow:

2012 2011

Deferred tax asset on:
Allowance for credit and impairment losses BS0 P45

Unamortized past service cost 6 5
Accrued expenses 5 -
Accumulated depreciation of investment properties 5 3
Retirement liability 1 1
Others 2 2
69 56
Deferred tax liability on:
Leasing income ditferential between finance and
operating lease method 280 197
Unrealized gain on AFS investments (Note §) 27 12
Retirement asset 6 4
313 213
Net deferred tax liabilities £244 P157
The Parent Company and certain subsidiaries did not recoghize deferred tax assels on the
following temporary differences:
Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Allowanee for credit and impairment losses P4.339 B5,138 23,003 B3.331
NOLCO 777 1.713 - -
MCIT 34 16 - -
Others 117 403 - -

The Group believes that it is not reasonably probable that the tax benefits of these temporary
differences will be realized in the future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Group to the
sharcholders of the Group.

Details of the excess MCIT credits follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
Inception Year Amount Used/Expired Balance Fxpiry Year Amount Used Halance Fxpiry Year
2009 B233 P233 B 2012 B233 P33 B 202
010 ] ] 2013 - -
201t 123 103 20 2014 103 163 2014
2012 13 - 13 2015 —
R370 2336 P34 P336 B336 P-

Details of the Group’s NOLCO follow:

Inception Year Amount Used/Expired Balance Expiry Year
2009 PO78 Pa78 P 2012
2010 718 - 718 2013
2011 17 - 17 2014
2012 42 — 42 2015

P1,755 P78 #2777
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A reconciliation of the statutory income tax rates and the effective income tax rates follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Statutery income tax rate 30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 30.00%
Tax effect ol
Tax-puid and tax-exempt income (23.22) (2163) 22 66) (22.25) (28.96) 2317
Nondeductible interest expense 10.23 EREK] 843 3.66 ¥.51 9.24
Nonrecognition ol deferred tax asset 345 6.40 1479 2.13 1163 15.47
FCDU mcome (1.81) {4.12) (6.06) (2.34) {6.69) 19.23)
Others - net {0.32) 415 42] 2.44 6.63 6,40
Effective income tax rate 18.33% 22.13% 28.71% 13.64% 21.13% 28.71%

20.

Trust Operations

Properties held by the Parent Company and certain subsidiaries in fiduciary or agency capacity for
their customers are not included in the accompanying statements of financial position since these
are not resources of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (Note 30).

In compliance with current banking regulations relative to the Parent Company and certain
subsidiaries” trust functions, government securities classified under *Held-for-trading and
AFS investments” are deposited with the BSP. Face value of such government securities follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
ticld-tor-trading investments 24 P- P- B-
AFS investments 5,153 3.66 5,113 3,639
P5,157 £3.669 B5, 113 3,639

30.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

[n the normal course of the Group’s operations, there are various outstanding commitments and
contingent liabilities which are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. No
material losses are anticipated as a result of these transactions.

The following is a summary of contingencies and commitinents at their peso-equivalent
contractual amounts arising from off-balance sheet items:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Trust Banking Group accounts (Note 29) R420.440 P382.136 B2118,167 P380G.500
Commitments
Credit card lines 55,247 49,590 - -
Underwriting, 1,200 - : -
Undrawn - facilities to lend 415 - - -
Unused commercial letters of credin 29,284 22557 28,309 21.784
Credit line certiticate with bank commission 5444 h516 5,444 6516
Bank guaranty with indemnity agreciment 4,071 3704 4,071 3704
Late deposits/paymenis received 1,709 1.692 1,647 1.624
Outstanding shipside bonds/airway bills 1,147 1,676 1,147 1.676
Inward bills for collection 886 387 638 387
Quiward bills for collzction 520 362 518 537
Qutstanding guarantees 80 G3 80 93
Confirmed expottictters of credits 69 278 65 42
Traveler’s check unsold i1 12 11 12
Others 5,324 2786 414 383
B525.847 R471 989 £460,511 B417.680
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In September 2008. the Parent Company filed petitions for rehabilitation against two Philippine
subsidiaries of Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. (Lehman) in connection with a combined

B2 .4 billion loan exposure. These came as a result of the declaration of bankruptey filed by
Lehman, a surety under the toan agreements. The rehabilitation plans were duly approved by the
Rehabilitation Court (RC). A Management Committee was created for each of the two (2)
Lehman subsidiaties and these Management Committees oversaw and managed the company
assets until their abolition in July 2012, In lieu thereof, the RC appointed a Comptrolier who was
nominated by the Parent Company. Earlier, in April 2012, the RC resolved to recognize the new
equity holder in Philippine Investment One (SPV-AMC), Inc. (P1 One) and Philippine Investment
Two (SPV-AMC), Inc. (PI Two). On October 31, 2012, the Parent Company and PI One and Pi
Two (thru the new equity holder) entered into a universal compromise agreement to settle the
issues among the parties. Said compromise bears the conformity of the Rehabilitation Receiver.

On October 17, 2011, a consortium of eight banks including the Parent Company filed a Petition
for Certiorari, Prohibition and/or Mandamus (with Urgent Application for a Temporary
Restraining Order (TRO) andfor Writ of preliminary Injunction) with the Supreme Court (SC)
against respondents the ROP. Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR}) and its Commissioner, the
Department of Finance and its Secretary and the Bureau of Treasury (BTr} and the National
Treasurer, asking the Court to annul BIR Ruling No. 370-2011 which imposes a 20-percent final
withholding tax on the 10-year Zero-Coupon Government Bonds (also known as the PEACe
bonds) that matured on October 18, 2011 and command the respondents to pay the full amount of
the face value of the PEACe Bonds. On October 18, 201 1, the SC issued the TRO enjoining the
implementation of the said BIR ruling on the condition that the 20-percent final withholding tax be
withheld by the petitioner banks and placed in escrow pending resolution of the Petition.
However, 1o date. the respondents have not complied with the said TRO, i.e.. they have not
credited the banks® escrow accounts with the amount corresponding to the questioned 20-percent
final tax. The case is still pending resolution with the SC.

Several suits and claims relating to the Group's lending operations and labor-related cases remain
unsettled. In the opinion of management, these suits and claims, if decided adversely, will not
involve sums having a material effect on the Group’s financial statements.

31.

Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly. to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions or if they are subjected to commeon control or common significant influence such as
subsidiaries and associates of subsidiaries or other related parties. Related parties may be
individuals or corporate entities.

The Group has several business relationships with related parties. Transactions with such parties
are made in the ordinary course of business and on substantially same terms, including interest and
collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other parties. These
transactions also did not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other
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[n the ordinary course of business, the Group has loan transactions with investees and with certain
directors, officers, stockholders and related interests (DOSRI) based on BSP Circular No. 423
dated March 15, 2004, as amended. Existing banking regulations limit the amount of individual
loans to DOSRI, 70.00% of which must be secured., to the total of their respective deposits and
book value of their respective investments in the tending company within the Group. In the
aggregate, loans to DOSRI generally should not exceed the respective total equity or 15.00% of
total toan portfolio, whichever is lower, of the Bank, PSBank, FMIC and ORIX Metro.

The foliowing table shows information relating to the loans, other credit accommodations and
guarantees classified as DOSRI accounts:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Tolal outstanding DOSRI accounts £12.721 BI7.211 £9.602 B14.378

Percent of DOSRI accounts granted prior to

effcetivity of BSP Circular Na. 423 w

total loans 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Percent of DOSRI accounts granted atter

effectivity of BSP Circular

No. 423 to tatal loans 2.42% 3.79% 2.42% 4.13%
Pereent of DOSRI accaunts ta total {oans 2.42% 3.79% 2.42% 4.13%
Pereent of unsecured DOSRI accounts 1o

total DOSRI accounts 20.34% 15.85% 19.22% 14.08%
Percent af past duc DOSRI accounts g

total DOSRI accounts 3.92% 3.18% 0.00% 0.00%
Pereent of nonaceruing DOSRI accaunts ta

total DOSRI accounts 3.92% 3.18% 0.00% 0.00%

BSP Circular No. 560 provides the rules and regulations that govern loans. other credit
accommodations and guarantees granted to subsidiaries and affiliates of banks and quasi-banks,
Under the said Circular, the total outstanding loans, other credit accommodations and guarantees
to each of the bank’s/quasi-bank’s subsidiaries and affiliates shall not exceed 10.00% of the net
worth of the lending bank/quasi-bank. provided that the unsecured portion of which shall not
exceed 5.00% of such net worth, Further, the total outstanding loans, credit accommodations and
guarantees to all subsidiaries and affiliates shall not exceed 20.00% of the net worth of the lending
bank/quasi-bank; and the subsidiaries and affiliates of the lending bank/quasi-bank are not related
interest of any director. officer and/or stockholder of the lending institution, except where such
director, officer or stockholder sits in the BOD or is appointed officer of such corporation as
representative of the bank/quasi-bank as reported to the BSP. As of December 31,2012 and 2011,
the total outstanding loans, other credit accommodations and guarantees to each of the Parent
Company’s subsidiaries and affiliates did not exceed 10.00% of the Parent Company’s net worth,
and the unsecured portion did not exceed 5.00% of such net worth and the total outstanding loans,
other credit accommodations and guarantees to all such subsidiaries and affiliates represent 5.48%
and 8.6%, respectively, of the Parent Company’s net worth.

BSP issued Circular No. 654 allows a separate individual limit to loans of banks/quasi-banks to
their subsidiaries and affiliates engaged in energy and power generation, i.e., a separate individual
limit of twenty-five (25.00%) of the net worth of the lending bank/quasi-bank: provided, that the
unsecured portion thereof shall not exceed twelve and one-half percent (12.50%) of such net
worth: provided further, that these subsidiaries and affiliates are not related interests of any of the
director, officer and/or stockholder of the lending bank/quasi-bank; except where such director,
officer or stockholder sits in the BOD or is appointed officer of such corporation as representative
of the bank/quasi-bank. As of December 31. 2012 and 2011, the total outstanding loans, other
credit accommodations and guarantees to each of the Parent Company’s subsidiaries and affiliates
engaged in energy and power generation did not exceed 25.00% of the Parent Company’s net
worth, as reported to the BSP, and the unsecured portion did not exceed 12.50% of such net worth.
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Total interest income on the DOSRI loans in 2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to B629.0 million,
P593.5 million and B652.7 million, respectively. for the Group and B469.1 million, £528.8 million
and B511.1 million, respectively, for the Parent Company.

Details on significant related party transactions of the Group and the Parent Company follow
{transactions with subsidiaries have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements):

Consolidated
December 31, 2012
Amount/  Outstanding
Category Volume Balances Terms and Conditions/N ature
Entities with Significant Influcnee
Recervables from customers* P3,253  Secured - B2 3 billien and unsecured - B1.O bilion,
no yimpaiwmeni
Short-term lending with interest rate of 3 8% subjoct to regular
repricing with matrity terms from 30 days to 94 days
Deposit i1ahilities 58 With annual fixed rates ranging from 0.0% to 0.38%
Interest income 11 Inwerest income on receivables from cuslomers
Gain on sale of nen-current asset JAN3  Gainon sale o 15.00% ownership in TMPC (see discussions on
held for sale Nede 13)
Securities transactions
Purchascs P75 Ourright purchases of HFT sceurities and AFS investments
Sales 75 Quiright sale of HFT securities and AFS investments
Foreign currengy - sell 90 Qutright sale ol (oreign currency
Subsidiaries
Interbank loans receivable* #8815 Pesoand foreign currency lending which earn annual tixed

wnterest rates ranging from 1.17% 10 3.625% with maturity lerims
from five dayvs to one vear

Receivables from customers* 1,354 Unsecured with no impatrment
With annual flixed rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.59% and
maturity terms from 30 davs to 5 years

Accounts receivable 257 Uncoliccted information technology fees, non-intercst bearing
Other receivabie 142 Dividends receivable as disclesed in Note 1
Depaostt liabilities* 113 Withannuai fixed interest rates ranging from 0.0% to 2 75%

including time deposils with maturity terms from 5 davs Lo
360 davs

Biiis payahle 601 Short-term fareign currency borrowings with annual fixed interest
rate of 0.15% and maturity term of 33 davs
Accounts pavable 126 Unpaid various ransactional charges. non-interest bearing
Interest income 187 Inirest income on receivables from customers and interbank
loans receivables
Service charges, lees and 75 Incamc on transactional tees
COmmissiony
Trading and securities gain ~ net LSS0 Income frem securities transactions
Foreign exchange gain - net 134 Income from Foreign oxchange transactions
Leasing income 27 incame ftom Jeasing agreements with various lease terms
Dividend inceme L1112 Sec discussions en Note 11
Profit from assets sold 54 Net gain from saie of mvestment properties (sec discussions on
Note 12)
Miscellanecus incemce 221 Information technology fees billed monthly
Interest expense 106 [nterest expense on deposit liabilitics and hills pavable
Sccurities lransactions
Purchases P162,528 Outright purchases of HIT securitics and AFS investiments
Sales 164,498 Outright saic of HFT sceurities and AFS investments
Foreign currency
Buy 18.211 Outright purchases of foreign currency
Suii 29,256 Chutright sale of loreign curreney
(Forward)
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Consnlidated
Deeember 31,2012
Amount/  Outstanding
Category Volume Balances Terms and Coaditions/Nature
Associates
Receivables from customers B6S  Sccured - #13.0 million and unsecured - B52 0 million.
no Jmpairinent
Non-mterest bearing domestic bills purchased
Other receivable 1437 Dmadends receivable as disclosed in Note 11
Deposit Tiabilitics* 2,565 Withannaal fixed interest rates ranging from 0.0% 1o 2.75%
neluding time deposits with maturity terms from 4 days to
358 days
Trading and securities loss - net (9 Income ITom sceutities transactions
Foreign exchange loss - net (20)  Income from foreign cxchange transactions
Leasing income 16 Income from leasing agreements with various lease wrms
Dividend income 677 Sec discussions on Note 1
[nterest expense 35 Interest expense on deposit iiabilities
Quistanding derivatives 213 Forward exchange bought with various terims
Seeurities transactions
Outright purchases PL,131 Outright purchases of HFT securities and AFS investments
Quiright sales 1,549 OQuiright sale of HFT securitios and AFS investments
Forcign currency
Buy 178 Outnght purchases of foreign curreney
Selt 369 Qutright sale ol loreign currency
Other Related Parties
Recervables rom customers* BI8.321  Sccured - P16.9 hillion and unsecured - 21 4 billinn,
RO impairment
With annual lixed rates ranging from 2.63% to 10.45% and
maturity terms from 30 days to 12 vears
Other receivahic 26 Various uncollected service fees
Assets held under Joint venture 1,189 Parcels of land and former branch sites of the Parent Company
contributed to IVs (see Note 14)
Miscellanceous assets LO78  Downpayment 1o a retated party real estale company relative to
the purchase ol commercial and oftice spaces iocated at Bonifacio
Global City. Taguig City (sec Note 14)
Deposit liabilities* 3,322 Wuthannual fixed rates ranging from 0 0% (o 2 88% including
time deposis with maturity terms from 3 days to 92 davs
Bills pavable 2,921 Foreign currencv-denommnated notes with annual interest rates
ranging trom 1 0% to 2.0% and maturitics from ong month to
three years
[nterest incoime 1,207 Interest income on receivables from customers
Service charges. fees and 163 Income ontransactional foes
commissions
Fareign exchange gain - net 931 Income from foreign exchange ransaciions
Leasing income 37 Income from izasing agreements with various lease torms
Profit from assets sold 892 Net gain from saie of investment properties (see discussions on
Nowe 12)
Miscellaneous income 64 Incone lrom various transactions
Interest expense 325 Interest expense on deposit liabilities and bills pavable
Contingent
Unused commercial 1.Cs 270 LC trunsactions with vatious 1erms
OGthers 20 Include bank guaraniy with indemnity agreement;
imvard bills for collection: outstanding shipside bonds/
airway bills: and outstanding auarantees
Fereign currency
Buy $£597 Outrtght purchases of foreign currency
Sell 32.838 Outright sule of loreign currency
Key Personnel
Recetvables from customers B84 Sceured - P27.0 million and unsecurcd - B57.0 million,
no impairment
With annual fixed rates ranging from 8.0% 0 9.0% and maturity
terns from 5 yvears to 15 vears
Deposit liabilities 111 Various terms and with minimum annual interest rate of (1.0%
Bills payabie 253 Deposit substitutes ol F'MIC with various terins
Interest income 1 Interest income on recetvables from customers
Profit from assets sold 42 Net gain from sale of investment properties (see discussion on
Nowe 12)
Compensation expense 1,637 See related discussions below on coimpensation
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Consolidated
December 31,2011
Amount / Outstanding
Category Volume Balances Terms and Conditions/Nature
Entities with Significant Influence
Recorvabies from customers P7.092  Secured - #6 2 hillion and unsecured - B0 9 hillion.
no impairment
Subject to regular interest repricing with maturity terms from
90 days to S years; the S-year Lerm loan bas been fully paid in
2012
Deposil labilitics 72 With annual fixed interest rates ranging from 0.0% to 0 50%
Subsidiaries
Interbank loans receivable 2213 Pesoand foreign currency lending which earn annual lixed
interest rates ranging from 1.08% (o 2 28%, with maturity terms
irom 31 davs to one vear
Receivables fom customers* 4962 Securcd - £33 biliion and unsecurced - 1 7 billion
no Impairment
With annual fixed rates ranging from 4.47% to 5.59% and
maturity terms from 30 davs to 5 vears
Accounts Teceivable 511 Uncollected information technetogy Tees, nor-interest bearing
Sales contract recelvable 627 Secured withallowance for credit ioss of B195.9 million
Sule of land with fixed annual interest rate o’ 9.0%: in
February 2002, the transaction has been rescinded
Other receivable 27 Dividends receivable as disclosed in Note 1
Deposit labilities 8581 Various terms and with minimum annual interest rate of 0.0%
Bills payable 647 Short-term foreign currency borrowings subject to annual fixed
interest rate ol 0.13% with maturity term of 14 days
Interest income 179 lInterest inenme on foans and interbank Inans receivabies
Service charges. foes and ol inceme on transactional fees
COIMMIsSions
Trading and securtties gain - net 363 Income from securities ransactions
Forcign exchange gain - net 41 ireome from loreign exchange transactjons
Leasing income 26 Income from icasing agreements with various lease terms
Dividend income 1,778 See discussions on Note | |
Miscellaneous income 232 Information technology fees billed monthly
Interest expense 35 Interest expense on deposit liabiiities and biiis pavable
Securities transactions
Purchases B41.670 Guright purchases of HET securitics and AFS investiments
Sales 83233 Qutright sale o' HFT securities and AFS investments
Forcign currency
Buy 20,229 Qutright purchases of foreign currency
Sell 16,449 Outright salc of foreign currency
Associates
Receivables from customers Bi23  Seeurcd - OO million and unsccured - R43.0 million.
no miparrment
Non-mterest bearing and represents domestic bilis purchased
Other receivable 186 Dividends recetvable as disciosed in Note 11
Deposil habilitics +286  Various terms with minimum annual interest rate ot (0.0%%
Frading and securities gain - net 3 Income from securities transactions
Foreign exchange gain - nat 30 Income from foreipn exchange transactions
Leasing imcome 18 Income from leasing agreements with various lease terms
Dividend income LO02  See discussions on Note
interest expense 25 Imlerest expense on deposit liabilities
Qutstanding derivalives 296 Forward exchange bought and interest rate swap with various
erms
Securitics transactions
Outright purchases B25246 Outright purchases of FIFT securitics and ATS investments
Outright sales 1965 Outright sale o HFT sccurities and AFS investments
Forcign currency
Buy ERE Outnight purchases of foreign currency
Sell 16.607 Outright sale of foreign currency
(Forward)
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Consolidated
December 31, 2011
Amount / Outstanding

Category Volume Balances Terins and Conditions/Nature

Other Related Parties

Receivables from customers* R20.488  Secured - B18.8 billion and unsecured - 81 7 hillion,
no impairment
With annual fixed rate ranging from 2.48% (0 10.45% with
maturity terms trom 30 davs 1o 12 vears

Other receivable 52 Various uncollected service foes

Assets held under joint venture 3210 Parcels of land and former branch sites af the Parent Company
contributed to Vs {se¢ Note 14)

Deposit Habilies 4762 With lixed annual interest rates ranging trom 0.0% te 2. 75% and
0.0% to 0.25% for peso and forcign currency-denominated
deposits. respectively

Bills payabie 2845 Forewgn curreney denominated notes subject to annual interest
rates ranging from 1.09% to 2.0% with maturities from one month
Lo three years

Interest meame 1,237 Interest inceme on receivables from customers

Service charges, fees and 37 Income on transactional fees

COMMISSIONS

Leasing mcome 535 Incame from leasing agreements with various lease terms

Miscellaneous income 68  income front certain miscellaneous transactions

Interest ¢xpense 217 Imerest expense on deposit labilities and biils pavable

Contingent

Unused commercial 1.Cs 346 LC transactions with various terms

Others 8 Other contingent transactions with various terms
Securities transacttons 87 Outnight purchases of HFT securities and AFS investments
Forcign currency

Buy 7 Ourtright purchases of foreign currency

Sell 28) Outright sale ol foreign currency

Key Personnel

Receivabies (Tom custemers BUZ  Secured - B28.0 militon and unsecured - Bo64.0 million
ne impairment
With annual fixed rates ranging from 8.0% 10 9.0% and maturity
terms from 3 vears to 15 vears

Depaosit habilitics 85 With various terms and minimum annual interest rate of Q.0%

Compensation expense 1.235  See related discussions below on compensation

Parent Company
December 31, 2012
Amount/  Qutstanding
Catepory Yolume Balances Terms and Conditions/Nature
Entitics with Significant Influcnce
Receivables from customers* £3,253  Secured - B23 billion and unsecured - B1 0 billion.
ne umpainment
Short-term lending with interes( rates subject to regular repricing
and with maturity terms trom 30 days (o 94 days.
Deposit Habilities 58 Vanousterms with annual fixed rate ranging from 0.0% to 0 38%
Interest inceme 11 Interest income on receivables from customers
Gain on sale of non-current asset 4,164 Gainon sale of 15.00% ewnership in TMPC (see discussions on
held for sale Nole 13)

Securities transaclions
Purchases P75 Outright purchases o HFT securities and AFS invesiments
Sales 75 Ourright sale of HF1 securities and AFS invesunents

Forgign curreney - sell 90 Qutright sale ol fureign currency

Subsidiaries

Interbank loans receivable* P8I1S  Pesoand fereign cumrency lending which earn annual fixed
interest rates ranging from 1.17% to 3.625% with maturity terms
from five days L ene year

Receivables from customers* 1,304 Unsecured. ne fimpairment
With annual lixed rates ranging trom 4 00% to 5.59% with
maturity terms from 30 days to 5 vears

Accounts recevable 256 Uncellected information echnotogy tees, non-interest bearing

Other receivable 137 Dividends recelvable as disclosed tn Nate 1]

(Forward)
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Parent Company
December 31, 2012
Amount/  Quistanding
Category Valume Balances Terms and Conditions/N ature
Deposit liabilities* £3.376  With annual iixed interest rates ranging lrom 0.0% to 2.75%
including time deposits with maturity terms from S days Lo
360 days
Bills payable 586 Short-ierm foreign currency borrowings subjeet o annual fixed
interest rate ol 0.1 5% with maturity term of 33 duys
Accounts payvable 126 Various transactional charges
Interest income 173 Inwerest income on reccivables trom customers and interbank
loans recervables
Service charges, fees and 75 Income on transactional tees
COMMISSIONS
I'tading and securittes gain - net 1,536 income from securties transactions
Foreign exchange gain - net 134 lncome from fereign exchange transactions
Leasing income 27 Income from leasing agreements with various lease lerms
Dividend income 1,093 Seediscussions on Note |
Profit from asscts sold 54 Netgain from sule of investment propertics (See discussion on
Note 12)
Miscellancous income 221 Information technology fzes billed moenthly
Interest expense 45 Interest expense on deposit liabihites and bills pavable
Secunties transactions
PPurchases #115,596 Qutright purchases of HFT securities and AFS mvestments
Sales 122,051 Qutright sale of HFT securities and AFS investments
Fereign currency
Buy 18,211 Outright purchases of foreign currency
Selt 29,256 Outright sale of foreipn curreney
Associates
Recervables from customers P65 Secured - P13.0 million and unseeured B32.0 million. no
impairment
Non-interest bearing domestic bills purchased
Other receivable 22 Uncollected information technology fees, non-interest bearing
Deposit Habihities* L851  Wuhannual fixed interest rales ranging from 0.0% o 2.75% with
matunity terms frem 4 days W 358 days
Trading and securities {oss - net (9)  Sccurtties ransactions
Fureign exchange Toss - net (20)  Foragn exchange transactions
Leasmg incoine 7 Incume from teasing agreements with various lease terms
Dividend incume 677 See discussion on Note | 1
Miscellaneous expense 24 LExpenses from various transaclions
Securities transactions
Outnght purchases #2250 OQutright purchases of HET securities and AEFS investments
Qutright sales 425 Qutright sale of FIFT sceurities and AFS investments
Forcign currency
Buy 178 Qutright purchases of foreips currency
Sell 369 Outright saie of foreign currency
Other Related Parties
Recervables tfrom customers* B14830  Secured - 214.0 biflion and unsecured - B1.0 billion,
no impairment
With annual fixed rates ranging from 2.63% to 10.45% and
maturity terms from 30 days to 12 years
Assets held under jomt venture 1189  Parecls ef land and former branch sites ot the Parent Company
coniributed to JVs (see Note 14)
Misceliancous assels 1,068  Downpayvment lo @ related party real estate company relative tn
the purchase of commercial and office spaces located at Bonifacio
Global City. Taguig City (see Nute 14)
Deposit Habilities* 2,830 Wuthannuai fixed rates ranging from 0.0% to 2 88% including
time deposits with maturity terms from 5 days 1 92 davs
Interest income 964 Interest income on receivabies from custorners
Foreign exchange gain - net 931 Income from foreipn exchange transactions
Leasing income 11 Income from leasing agreements with various lease terms
Profit from assets sold 892 Net gain from salc of investment properties (Sce discussion on
Note 12)
Interest expense 1 Interest expense on deposit labilities
Contingent
Unused comimercial LC 270 LC transactions with various lerms
Others 20 Include bank guaranty with indemnity agreement.

(Forward)

nward bills for coilection: eutstanding shipside bonds/
arrway bilis: and outstanding guarantees
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Parent Company
December 31, 2012
Amount/  Outstanding
Category Volume Balances Terms and Conditiens/Nature
Forergn currency
Buy 8597 Outright purchases of foreign curreney
Sell 32,838 Outright sale of foreign currency
Key Personnel
Reccivables from custemers P68 Secured - P27.0 million and unsecured - B41.0 million,
no impairment
With annual fixed rates ranging from £.0% to 9.0% and maturity
terms from 3 years to |5 years
Deposil liabilites 111 With various terms and minimum annual interest rate of 0.0%
Profit from assets sold 42 Netgain from sale of investment properties (see discussien on
Note 12)
Compensalion expense 1101 See related discussion belew on compensation
Parent Company
December 31,2011
Amount / Outstanding
Caegory Volume Balances Terms and Conditions/Nature
Entities with Significant Influence
Receivables from customers B7.092  Securcd - 26.2 hillion and unsecurcd - B0S hillion,
no impatrment
Subject to regular interest repricing with maturity terms trom 90
days 10 5 vears, the S-year term loan has been fully paid in 2012
Deposit liabihties 72 With annual fixed interest rutes ranging from 0.0% te 0.50%
Subsidiaries
Interbank toans receivable* B2218  Pesoand foreign currency lending which carn annual fixed
interest rates ranging from 1.08% to 2.28% with maturily terms
tfrom 31 days 1o one year
Receivables from customers* 4911 Secured - B3 3 billion and unsecured - B1 6 billion,
o impairment
With annual fixed rates ranging from 4.47% to 5.59% and
maturity terms from 30 days to 5 years
Accounts reccivible 51T Lncollected information technology fees and other transactional
receivables, non-interest hearing
Sales contract receivable 627 Sceured with aliewance for credit loss of B195.9 million
Saie ofland with fixed annugl interest rate of' 9 0% in
February 2012, the ransaction has been rescinded
Other receivabie 27 Dhividends receivable as disclosed in Note 1]
Deposit liabilities 3330 With various terms and minimum annuai interest rate ol 0.0%
Bills payable 625 Short-term forcign currency borrowings subject to annual tixed
interest rate of 0.15% with maturity term ot 14 days
Interest income tas  Income on leans and tncerbank loans receivabies
Service charges. foes and 61 Income on transactional lees
commissions
Trading and securitics gain - net 319 Income from securities transactions
Foreign exchange gam - net 41 Incoime from foreign exchange transactions
Leasing income 20 Income from leasing agreements with various lease terms
Dividend tncome 1.773  See discussions on Noie 11
Miscellaneous income 232 Information technology tees billed monthly
Interest expense 8 Interest expense on deposit liabilities and biiis pavable
Miseelianeous expense 49 Txpenses ffom various transactions
Sceurities transactions
Purchascs B34970 Outright purchases of [1FT securitics and AI'S investments
Sales 54394 Outright sale of HFT sccurities and AFS investments
Foretgn currency
Buy 20,229 Outright purchases of Foreign currency
Scl] 16.449 Qutright sale of foreign currency
Associates
Recervables lrom custemers BI123  Secured - BRO.C million and unsecurcd 8430 million.
no impairment
Non-interest hearing domestic bills purchased
Other recetvable 9 Dividends receivable as disclosed in Note 11
Deposit labilities 3336 With various terms and minimum annual interest rate of 0 0%
Foreign exchange gain - net 30 Income from foreign exchange transactions
Leasmng income 9 Income from leasing agreements with various lease terms

(Forward)
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Paren: Company
Decembuer 31,2011

Ameunt / Outstanding

Caltcgorny Volume Balances Terms and Conditions/Nature
Dividend income B1O02  Seediscussions on Note | |
Interest cxpense I Interest expense on depasit liabilitics
Miscellaneous expense 22 Expenses (fom various transactions
Outstanding derivatives 296 Forward exchange bought and interest rate swap with various
terms
Securities transactions
Outright purchases 21416 Ourtright purchases of HET securities and AFS investments
Ouinight sajes 1.243 CQhutright sale of HFT securities and AFS investments
Foreign currency
Buy 3.6l Outright purchases of foreign currency
Sell 16,607 Quinght sale of foreign currency
Other Related Parties
Receivables from customers Bi6.512  Secured - R15.3 billion and unsecured - 1 0 billion,

no impaicinent
With annual fixed rates ranging from 2 48% to 10.45% and
maturity terms frem 30 days to 12 years

Assets held under joint venture 3210 Parcels ef jand and former branch sites of the Parent Company
contributed to J Vs (see Note |4}

Deposit habilities 309 Witk various terms and minimum annua)l interest rate of 0.0%
Interest wmcome 979 interest income on receivables from custemers
Leasing incoime 8 Income from leasing agreements with various lease terms
Contingent

Unused cominercial 1.Cs 346 LC transactions with various lerms

Others 8 Other contingent transactions with various terms
Sceurities trunsactions 7 Outright purchases of HE securitics and ATS investments
Forcign currency

Buy 7 Outeight purchases of foreign currency

Seil 281 Quiright sale of foreign currency

Key Personnel
Recetvabics from customers P78 Secured - B28.0 million and unseeured - BS0.0 million.
up imparment
With annual fixed rates ranging from 8.0% to 9.0% and maturity
Lerms from 3 years Lo 15 vears
Deposit liabilities 83 With various terms and minimum annuat inferest rate of §.0%
Compensalion expense 7117 See related discussions below on compensation

*including accrued interest

As discussed in Note 13, in December 2012, the Parent Company sold 15% of its ownership in
TMPC to GT Capital which resulted in a gain amounting to 3.4 billion and 4.2 billion for the
Group and Parent Company, respectively. The remaining 15% ownership was subsequently sold
in January 2013 (Note 36).

Receivables from customers and deposit liabilities and their related statement of financial position
and statement of income accounts resulted from the lending and deposit-taking activities of the
Group and the Parent Company. Together with the sale of investment properties; borrowings:
contingent accounts including derivative transactions; outright purchases and sales of HFT
securities and AFS investments; foreign currency buy and sell; leasing of office premises; securing
of insurance coverage on loans and property risks; and other management services rendered, these
are conducted in the normal course of business and at arms-length transactions. The Parent
Company has a Related Party Transactions Committee headed by an independent director that
oversees and monitors related party transactions. Terms on receivables from customers, deposit
liabilities and borrowings are disclosed in Notes 9, 16 and 17, respectively, while other related
party transactions above have been referred to their respective note disclosures.
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As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, treasury bills (classified under HTM investments) with total
face value of £50.0 million are pledged by PSBank to the Parent Company to secure its payroll
account with the Parent Company. Also, the Parent Company has assigned to PSBank
government securities (classified under AFS investments) with total face value of 3.0 billion to
secure PSBank deposits to the Parent Company.

The compensation of the key management personnel of the Group and the Parent Company
follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Short-term employee benefits £1,540 Bl.i64 B999 £1,040 B682 B523
Post employment benefits 91 71 53 61 29 25
£1.637 £1,235 1052 £1,101 711 B548

Transactions with retirement plans

Under PFRS, certain post-employment benefit plans are considered as related parties. The Parent
Company has business relationships with a number of related party retirement plans pursuant to
which it provides trust and management services to these plans. Income earned by the Parent
Company from such services amounted to £31.9 million in 2012. The Parent Company’s
transactions with related party retirement plans in 2012 include sale of securities totaling

£3.1 billion with total net trading loss of 1.0 million and purchase of securities totaling

£9.6 billion. Further, total deposit liabilities of the Parent Company to these related party
retirement funds amounted to £343.1 million as of December 31, 2012 while interest expense
amounted to 1.2 million in 2012. The related party retirement plans also hold investments in the
equity shares of vartous companies within the Group amounting to 741.3 million as of
December 31, 2012 and recognized trading gains of B15.5 million. unrealized trading gains of
£288.2 million and dividend income of 89.2 million as of December 3 1,2012.

32

Financial Performance

The basis of calculation for earnings per share attributable to equity holdings of the Parent
Company follows (amounts in millions except for earnings per share):

2012 20101 2010
a.  Net income attributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company P15,399 B11.031 PR.366
b. _ Share of hybrid capital securities helders (476) (484) (515)
¢.  Net income attributable to common shareholders 14,923 10,347 7.851
d.  Weighted average number of cutstanding
common shares of the Parent Company, as
previously reported i.876
e. Basic/diluted eamings per share, as previously
reported (¢/d) P4.18

. Weighted average number of outstanding

common shares of the Parent Company,

including effects of stock rights granted and

as restated in 2010 2,111 2,101 1,912
Basic/dituted earnings per share as restated in
2010 to include (c¢/f) £7.07 P5.02 24,11

a
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The earnings per share attributable to equity holdings of the Parent Company for 2010 was
restated to show the effects of stock rights granted in 2010 (Note 23). As of December 3 1, 2012,
2011 and 2010, there were no outstanding dilutive potential common shares.

The following basic ratios measure the financial performance of the Group and the Parent
Company:

Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Return on average equity 13.40% 11.17% 10.27% 11.68% 9.49% 6.7
Return on average asscts 1.54% 1.20% 0.96% 1.46% [.11% 0.69%
Net interest margin on average
earning assets 3.63% 3.54% 243% 2.92% 2.73% 2.69%

33. Notes to Statements of Cash Flows
The amounts of interbank loans receivable and sceurities purchased under agreements to resell
considered as cash and cash equivalents follow:
Consolidated Parent Company
2012 2011 3010 2012 201t 2010
Interbank loans receivable and SPURA £23,392 B)4507 £26.507 £15,046 P3.222 £18.006
Interbank loans receivabie and SPURA
not considered as cash and cash
equivalents (4.344) (964) (2.732) (4,344 (964) (2.732)
219,048 223,405 P23.775 £10,702 P2 258 £15.274
Significant noncash transactions of the Group and the Parent Company include foreclosures of
properties or additions to investment and chattel properties as disclosed in Notes 12 and 14,
respectively, and bond exchange transactions in 2011 as discussed in Note 8.
Further, in 2012, in addition to the reclassification of investment in associate as discussed in
Note 13, the Parent Company also reclassified its fand covered by a completed JV agreement from
assets held by JV (under *Other assets’) to investments properties amounting to £1.98 billion; and
rescinded its sales contract receivable amounting to £693.0 million (Note 31 3
34. Foreign Exchange

PDS closing rates as of December 31 and PDSWAR for the vear ended December 31 are as
follows:

2012 2011 2019
PDS Closing £41.05 £43.84 £43.84
PDSWAR 42.24 43.31 45.12

LMY




-114 -

35. Other Matters

The Group has no significant matters to report in 2012 on the following:

a.

Known trends, events or uncertainties that would have material impact on liquidity and on the
sales or revenues.

Explanatory comments about the seasonality or cyclicality of operations.

[ssuances, repurchases and repayments of debt and equity securities except for the issuance of
the 2022 Peso Notes by PSBank and the exercise of the call option on the 2017 Peso Notes by
the Parent Company as discussed in Note 20.

Unusual items as to nature, size or incidents affecting assets, Habilities, equity, net income or
cash flows except for the payments of cash dividend and semi-annual coupons on the HT]
Capital as discussed in Note 23.

Effect of changes in the composition of the Group, including business combinations.
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and long-term investments, restructurings, and
discontinuing operations except those discussed in Note | 1.

36.

Subsequent Events

a.

In January 2013, the remaining 5% ownership of the Parent Company in TMPC shares was
sold to GT Capital for a total consideration of 4.5 billion with gain on sale of £3.4 billion
and #4.2 billion for the Group and the Parent Company, respectively (Note 31),

On January 22, 2013, the BOD of PSBank declared a 7.50% cash dividend for the fourth
quarter of 2012 amounting to £180.2 million or £0.75 per share to all stockholders of record
as of March 5, 2013, to be paid on March 20, 2013. This was approved by the BSP on
February 8, 2013.

On January 23, 201 3. the BOD of the Parent Company approved the declaration of a 5% cash
dividend or £1.00 per share based on a par value of £20.00 to all stockholders of record as of
March 8. 2013 which shall be payable on April 3, 2013. The BSP approved such dividend
declaration on February 8, 2013,

On November 29, 2012, the BOD of ORIX Metro approved the declaration of a 20% stock
dividend amounting to £252.9 million or 20.00 per share based on par value of B100.00 to
all stockholders of record as of even date. This was approved by the BSP on

January 31. 2013 and issued by ORIX Metro on February 4. 2013.

On February 6, 2013, the BSP approved the semi-annual coupon payment on HT | Capital
amounting to USD 5.6 million which the Parent Company paid on February 15, 2013.

37.

Approval of the Release of the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of the Group and of the Parent C ompany were authorized
for issue by the BOD on February 27, 2013,
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38. Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations (RR)

No. 19-2011 and 15-2010

Supplementary Information Under RR No. 19-2011

In addition to the required supplementary information under RR No. 15-2010, on December 9,
2011, the BIR issued RR No. 19-2011 which prescribes the new annual income tax forms that will
be used for filing effective taxable year 201 1. Specifically, companies are required to disclose
certain tax information in their respective notes to financial statements. For the taxable year
December 31, 2012, the Parent Company reported the following revenues and expenses for

income tax purposes:

Revenues
Services/operations 216,944
Non-operating and taxable other income:
Service charges, fees and commissions £3.394
Trading and securities gain 3.374
Profit from assets sold 1,104
Income from trust operations 842
Others 550
29,264
Expenses
Cost of services:
Compensation and fringe benefits £4.608
Others 5,254
29,862
ltemized deductions:
Compensation and fringe benefits B4.436
Taxes and licenses 1,920
Security, messengerial and janitorial 1,185
Depreciation 670
Rent 684
Communication, light and water 508
Information technology 502
Transportation and travel 311
Bad debts 266
Repairs and maintenance 230
Management and professional fees 205
EAR 171
Others 2,045
P13,163

Supplementary Information Under RR No. 15-2010

On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued RR No. 15-2010 to amend certain provisions of
RR No. 21-2002 which provides that starting 2010 the notes to financial statements shall include
information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.
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The Parent Company reported the following types of taxes for the year ended December 31, 2012
included under "Taxes and licenses™ account in the statement of income:

GRT P1.821
DST 747
Capital gains tax 416
Local taxes 76
Real estate tax 64
Others 38

P3. 162

Details of total withholding taxes remitted for the taxable year December 31, 2012 follow:

Taxes withheld on compensation 21,786
Final withholding taxes 1.382
Expanded withholding taxes 173

P3.341

AR BATA
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